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Introduction

Who we are

Pennon Group Plc is a company at the top end of
the FTSE 250 which owns South West Water Limited
and Viridor Limited. The Group has assets of around
£4.1 billion and a workforce of over 4,300 people.

Group strategy

Our strategy is to promote the success of the Group
for the benefit of our shareholders, customers and
other stakeholders through our focus on water and
sewerage services, recycling, waste management
and renewable energy. We aim to be a pre-eminent
provider of customer services to high standards

of quality, efficiency and reliability.

What we do

We carry out our business through:

South West Water Limited which provides water and
sewerage services in Devon, Cornwall and parts of
Dorset and Somerset.

Viridor Limited which is one of the UK’s leading recycling,
waste management and renewable energy businesses.

To view our online report visit.
penncnannualreport?2011 co uk
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Drrectors' report — Business review Group overview

Group at a glance

Pennon Group

Our strategy is to promote the success of
the Group for our shareholders, customers
and other stakeholders through our focus
on water and sewerage services, recycling,
waste management and renewable energy.
We aim to be a pre-eminent provider

of customer services to high standards

of quality, efficiency and reliability

.Key Group facts

£4.1bn South West Water...
4.300 provides water and
employees sewerage services in

Devon, Cornwall and parts
of Dorset and Somerset,
delivering industry-leading
operational performance

Viridor...

one of the UK’s leading
recycling, waste
management, and
renewable energy
businesses. It won

the 2010 National
Recycling and Waste
Management Business
of the Year Award

Financiat highlights

Revenue Profit before tax

£1,159.2m £188.5m

+8.4% +1.5%

* Exciuding deferred tax Statutory eamings per share
were 48 4p (2009410 40 4p)

Financial highlights

Revenue Profit before tax
£448.8m £128.9m
+1.0% -0.5%
Financial highights

Revenue Profit before tax
£712.0m £62.9m
+13.6% +14.2%




Strategy

The Group aims to be a leading provider
of high-quality, efficient and trusted
services whilst

* having strong corporate responsibility
credentials which make a positive
impact on communities and the
envircnment

maintaining high standards of ethical
business conduct

fostenng open and positive
relationships wrth suppliers,
customers and other stakeholders

s protecting and promoting the
interests of all our employees

Strategy

South West Water 1s committed to
its vision of ‘Pure Water, Pure Service
and Pure Environment’, underpinned
by a strategy of sinkung the nght
balance between

s nvesting to mprove service
= customer affordability
+ the needs of stakeholders,

Strategy

Vindor's strategy 1s to grow and add
value by

* proactively developing and expanding
recycling operations to meet
ambitious EU and UK targets

» successfully explorting the huge
potential inherent in waste-based
renewable energy generation

» capialising on its strong postion
n landfill waste disposal.

Highlights of the year

Our strategy continued to deliver
shareholder value m 2010/11 and we
are committed to an annual dividend
increase of 4% above inflation at least
up to 2014115

» both businesses delivered a strong
performance dunng the year

+ the Group has benefited from an
exceptionally low cost of finance
thanks to its prudent funding and
efficient leng-term financing

* both businesses are well positioned
in the cunent economic conditions

Highlights of the year

industry leading performance
in tackling leakage

14th consecutive summer without
water restnctions

« near perfect drinking water quality
at 99 97%

customer satisfaction levels are nsing

.

* record percentage (30 3%) of bathing
waters achieved EU Guideline (or
excellent) standard

Highhghts of the year

* Vindor delivered strong profit growth
thanks to the attractive margms in its
expanding recychng and Energy from
Waste (EfW) operations

s some 46% of profits came from
realsing the value in waste (recycling
and energy recovery)

* 25-year PFl waste management
contract n Greater Manchester
(the largest programme of its kind
in Europe) entered its second year
of operation

* new Lakeside EfW plant operated
for its first full year

Strategy In action

The Group continues to successfully
source addrional finance for funding the
growth strategies of both subsidianes

Progressive dividend policy
Low cost of debt.
Further details on page 20

Strategy in action

Pure Water — providing safe and reliable
water supplies

Pure Service ~ increasing levels of
customer satisfaction and maintaining
reliability of assets to protect service
improvements made over last 20 years

Pure Environment - protecting and
enhancing the environment

Financial Management - outperforming
the regulatory contract, ngorously
controlling costs and amranging

efficient funding.

Further details on page 9

Strategy i action

Acquinng a growing network of
established recycling busmesses and
progressing major renewable energy
schemes in addrtion to organic growth,
is increasing Vindor's presencae in these
expanding sectors

Achieved planning permission for four
new strategic EfW plants (including one
post year-end and two permissions
subject to challenge)

Five high-quality strategically located
recycling companies acquired for a total
of nearly £50 millien

Further details on page 15




Drectors' report - Business review Chairman’s statement

Adding value for shareholders

It is my pleasure to report on yet another successful year for
Pennon Group. South West Water has had a strong start to

the new 2010-2015 regulatory contract and Viridor has once
again delivered strong profit growth.

Ken Harvey, Chairman, Pennon Group Plc

Dear shareholder

Our Group history shows that we

have concentrated on developing and
improving our two businesses, South
West Water and Vindor South West
Water has delivered greater efficiencies,
improved operating standards and
provided a better overall service to

its customers Vindor has seena
step-change from being a virtually
pure landfill company to a UK-leading
recycling and renewable energy
business, whilst continuing to benefit
from its strong position in landfill This
last year has continued to demonstrate
the success of our strategy of focusing
on water and sewerage services,
recycling, waste management and
renewable energy

Financial review

Our Group revenue rose by 8 4% to
£1,159.2 milion and our profit before
tax increased by 1 5% to £188 5 million’
Our underlying? eamings per share
increased by 3 7% to 42.3p

The Group has substantial cash
resources and undrawn facilities and
15 well placed in the current financial
market condiions

South West Water's Regulatory Caprtal
Value (RCV) grew by a further 58%
dunng 2010/11 to £2 7 billion, bullding
on the 31% increase over the K4 (2005-
2010) penod which was the highest
percentage increase for any quoted UK
water company. Vindor's profit before
tax at £62 9 mullion was an increase

of 14 2% on the previous year and
continues to build upon the growth
achieved over the last ten years

Dvidend

The Board i1s recommending to
sharehclders a final dwidend per share
of 17.15p, which represents a 99%
increase on last year's final dividend
This will result in a total dividend for the
year of 24 65p, an increase of 93% on
the total dividend for 200940 Thisis

in ine with our previously announced
policy to grow the Group dividend by
4% above inflation per annum up to
atleast the end of 2014415 This1sa
reflection of cur confidence that Pennon
Group s well positionad to continue to

detiver strong growth

Group history
Prvatisation of the Purchase of the
Eneiand; and Wi Companmes, L

es compantes, Haul

South West Water Waste, for £29
Pic, one cf ten mihon, later renamed
water and sewerage Vindor Wasts
companies, launched Management
on the London Stock
Exchange
Roadferd Reservoir
completed providing
34,500 megaltres of
water storage

2 Pennon Group Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2011

| am pleased to say that we will be
offenng a Scnp Dnadend Altemnative

to shareholders in respect of the final
dividend The timetable for offenng the
Scnp Dvidend Alternative ts given on

page 114

Business performance

South West Water's year was
charactensed by a strong start to the

K5 penod, when it delivered some

£8 million in efficiency savings (nearly
twice its 200910 achievement) This

1s being achieved through changing
operational ways of working; nght-
sourcing and innovative contracting
arangements, energy procurement and
reduced usage, and the rationalising of
admunistrative and support services The
company also delivered industry-leading
operational performance and mproved
standards of customer service

Vindor saw its revenues and profit
before tax move ahead (by 13 6% and
14 2% respectively) as it concentrated
on extracting value from waste |is
results were dnven by a successtul first
full year of operation at the Lakeside
Energy from Wasts (EiW) plant near
Heathrow, a strong second operational
year for the Greater Manchester Pnvate
Finance Intiative (PFI) waste contract
and strong organic growth n recycling
backed up by five acquistions of high
quality, strategically aligned recycling

businesses
Blue Circle Waste Plymouth £63 million
Managament ‘Clean Sweep’
acquired for scheme completed
£71 mimion 1 999

Newguay £15 million

Landfill actmties ‘Clean Sweep’
of Tenry Adams scheme completed
acquired for
€85 mullion




This last year

has continued

to demonstrate
the success of
our strategy

of focusing

on water and
sewerage services,
recycling, waste
management and
renewable energy.

Health and safety

Measures of the heaith and safety of

all our employees are an important key
performance indicator (KP) for both our
businesses We wera pleased to see a
significant reduction in the reportable
number of incidents within Vindor for
2010/11 but disappointed to see a nse
in reportable incidents at South West
Water The Board, together with the
Boards of South West Water and Vindor,
are totally committed to fostenng a
cutture and working environment where

accidents are unacceptable

Torbay £97 rmulon Thames Waste

‘Clean Sweep' Management

scheme completed acqured for

ISale of Vindor £31 milkon

nstrumentaticn

for £104 milhen 2005

and special intenm

dmidend pasd to Lakeside Energy

shareholders from fs"grgo"y:‘ﬁ:ev;‘ re

the net sale procaeds estabished with
Grundon Waste
Management

Governance

We operate businesses which can

and do have a material impact on the
environment and communities, and we
do take a very responsible approach to
environmental, social and govemance
(ESG) matters Our sustainable practices
not only benefit the communities in
which we operate, but also enable our
husinesses to be more successful

Wa set out more fully in the Bustness
review and in our Group Corporate
responsibility report our commitment
to ESG and the improvements we have
made in protecting the environment,
carben capture, energy savings and
resource recovery, which all contnbute
to a more sustainable future for
everyone We continue to take into
account the views of our sharehclders
and mayor mstitutional groups on key
governance 1Ssues In reviewing annually
our practices, policies and procedures
Woe have a strong and appropnately
expenenced Board, with govermnance
structures in place which can and does
successfully respond to the challenges
we face and enable us to operate inthe
best interests of our shareholders and
cther stakeholders.

Our employees

Our success continues to be due to the
tatent, commitment and sheer hard work
of our employees | would ke to thank
every one of thern for therr outstanding
contnbuton yet agan, particularly in
adapting so effectively to changing
cuttures and operating environments

2006 2007
Purchase of Launch of picneenng
Park reservoir customer support
All 144 bath scheme "WaterCare'
waters n mengoum by South West Water
West region achieved Grosvenor Waste
100% complance Management
for the first tirme with acaqured for
the EU Mandatory £81 milign
e 2008
Purchase of
Stannon reservor

I am also very grateful to my Board
coileagues for their support and
significant contnbution to another
successful year

Outlock

As | have stated above, we are confident
that Pennon Group remains well

placed for significant long-term growth.
South West Water i1s set to continue
outperforming the targets in the Final
Determmation for the K5 penod and to
continue to benefit from exceptonally
low costs of finance. Vindor 1s well
positioned to gain iIncreasingly from the
future operation of a number of current
nvestment projects, including the EAV
plant at Runcomn, both phases of which
are currently under construction

| am confident that as cur Group
busmnesses continue to explort future
opporturities for further efficiencies
and growth, we have the nght strategy
in place to continue and build upon the
success we have achieved to date

KenHarvey
Chairman
Pennon Group Plc
22 Jure 2011

' Reflects the appicaton of IFRIC 18 ‘ransters of
assets from customers’, effective from 1 July 2009

? Undaryng eamings per sham excludes defermed tax

Ofwat Final Completion of
Determination of £400 millon clean
pnca lirmits for KS water mains

penod (2010-2015) rehabifitabon
recerved by South programme whuch
Waest Water Next saw 5,000 klometres
Determuinahon due of water mamns

n 2014 relined or replaced
Greater Manchester over ten years

PFlcontract signed

Pennon Group Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2011 3
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Drrectors’ report — Business review Strategic Q&A

Delivering on our strategy

With strong results recorded by both businesses

in 2010/11, Group Director of Finance David Dupont,
South West Water CEO Chris Loughlin and Viridor
CEO Colin Drummond discuss a year of achievement
and outline their strategic approach to the main

challenges they face.

What were the highlights of the year,
and how do they reflect the Group
strategy?

Dawvid Dupont

We saw a solid profit performance In

the year. South West Water’s profits
were stable, despite the reduced rate

of retum mposed by Ofwat, and Vindor
achieved very strong growth driven by
its successful recycling activities and the

Lakeside Energy from Waste (EfW) and
Greater Manchester Waste PFl projects

We continued to secure further funding
for both businesses to finance South
West Water's commitments in the
cumrent five-year cycle and to enable
Vindor to continue its strategy of
investing in EfW and recycling assets

4 Pennon Group Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2011

By the year-end we had £825 millicn
of funding In place to support both
subsidianes, reflecting our Group
strategy of mvesting mn our utility
infrastructure businesses to achieve
long-term growth for investors

Can you explain the decision to set
a dividend growth policy of 4% per
annum n real terms; higher than any
of your peer companies?

DD

Certainly - the decision reflects our
confidence that both South West Water
and Vindor are pursuing proven sound
strategies which will enable them to
continue to perform well dunng the
foreseeable future In addition we've
successfully secured funding for South
West Water at a significantly lower
interest rate than was assumed by
Ofwat for the 2010-2015 penod and we
are pleased to be shanng this benefit
with our investors

South West Water achieved a strong
operational performance last year
What were the key highlights and how
did you achieve them?

Chns Loughlin

First and foremost we achieved a step-
change n operational cost-efficiency,
delivering nearty double the savings

of the previous year This coincided
with very high levels of operational
performance, for example, our water
quality 1s amongst the very best in the
mndustry and our water losses from




First and foremost, we achieved a step-
change in operational cost-efficiency,
delivering nearly double the savings

of the previous year.

Chris Loughlin, Chief Executive,

South West Water

leakage are the lowest in the country,
having met the Ofwat target in every
single year, despite a record cold spell
this winter leading to many frozen pipes

A new five-year penod bnngs new
challenges from Ofwat. How are you
delivening against these?

CL

In essence the challenge remains to
continue to deliver ever improving
customer service and a demanding
programme of operational improvements
whiist outperformmng our commmtments
financially Operationally, we have front-

loaded our iImprovement plans This
has gven us a flying start to the new
five-year penod. This 15 underpinned

by our Puros programme which Is
transforming how we operate our
assets and our working practices to
make us even more efficient in the
future Financially, our very low cost

of borrowing ensures that a continued
high level of outperformance i1s already
locked in In terms of caprtal expenditure
outperfonnance we are also seeing the
benefits of the new long-term contracts
we put in place at the end of the [ast
five-year cycle. All in all we are in good
shape for the rest of the penod

The Government 1S reviewing water
policy and has already announced
support for South West Water
customers. How would you like

to see this develop?

CL

We welcome the fact that the
Govemment 1s minded to provide
support to South West Water customers
following the findings of the independent
Walker Review

Pennon Group Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2011 5

We’'ll contmue to work with Government
and other interested parties in the
ongoing consultation process to help
achieve the nght balance between
supporting those facing the most acute
financial challenges and ensunng the
farest level of bills for everyone

Vindor's joint ventures at Lakeside
and in Greater Manchester have
clearly made a major contnbution
to this year's results. How are they
progressing?

Colin Drummond

Both are going very well Lakeside’s
performance dunng its first full year

of operation was even better than
expected with a total profit contnbution
approaching £9 million if you include
Vindor sub-contract profits, Our 25-year
Greater Manchester Waste PFl contract
also performed very strongly dunng its
second full year with 31 of the project’s
42 new facilities now completed We
are delivenng world-class recycling and
waste management solutions to Greater
Manchester in an economic manner at
atime when our chient, hkke many local
authorthies across the UK, i1s facing
tough budgetary constraints.

Group Director of Finance Dawd Dupont,
South Wast Water Chief Executve Chng Loughlin
and Vindor Cheef Executve Colbn Drummond
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Directors' report ~ Business review Strategic Q&A

Delivering on our strategy continued

Waste management is changing into
a resource recovery business and we
are capitalising on, and indeed leading

this trend.

Colin Drummond, Chief Executive, Viridor

What are the key trends currently
mpactng Vindor?

CcD

The move away from landfill to more
recyclng, combined with recovenng
more energy from waste, 1s the most
important change affecting our industry
Waste management 1s changing into

a resource recovery business We are
capitalising on, and indeed leading,

this trend = 46% of Vindor's profits now
come from recovenng value from waste

Vindor made five acquisttions dunng
the year. What 1s your acguisition
strategy and how important s it

to the growth of the business?

CcD

Acquinng businesses that fit our
strategy and provide a good payback
on the iInvestment has always been
central to our growth Indeed roughly
half of the 20% per annum profit growth
we have achieved since 2000 has been
due to acquisthions (with the other half
being organic) Last year the companies
we bought were all in recycling and
provided us with both the geographic
operational synergies we look for in the
UK and greater volumes to sell through
our intemational distnbution network.

Recycling has been a rollercoaster
for the industry — have you managed
to de-nsk 1it?

CcD

It can be a rollercoaster, but the fact

15 that if you produce high-quality
recyclate, you will find a steady market
for it, you can become a buiit-in part
of manufacturers’ raw matenal supply
chains Over the last four years we
have mvested over £200 million in
achieving precisely this and we have
many excellent customer relationships
throughout the UK, Europe and
mereasngly with China Thers remamns
the nsk of pnice volatilty but this 1s
lessened by recyclate being significantly
cheaper than virgin matenals

8 Pennon Group Pic Annual Report and Accounts 2011

The year's results were impacted by
lower pnces for the electncerty Viridor
generates from landfill gas. What are
the prospects for the coming year?

cD

2010/11 prces were still highly profitable
for us and were only low In companson
with the pnces we locked m dunng
sumimer 2008 at the histonc peak of

the market Pnces are currently slowly
strengthening and cur view, and that of
many industry analysts, 1s that this trend
will continue




The Group performed well in the year
with South West Water outperforming
Ofwat assumptions and Viridor
continuing to build a very strong
platform for continued growth.

David Dupont, Group Director of Finance

You have many potential Public
Pnvate Parinership (PPP) and ERW
projects in development. How are
these progressing?

CcD

Since summer 2010 we have achieved
four major EfW planning pemissions
— at Cardiff, Dunbar, Ardley and
Avonmouth {the Secretary of State’s
decision i1s subject to challenge on the
latter two) Dunng the year we agreed
the second phase of development

at the new Runcom EfV plant, with

a circa £200 milhion investment, the
constructicn programme 1s fully
underway (the first phase 1s targeted
at the Greater Manchester project)
We also signed a major 25-year residual
waste treatment PPP contract with
Oxfordshire County Council which

will use our planned Ardley facility

We have a heafthy pipefine of other
potential projects, with a view to
winning an acceptable proportion

at sabisfactory pnces

What are the key KPls and
environmental measures you use to
assess Vindor's performance? Is it
really true that being green i1s good
for business?

CcD

Being green certainly 1s good for our
business Qur profits have been growing
at an average compound rate of 20%
per annum since 2001 One of our

KPIs relates to the amount of waste
recycled, which has grown from around
100,000 tonnes per annum in 2001 to
17 milkon last year. Another KP! s our
renewable energy generation capacity,
which has increased over the same
penod from 27MW to 136MW — and we
are targeting an annual capacity of at
least 300MW In five years’ time. Other
KPis relate to the economic and social
sustainabiity of our own business As

I know first-hand from my appearance
in Channet 4's ‘Undercover Boss', we
work in challengng environments, a
particular area of focus 1s therefore the
health and safety of our workforce
Whilst we more than met our RIDDOR
(a national measure of health and safety
incidents) target n 2010, which was also
an improvement on our 2009 RIDDOR
performance, our over-nding goal
remains achieving a zero accident rate

There I1s very substantal investment
going into Vindor. How will you fund t?

DD

Both the Lakeside and Greater
Manchester joint venture projects are
funded using project finance, with banks
providing over 80% of the necessary
funds on a non-recourse basis New
investments are being financed
corporately, ncluding £46 mullion by
the year-end in the second phase of
the new Runcorm EfW plant. By the
year-end we had around £500 milion n
place for Vindor's ongoing investment
needs and we are in talks with other
finance providers for additional funding
as projects progress

How do you expect the Group to
continue to perform within today’s
challenging business environment?

oD

The Group performed well in the year
with South West Water outperforming
Ofwat assumptions and Vindor
continuing fo build a very strong
platform for continued growth This
gives us great confidence that we
can continue to deliver in lne with
expectations, mcluding the dvidend
policy that we announced a year ago

Far left. Waste Electneal and Blectrome
Equipment (WEEE)} recycling faciity, St Helens

Left Baled recyclate at Ford Materals Recycing
Faclity (MRF)

Pennon Group Plc Annuat Report and Accounts 2011 7
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Directors’ report — Business review South West Water

At a glance

South West Water is the water and sewerage
company that serves Devon, Cornwall and

parts of Dorset and Somerset.

Key facts

1.65m

resident populaton

15,100km

of water mains

9,300km

of sewers

636

waste water treatment works

Where we operate

Operational highlights

South West Water has made a strong start

1o the K5 five-year reguilatory penod

+ industry-leading performance in
tackling leakage

¢ 14th consecutive year without water
restnctions

¢ near perfect dnnking water qualty
at 99 97%

+ customer satisfaction levels rose

* record percentage (90 3%) of
bathing waters achieving EU)
Guideline {or excellent) standard

8 Pennon Group Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2011

2010/11 notable achievements

The company has delivered
on expectations:

* stable profit before tax desprte
the reduced rate of retum allowed
in the 2009 Ofwat pnce review

* successfully met annual leakage
target in spite of the coldest
December in England in the last
100 years

* resikent network performance
dunng extreme winter conditions

* step-change in operating efficiencies
of £8 4 milion — nearly double tha
total for 2009/10

+ working with Government and
Ofwat on reducing customer
charges following the Government's
Walker Review

Tergnmouth beach the region has the highest
number of biue flag beaches in the country




Strategy and performance

Under its ‘Pure’ vision of ‘Pure Water, Pure Service and Pure
Environment’ South West Water is focused on achieving increased
levels of customer service and operational performance whilst at
the same time delivenng greater efficiency and high levels of social
and environmental responsibility.

Strategy Performance KPI

Pure Water Near perfect dnnking water quality Dnnking water quality % MZC*
14th consecutive summer with no

Providing safe and reliable water water rastnehons

supplies

Pure Service Average level of custorner satisfaction Customer satisfaction overall %
up Complants falling for the second

Increased levels of customer satisfaction year running with written complaints

down a quarter on 2009/10
Mantaining reliability of assets to Stable serviceability™ maintamned for
protect service mprovements made all service areas Resihient network
over the last 20 years performance in extreme winter weather
Pure Environment A record percentage (90 3%) of bathing Bathuing water quality Guideline %
Protecting and enhancing the waters achieved EU Gudelne for Cotencaryar
environment
Fmancial Management Front-end loaded efficiency savings of Operating profit £m

£8 4 million, equal to 5.8% per annum
On track to achieve 5% outperformance
on the K5 capital programme (Lsng 2009
Final Determination estmates of Constuction
Qutpuit Price Index)

Outperformance of regulatory contract

Efficient funding Locked-in low cost of borrowing
ensures interest cutperformance
agamst Final Determination
(2010111 4% on average net debt)

* Mean Zonal Compliance

" Servicaabifty 1s the capacty of a system of assets to deliver a reference level of service to customers and 1o the ervionment now and into the future
Serviceability s deemed to be stable when the assessment of trends in a defined set of service and asset performance indicators demonstrates that
service ts 1n fing with the reference leved of service and, by inference, 1s [kely to reman so nto the future

! Restated for IFRIC 18
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Drrectors' report — Business review South West Water

A solid profit performance

At the end of the K4 period South West Water reported that
it had a solid platform in place for continued success during

the new K5 period. 2010/11 has seen the company already
benefit from that robust position to deliver a strong start to |

K5 both financially and operationally with improved standards |

of customer service.

Qur company-wide ‘Pura Water, Pure Service, Pure
Environment’ wvision 1s the comerstone of our business
and the company's operations

Business performance

Our strong financial results for 2010/11 saw our profit before
tax broadly mamntained compared with the previous year,
despite the reduced rate of retum aliowed for the whale
industry in the 2009 Ofwat pnce review Capital expenditure
was also broadly stable at £125 1 milion after adjusting for
non-recurnng terns in the pnor year (£20 9 million for the
substantial K4 water mams rehatulitation programme and
£9 7 milhion advanced KS expenditure) A strong cash flow
performance improved our geanng ratio

We also consistently have one of the lowest costs of financing
of any company In our industry, having successfully used our
expertise to ensure ongoing financial outperformance

A high and improved level of operational performance was
achieved dunng the year despite some of the most extreme
winter weather conditions expenenced in the South West

for many years Indeed, under these weather condrions, our
network demonstrated a good level of resilience due to the
company’s past mvestment in infrastructure, which produced
tangible results even in a tme of extreme stress being placed
on our assets, it also lllustrated the reliabiitty of our network
with our operating assets again achieving a consistent ‘stable
serviceability’ rating

' Restated for IFRIC 18
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A step-change in efficiency

A strong start has been made towards achieving targeted
operating cost reductions The company has front-end
loaded delivery of efficiencies of 2 8% per annum targeted
for the K5 penod (2010-2015). Some £8 4 millon, equal to

5 8% per annum, of operating efficiencies were delivered

in 2010411 This was achieved through changing operational
ways of working, nght-sourcing and innovative contracting
arrangements, energy procurement and reduced usage, and
the rationalising of admunistration and support services

South West Water has now purchased 94% of its K5 energy
requirements at a lower market prnce than that assumed in
the Final Determination

Performance on the K5 capital programme, with s increased
emphasis on maintenance of existing assets (66% of the K5
total compared with 43% in K4), is being targeted to achieve
5% outperformance of the Final Determination' South

West Water continues to deliver capital projects in Ime with
Ofwat, Dnnkung Water Inspectorate and Environment Agency
expectations Stable serviceabilty was mantamned for all
service areas.

Overall customer debt cash collections were stable despite
the difficult economic environment with the bad debt charge,
as a percentage of revenue, broadly consistent with the

pnor year

Pure Water

This year the company again successfully met both its annual
and three-year rolling leakage targets and has done so ever
since leakage targets were onginally set by Ofwat This was
achieved in spite of the coldest December in England in 100
years which caused an exceptional number of burst pipes
across the region

! Using 2009 Final Determination estrmates of Constructon Output
Price Index.




No data on the EU Gudeline standard 1s available for earlier years due te
a change to monitonng aganst the EU Standard rather than UK Standard
by the Environment Agency

A significant proportion of the company’s capital programme
in 2010/11 was focused on mamtaining dnnking water

quality which remamed near perfect with a 99 97% sample
mean zonal compliance rate dunng the 2010 calendar

year Investments made dunng the year included filtration
improvements to a number of water treatment works, secunty
enhancements and climate change adaptations at works, and
refurbishment of the Lopwell raw water pumping station

South West Water has put in place a comprehensive strategy
to ensure a continued secure supply of water for the region
2010 was the 14th consecutrve summer with no water
restnctions and it 1s envisaged that there will be no water
restnctions in summer 2011 despite the very dry condihions
in the year so far More cost effective than building new

reservoirs, the two disused china clay pits acquired in 2006
and 2008 and now converted into Park and Stannon Lakes,
represent a significant addihion to water resources in Cormwall
and further increase the robustness of the company's water
supply system Park Lake became fully operational last year
and Stannon Lake will follow this summer The two lakes

are the region’s fourth and fifth largest reservorrs (behind
Roadford, Wimbteball and Colliford).

Pure Service

South West Water's emphasis on excellent service is
delivenng tangible improvements for customers and 1s
reflected in reducing levels of contacts (particulany repeat
contacts) Custorner satisfacton levels are nsing. Service
improvements undertaken in the past two years to reduce
customer complaints are delivenng results, with complaint
levels falling for the second year running (written complaints
down by more than a quarter on 2009/10)

South West Water has welcomed the Government’s response
to the Walker Review of charging for household water and
sewerage services The proposal for Government to fund a
cut from 2013/14 1n the average bill of all customers would be
especially well received by customers alongside proposals to
target help at those in most need by pegging the "Water Sure'
tanff to the lower national average metered bill and allowing
us to develop our own social tanff We will continue to work
closely with Government and our regulators throughout the
consultation phase to examine the practicality of all options
to aid customers

Regulations lard before Parhament, once they come into
effect, will allow for the transter of private sewers and lateral
drains South West Water has operational plans in place

te manage the transfer and a procurement process with
suppliers to deliver the service to customers i1s underway
Incremental costs incumed will need to be funded by future
adjustments to pnce Imnts.
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Oirectors' report — Business review South West Water

A solid profit performance continued

Pure Environment

As the UK’s premier tounst region, the quality of the South
West’s seas and beaches s particularty hugh profile In2010a
record percentage (90 3%) of cur bathing waters achieved EU
Guideline (excellent) standard, up from 84 0% in 2009, while
96 5% passed tha Mandatory {minimum) standard, the same
as in the previous year The South West region also features
the highest proportion of high quality rivers in England

This summer South West Water wall alsc be launching a new
real time mformation website, ‘Beach Live’ updating visitors
on any poterthial nsk to bathing water quality at around 25

of the most popular beaches in our region caused by storm
overflows operating after heavy rain, The website will be cne
of the first in Europe to offer this service to beach users on

a daly basis

Our programmes to achteve energy efficiency and carbon
reduction targets have made good progress this year The
energy awareness campaign, ‘PowerDown’, workang with
the Energy Savings Trust, has been very successful in cuthing
energy use The ‘PowerDown’ scheme has been recognised
extemnally, being the Business Award winner of the Davon
Environmental Business Inthiative The combined energy
volume reductions target of 3GWh has been met from

these activities

We have also made good progress in the development of our
renewable energy systems, with major overhauls and control
system replacements for our larger sewage gas combined
heat and power plants to give improved reliatilty and
ncreased outputs Our larger investment programme for new
hydroelectnc capacrty has included a number of Innovatrve,
cost-effective solutions

South West Water 1s working to integrate into alt rts business
operaticns more sustainable ways of worlang that support the
company’s climate change adaptatton programme
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An important achievement for the company during the year
was the receipt of Emissions Measurement and Reduction
certification This can only be achieved by organisations that
have not only made credible carbon reductions over the past
three years but also have robust plans in place to make more
reductions in the future

South West Water has embarked on an innovative programme
of work called ‘Upstream Thinking' to iImprove raw water
qualty m a sustainable way This initiative — seen as best
practice in the industry - seeks to mprove the qualty of water
that feeds into treatment plants from the mam moorland
sources of Dartmoor and Exmoor by helping to re-establish
the wetlands that naturally cleanse water by slowing the flows
on their downhill journey to nvers and reservoirs Receiving
better quality water at the company’s plants reduces the work
required to cleanse it for human consumption, lowers the
quantiies of chemicals the company has to use and increases
the cost-effectiveness of its operabons Work to re-wet
uplands, restore grasslands and revise famming practices is
underway and by working with farmers, environmental bodies
and statutory bodies, the company also amns to achieve
multiple environmental benefits,

Our employees

Our employees are the foundation of our success It is one
of our core values that our people matter and we have
programmes in place to both support the progress of
employees and to ensure their safety at work. Examples of
these include a Post Graduate Certificate in Management
developed with the University of Exeter's Business Schocl,
the ‘GROW’ staff development programme providing
training in personal growth and business strategy and two
programmes launched dunng the year that are designed
to keep our employees safe at work — one concentrating
on behavioural health and safety training and the other

on ensunng safe drnving habits




The commitment and professionalism of our employees have
been essential ngredients in achieving this year's success.

We are confident that the continued outstanding performance
of our employees, with all the support we can give thern, will
ensure another good year of operations n 2011412

Key relatonships

Regulators and others

South West Water has a wids range of contacts with its
environmental and regulatory stakeholders mvolving many
different functicns within the company Central processes are
also in place so that we can be confident that stakeholder
contacts are dealing with the people most able to assist them,
that consultahons and information requests are handled

in the most efficient manner and that information given to
stakeholders 1s of high quality and consistent The company
contnbutes to national policy on developing 1ssues through
its membership of Water UK, the industry trade body, and

we work with the Consumer Council for Water to ensure that
customers’ 1ssues and concerns are addressed and a full
understanding of the company's activiies 1s mantained

Procurement and suppliers

Our procurement strategy s focused on partnenng and
strategic allances with 60 key suppliers who account for
the large maornty of expenditure We include all aspects
of sustainability in our procurement processes and this is
a central theme of ocur procurement strategy for our supply
chains and support of the regional economy With the start
of the K5 regulatory penod we introduced an mnovative
‘mixed economy’ model to source cur caprtal programme
This means using a significant number of smaller local
contractors to provide specialised services as well as long-
term relationships with more major supply chan partners
No supplier (revenue) accounts for more than 5% revenue
and South West Water sources all ts purchases from
competitive markets.

Focus for K§

The focus for K5 1s to continue to strnke the nght balance for
investors, customers and other stakeholders We have already
delivered substantial efficiencies over the last two decades
and will continue to focus on delivenng further efficiency

while satisfying regulatory demands and improving services

to customers

Our plan for K5
* targets outperformance of the regulatory contract
* continues to control costs ngorousty

» delivers investment through increased capital mantenance
that will secure operating cost savings and protect the
service improvements made over the last 20 years whilst
prepanng for future Increased Investment requirements
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Directors’ report — Business review Viridor

At a glance

Viridor is one of the UK’s leading and fastest-
growing recycling, waste management and
renewable energy businesses. It won the
National Recycling and Waste Management
Business of the Year Award in 2010.

Key facts

324

operating facilibes

26

Matenals Recycling Facilthes (MRFs)

34

Landfill gas power plants

3

Energy from Waste (EfW) plants

8.3

milhon tonnes of matenal handled
n 2010/11

Where we operate

Vindor has a fast-growing network of
recycling, waste management and

renewable energy operations across the
UK, with current strengths in the South
West, South East and North of England,

East Anglha, South East Wales, and
Scotland The company sells its high-
quality recyclate internationally, with

established relatonships across Europe

and i emerging markets including
China and India.

Operational highlights

Vindor achieved significant increases
in revenues and profit in 2010141 as it

* grew the contnbution to profits of
recovenng the value in waste
to 46% (as landfill fell to 23% from
69% in 2001)

* had a successful first full year of
operation at its Lakeside joint venture
Energy from Waste plant

* managed the second successful
year of operations of ts Greater
Manchester PFl contract

* increased its total renewable energy
production capacity to 136MW
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2010/11 notable achievements

Duning the year Vindor

* acqurred five high-quality recycling
businesses, strategically sited to
complement existing UK operations
and intermational recyclate sales

* achieved profit margns per tonne on
its high-qualrty recyclate appreciably
greater than landfill

* by the year-end had completed 31
of the 42 new facilihes for the Greater
Manchester joint venture confract

* commenced Phase Il in the
construction of the new combined
heat and power EfW plant at Runcom

* achieved planning permission for four
new EMW plants (one after the year-
end and two subject to challenge)

+ was named the National Recycling
and Waste Management Business
of the Year at the National Recycling
Awards

Glass recycling process fre,Salmon
Pastures, Sheffield




Strategy and performance

Viridor is commutted to leading the way in maximising the
opportunities generated by the Govemment’s landfill diversion,
recycling and renewable energy targets.

In this way it will grow and add value through:
* developing new, and expanding existing, recycling operations
to meet ambitious EU/UK targets

» successfully exploting the huge potential in waste-based
renewable energy generation

* capitalising on its strong posttion in landfill waste disposal.

Strategy

Growth in recycling

Performance

Vindor 1s the UK's largest operator of
Matenals Recycling Faciltbies (MRFs)

S;:mgg o%r%zfu;sz]ﬂl'lyeassng sﬁ:vrzggah We made five further acquisitons of
strategic and geographic fit recycling businesses dunng the year

Increasing power generation

Capritalising onh waste-based energy
generation (often via PPP and PFI)
oppartunities with profit potental

The second full year of our joint venture

recycling-led PFl contract at Greater
Manchester contnbuted £4 9 million
to profits, reflecting the major
investment made

The first full year of operation of the
Lakeside EfW plant near Heathrow
delivered approaching £9 million in
profits (including Vindor sub-contract

KPI

Recyclates traded m tonnes

Renewable energy generation

capacity MW
as at 31 March

profits} Construction of the combined
heat and power EfW plant at Runcom
1s underway Vindor receved planning

throughout the UK

permission to build four further EAW
plants (two subject to challenge)
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Drrectors' report — Business review Viridor

Another year of growth and investment

Viridor has transformed itself over the last decade from a
traditional waste management company with significant
landfill operations into a progressive resource management
business with a growing focus on recovering the value in
waste through recycling and by using waste as a source

of renewable energy.

In 20010/11 some 46% of our profits came through recovering
the value in waste, compared with 16% ten years age Over
the same penod we have seen our profits grow at an average
rate of 20% per annum and our workforce from under 500

to over 3,200 This i1s a clear iIndication of the way in which
embracing the environmental agenda has been an effective
dnver of growth, put stmply, being green 1s good for business
We are confident that this focus on recycling and renewable
energy will continue to dnve long-term growth and valus for
Vindor and ts stakeholders.

This highly significant shift m emphasis has nvolved a

major cuitural change for our business For therr essential
contnbution to this change, we congratulate our management
and employees who have continued to deliver organisational
and profit growth every year throughout this penod of
significant evolution.

Dunng the financial year we continued, and further
emphasised, these twin themes of profit growth and cuttural
change [t saw our company continue to grow through a
number of strategic, in-fill acquisitions in the recycling industry
and through the returns from two highly significant recent
Investment projects, the 25-year Greater Manchester Waste
PFl contract and the Lakeside Energy from Waste (EfW) plant

In additton it was a year in which we continued to make major
long-term investments in the future capabiliies and strength

of our business which will, on completion, deliver significant
addrtional growth in profits from 2014 onwards. Since last
summer we have achteved planning permissions for four
major EfW facilities at Cardiff, Dunbar, Ardiey and Avonmouth
(the Secretary of State’s decision 1s subject to challenge on the
latter two) These plannmg permissions underpin our strategic
momentum

Dunng the year Vindor's reputation as a progressive force in
our sector was recognised, and further boosted, when we
were named the ‘Recycling and Waste Management Business
cf the Year' at the National Recycling Awards
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We consider this to be recogrition for the hard work,
professionalism and commitment of all our employees.
Vindor's Chief Executive had the opportunity to expenence
first-hand the creatiity and energy of our workforce when

he took part in Channel 4’s ‘Undercover Boss’ pnmetime

TV programme, which was broadcast in August 2010 Our
employees’ commitment to the company was apparent in the
proegramme and showed the extent to which their ideas help
develop our business and how they contnbuted to what was
anocther successful year for Vindor

Strong financial performance

The last financial year has shown ancther robust financial
performance as we delivered revenues of £712 0 milion and
an operating profit {including joint ventures) of £82.6 million to
continue Vindor's record of Increasing its profit by an average
20% year-on-year since 2001 This was despite the fact that,
as we had flagged to shareholders at the beginning of the
year, our profits from landfill gas pewer generation were lower
than in the previous year due to the endmng of a contract in
which pnces had been fixed at ahistone market peak.

The strength of our financia! perfomance dunng 2010/11 was
drven Dy our recycling businessas and the impact of our two
major recent Investments, the Greater Manchester Waste PFI
and the Lakeside EfW plant

Recychng

Recycling continued to grow well, both in volume (reflecting
both healthy organic and acquisttion-dniven growth) and
through continued strong pnces for recycled matenals The
pnces we achieved for recyclates were the direct result of our
mvestment in ensunng the highest possible quality of output
This strength 1s leading to beneficial long-term relatonships
with customers via a global trading platform which aiso allows
us to respond quickly to changes in market condrtions

Dunng the year, we saw the volumes of recyclate traded
increase to over 1 7 million tonnes, representing growth
of 22% over the previous year's total of 1 4 million tonnes

Recycing cofiections vehicle Bargeddie Materals Recycing Faciity (MRP)




Of thus growth the existing business contnbuted around
200,000 tonnes, an increase of 13%

Growth was also dnven by the acquisitron of five privately-
owned high-qualrty recycling businesses for a combined
consideration of nearty £50 milion, compnsing seven
Matenals Recycling Facilities (MRFs) in East Anglia, the
Midlands, the North West and the South West of England
These acquisitions reinforce our posrtion as the UK's leading
operator of MRFs, placing us at the forefront of a fast-growing
business segment that continues to receive encouragement
from government at both UK and European levels

The busmesses were acquired for the significant operational
synergies that thewr geographic locations and services offer
the company and for the addmional capability to produce high
quality recyclate for sale through our intemational distribution

network The noticeably better value of high-quality recyclate,
when compared to virgin matenals, 1s increasingly making it
the first choice for manufacturers across the world During
the year these acquired businesses contmbuted a Iitile over
100,000 tonnes of recyclate

Strategically the shift to recycling is important to us due

to the significantly higher profit we realise per tonne,
compared with our landfill retums, which are reducing This
gap will increasingly widen as the UK Government seeks to
discourage further landfill through the application of an £8
year-on-year increase In tax on each tonne of waste sent to
landfill This will raise landfill tax from its cumrent leve! of £56
per tonne {from 1 Apnl 2011) to £80 per tonne by 1 Apnl 2014
This stance adopted by the Govermment strongly reinforces
the long-term logic of our focus en recyching and energy
recovery as the best methods for waste management which
will also result In delivenng enhanced value to nvestors

Greater Manchester

2010/11 was the second year of operation of the 25-year
Greater Manchester Waste PFI contract, a joint venture which
is the UK's largest-ever combined waste and renewable
energy project. We have now complsted 31 of the 42
collection, recycling and renewable energy facimes that
compnse the PFi contract By the time the programme 1s
complete, it will divert 75% of Greater Manchester's waste
from landfill and recycle or compost over 50%

A second major aspect of the Greater Manchester PFI
contract is the construction of a Combined Heat and Power
(CHP) EfW plant, Runcom Phase |, which i1s on schedule to
open towards the end of 2012/13. Dunng the year we also
commenced construction of Phase Il of the Runcom plant,
a Vindor project, which 1s targeted at the North West market
more generally When this comes on stream m 2014/15 the
combined plant will have a total waste capactty of 750,000
tonnes per annum and a CHP capacity of 120MW making it
one of the largest and most efficient plants in Europe The
plant will operate alongside the existing EfW facility at Bolton
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Directors’ report — Business review Viridor

Another year of growth and investment continued

KPPl Profit before interest and tax (PBIT} plus jont ventures, profit before tax (PBT) and Return on equity

2001* 2002° 2003  2004* 2005
£m £m £m £m £m

2006 2007 2008 2003 2010 2011  CAGR'
Egm  €m  Em  Em  €m  £m 201011

PBIT phus jont ventures 131 149 176 202 286 343 450 573 &7 77O , 826  20%
PBT ) oo M7 135 142 147 201 219 276 342 399 551 629  18%
Return on equsty

investment? 61% T0% 74% 75% 103% 106% 13.3% 165% 193% 187% 214% -
* UK GAAP

! Compound Annual Growth Rate, beng the rate of gowth between 2001 and

2011 expressed as a single annual average figure over the penod

2 Return on equity nvestment 18 calculated as PBT expressed as a percentage of Pennon Group's equity investment :n Vindor (£294 milkor)

which has a generatmg capacrty of IMW of electneity through
the use of 120,000 tonnes of waste as fuel

In Greater Manchester we have also recewved planning
perrrussion to build four Anaercbic Digestion (AD) plants with
a capactty of up to 8MW of electrical power The first plant
was fully commussioned just after the year-end and the others
are under construction

Lakeside

This year saw us also make significant early returmns on one
of our largest recent investment projects, the Lakeside EAW
plant near Heathrow aiport, which delivered sts first full
year of operation in 2010/11. This important joint venture
with Grundon Waste Management has the capacity to
treat 410,000 tonnes of waste each year, with an electncrty
generation capacrty of up to 37MW

EfW prospects

We also have a very strong pipeline of further opportunities n
the EfW sector including a new PPP contract signed in March
2011 wrth Oxfordshire County Council to buidd a new CHP-
enabled plant at ocur site at Ardley, Oxfordshire This major
project is expected to result in the capacity to treat 300,000
tonnes of waste each year with an electncity generation
capactity of 25MW (As noted previously, the Secretary of
State’s decision to grant planning permussion has been
appealed against by a local group )

Alongside a number of other potential sites for EFW and AD
plants we already have planning pernmission in place for four
further EAW sites at Exeter, Cardiff, Dunbar and Avonmouth
(the latter also subject to challenge) that between them witl be
capable of annually treatg over one million tonnes of waste
with a generation capacrty of 103MW of electncrty and heat

Landfill gas power generation

in another aspect of our renewable energy operations, we also
saw continued volume growth in our landfill gas and power
generation business which expanded 1ts total operationa!
capacity by 8% to reach 108MW duning the year. As already

Profit contnbution' by segment 2010/11

mentioned the prices we receved in 2010/11 were lower than
in the previous year by some 9% This was duse to the ending
in March 2010 of a highly profitable electnetty forward sale
contract at pnces that reflected values achieved at the peak
of the market in May 2008. We are confident that pnices will
firm up again in the years to come

Renewable energy summary

We belteve that future growth in our power generation
volumes will be dnven by our EFW and AD activities We
cumrently have a total renewable electnerty production capacity
{including landfill gas plants) of 136MW With our current
investment projects underway and our healthy pipeline of
further PPP opportunities we are confident of growing our
capactty to over 300MW in five years’ time We estimate that
this will be around 0 5% of the UK's total electncity generation
or between 3% and 4% of the country’s total renewable
energy capacity at that time.

We have called upon the Government to set a target for 6%

of the UK's total electncity production to be generated from
waste, by whatever technology, by 2015 We regard this
target as being achievable, albeit challenging We believertis
common sense, not just because of the need to divert waste
from landfill and the posrtive implicaticns for the UK of utilising
its residual waste to generate energy, but also as a practical
solution to increase the diversity of supply sources in a pencd
of increasing uncertainty regarding future energy supplies

Other business sectors

Our landfill business has seen veolumes decline i recent

years as recycling has increased in the UK and the move

to generating energy from waste has gathered momentum,
which are positive offsetting trends for Vindor By the end of
the last financral year, our total landfill capacity was 69 million
cubic metres, which ts 8 million m? less than we operated at
the end of 2009/10 and 1s 1n line with Vindor's strategy to focus
its activiies on recycling instead of landfill.

Our collection services remain strong as we have targeted
controlled growth in Industnal and commercial collection

Profit contnbutiont by segment 2009/10

1 Power generation 20% 4 Contracts and cther 18% 1 Power generation 28% 4 Contracts and other 15%
2 Landfil 23% 5 Collection 6% 2 Landfill 31% 5 Collection 6%
3 Recycling 24% 6 JVs 9% 3 Recycling 16% 6 JVs 4%
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* Before central overhead costs, including pensions




wrthin areas which provide the nght senice and geographic
synergies wrth other areas of our business, such as providing
matenals for our recyciing and EfW operations

Key relationships

All waste and recycling facilties n England and Wales require
environmental permits, or waste management licences or PPC
penmits in Scotland These are 1Issued and monrored by the
Environment Agency and the Scottish Environment Protection
Agency respectively Vindor maintans a positive working
relationship with the regulators wa proactve haison and issues
management, at both a site specific and strategic level

Local authonties are the largest single customer group
accounting in total for 34% of the company's revenue No
individual authonty accounts for more than 11% Vindor's
ROC contracts account for 6% of revenue pnmanty wrth cne
customer No supplier accounts for more than 3% of Vindor's
revenue The company sources from competitive markets

Our employees

The success of Vindor's continued expansion and
development 1s as a direct result of its professional and
motvated workforce, these attnbutes are embedded in

our Missicn Statement. We ensure that every support and
protection 1s afforded to our employees through robust
health and safety systems, and timely and focused training
and perscnal development opportunities through our highly
tramed staff who provide support, guidance and adwvice to
all our employees New employees joining us via acquisitions
recesve particular attention to ensure that they are quickly
and effectively assimilated into Vindor to ensure therr health,
safety and welfare and to allow them to contnbute to the
company’s continued success We are justifiably proud

of our employees’ achievemnents

Lookung ahead

We await with interest the Govermment's forthcoming waste
policy review and believe strongly that the current market-
fnendly approach to recycling and generating energy from
waste should be actively encouraged

We believe that Vindor 1s well placed to build further on

the successes that the approach of the Government’s

policy regime for waste has enabled over the last 20 years,
which has been highly encouraging and progressive. These
successes nclude a 58% reduction in the amount of CO,
produced by the waste industry since 1990 (the best of any
sector in the UK), a six-fold growth in energy produced from
waste over the same penod, and growth i municipal recycling
from under 10% a decade ago to over 40% today

These are outstanding achievements, drniven by a regulatory
environment m which Vindor has been able to take an
acticn-onentated, entrepreneunal approach to environmental
Issues (proving that being green 1s good for business) As we
target further growth, particularly in our recycling and Efw
businesses, we believe it 1s important that the current ight-
touch, market-fnendly approach 1s mantaned to give us the
operaticnal freedoms we need for the benefit of our clients,
for the environment at large and for our investors

Looking ahead we intend to continue our current sirategy of
weorking hard to deliver what local and natienal govermment
are seeking to achieve from recycling and waste management.
Our profit profile in the next couple of years s likely to be
dnven by our recycling operations Our healthy list of EfW and
PPP prospects underpins our medium-term profit momentum

In the long-term we are confident of continuing to deliver
strong growth in shareholder value through continuing to
lead the way in exploiting opportunties ansing from the

Govermnment’s landfill diversion, recycling and renewable

energy targets

Far left Bredbury resource recovery cenire
Stockport

Left Housshold Waste Recycling Centre
(HWRC), Salford
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Drrectors’ report — Business review Financial review

Pennon Group continued to deliver revenue
and profit growth in 2010/11

Pennon Group performed well with both South West Water
and Viridor making a strong contribution.

The year's financial highlights
Pennon Group performed well with a good set of results from
both operating companies, South West Water and Vindor

It was a considerable achievement for South West Water to
deliver stable profits dunng the first year of the new five-

year cycle, which included the reduction of the rate of retum
allowed by Ofwat, the economic regulator, from 5 1% to 4 5%
{post-tax, real) Vindor has delivered strong profit growth,
dnven by its recyclng activities and the success of its PFI
and Energy from Waste (EfW) joint ventures

Dunng the year we secured further funding to finance
continumg growth By the year-end we had arcund

£825 milion in cash and facilities in place to fund South
West Water's K5 {2010-2015) capital programme and future
major growth in Vindor

Woe have secured funding at a cost that 1s low in absolute
terms In addibon South West Water’s average interest rate
of 4 0% (pre-tax, nominal) 1s substantially lower than the

6 2% assumed by Cfwat for the 2010-2015 penod This

15 a significant advantage compared with a number of our
competitors which will help dnve value for the Group and
our shareholders for years to come

The pnncipal key measures we use to assess the Group's
financial performance are profit before tax (PBT), eamings
per share and the interest rate on average net debt

Revenue
Group revenue increased by 8 4% to £1,152 2 million

South West Water's revenue rose by 1 0% to £448 8 million as

a resutt of tanff Increases, higher demand and new connections,
partally offset by a further reduction n revenue from customers

switchng from unmeasured to metered charges

Vindor's revenue rose by 13 6% to £712 0 million, substantiaity
driven by acquisihons and increased recycling activities

Reconciliahon of underiying and statutory earmings per share

Eamings per share — pence
Statutory earnings per share
Deferred tax per share
Underying earmings per share

¥ Restated for IFRIC 18
Note

Operating profit

Group operating profit fell by 2 0% to £260.9 million with
South West Water down by 1 9% to £189 8 million and
Vindor down by 1 6% to £71 6 mllon Pages 10 and 16
give a detalled descnption of the financial performance
of each company.

Finance costs

We continued our effective management of interest rates

in 2010/11 with net interest payable on average net debt
equating to 4.0% (200910 4.1%) Durnng the year net finance
costs {excluding pensions net mterest, discount unwind on
provisions and IFRIC 12 contract interest recevable) were
£77 2 million, covered 3 4 times (2009/10 3 4 times) by Group
aperating profit

Profit before tax
Profit before tax was £188 5 million, an increase of 1 5%

Taxabton

The Group’s UK corporahon tax charge for the year was

£38 6 mulhion (2009/10 £43 0 millon) Deferred tax for the year
was a credit of £21 7 million (2009/10 charge £1 3 million),
which included a credit of £25 1 million from the impact of the
recduction in the rate of corporation tax from Apnt 2011

Earnings per share

Underlying eamings per share increased by 3 7% to 42 3p
The weighted average number of shares in issue dunng the
year was 354 6 milion (2009/10 350 0 million) Net assets per
share at book value at 31 March 2011 were 218p

Dwidends and retained earnings
The statutory net proft of £171 6 mifion has been transferred
to reserves

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dvidend of
17 15p per share for the year ended 31 March 2071 With the
itenm dvidend of 7 5p per share paid on 1 Apnl 2011, this
gives a total dividend for the year of 24 65p, an increase of
9.3% over 2009/10 {reflecting 4% real growth plus RP| of 5.3%
at March 2011)

2010411 2009/10'  Growth

P p %

484 404 198
81 04

42.3 408 37

Eamings per share figures in ths Business review exclude deferred tax The Dyectors believe that this underiying measure provides amore Lseful companson on business trends
and performance The term ‘underiying’ s not defined under International Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) and may aot be comparable with smilarly titled measures used

by other companies
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' Restated for IFRIC 18

Proposed dividends totalling £88 2 millien are covered 17
times by net profit (excluding deferred tax) {2009/10 1.8 tmes)
Didends are charged against retaned eamings in the year
in which they are pad

Dividend policy

In last year’s report we announced the Board's intention to
increase the dividend each year by 4% above inflation from
2010/11 untii at least 2014/15 The Group 1s well positioned to
meet future challenges and to continue delivenng shareholder
value We remain committed to this increase, which i1s not
matched by any of our peers

Operating costs
Cperating costs for the year totalled £898 millon The biggest
areas of expenditure were

Expendrture £Em
Manpower 148
Landfill tax 146
Depreciation 141
Raw matenals and consumables’ 90
Transport 58
Property 30
Power 24

Abstraction and discharge consents

Statutery operating licences and royaltes

Lease rentals (plant and machinery)

1 Excludes elements of transport costs

Raw matenals and consumable costs have increased
during the year pnmanly due to higher levels of waste
recycling activities

Vindor capital expenditure

Asset value opirion

In the opinion of the Directors, the current market value of the
Group's land and buildings i1s not significantly different from
the holding cost shown In the financial statements

Group invesiment

During the year the Group’s capital expenditure on property,
plant and equipment was £199 0 million (2009/10 £192 2
milion} The major categones of expenditure for both main
businesses are shown below

Cash flow

In 2010/11 the Group once agan had a strong operating cash
flow Net borrowings ncreased by £39 miillon pnmanly due to
acquisihons and mvestments i jont ventures

Liquidity and debt profile

At 31 March 2011 the Group held cash and depostts of
£555 million (including £123 mullion of restncted funds) and
had undrawn facilities of £270 millon These totals nclude
£400 milion in new or renewed debt facilities aranged
dunng the year, being

* replacement of £100 milkion Put Bond with £150 mihon
2040 5 7/s% Bond
* renewal of £75 million term loans

« £115 million of new term loans and Revolving Credit
Facilities

* US$100 million longer-term facility

The Group's financing structure gives us the scope and
flexibility we need to implement our strategic objectives
and maarmise value for our shareholders

At 31 March 2011 the Group's loans and finance lease
obligations totalled £2,489 million After the £555 rmillion held
in cash this gives a net debt figure of £1,834 million, up by
£39 milhon dunng the year

Debt incurred for the construction in progress of Vindor's
Runcomn Phase 11 EFW plant amounted to £46 million at
31 March 2011

South West Water capital expenditure
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Directors’ report — Business review Financial review

Pennon Group continued to deliver revenue and profit growth in 2010/11 contnued

The major components of the Group's debt finance at
31 March 2011 are llustrated overleaf

The Group's debt has a matunty of up to 46 years, with an
average matunty of 23 years

The Group has successfully fixed or put swaps in place to fix
the interest rate on at least 50% of South West Water’s debt
for the entire K5 penod up to 2015, at an average interest rate
of 38% A further 24% of South West Water’s debt s index-
linked to 2041-2057, at an overall real rate of 1 66% Asa
result of these inbatives, South West Water's cost of finance
15 amongst the lowest in the industry

The Group’s average mnterest rate is impacted by the cost

of carry of pre-funding with interest rates on cash deposits
currently at very low levels South West Water's average rate
for 2010/11 compnses debt interest of 3 5% and pre-funding
costs of 0 5% Pennon Group Plc mcurred net nterest costs
of £3 million, reflecting funding raised to support future Vindor
nvestment. South West Water's and Pennon Group Plc's
interest rates on average net debt for the year to 31 March
2011 were both 4 0%

More than half of the Group's gross debt 1s finance leasing,
giving us the benefits of a long mahmnty profile, The interest
payable on the Group's finance leases benefits from the
fixed creddt margins which were secured at the inception
of the lease

At 31 March 2011 the far value of the Group’s borrowings
was £261 mullion less than its book value (2009/10 £286
million) as detailed in note 27 to the financial staternents.

Capital structure - overall posrhon

At the end of the financial year the Group's net debt of
£1,934 mill:on gave a ratio of net debt to (equity plus net
debt) of 71 3% (200910 74 1%).

South West Water's debt to Regulatory Capital Value (RCV)
was 57 1% at 31 March 2011 {2009/10 60 6%) which 1s within
Ofwat’s optimum range of 55% - 65%
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Vindor 1s funded by a combination of Pennon Group equity
and debt (raised by Pennon Group) and direct borrowng by
Vindor At the year-end Vindor's net debt was £487 million
{2009/10 £420 mullion) equwvalentto 4 2 imes EBITDA
(2009/10 3 7 times)

Treasury policies

The role of the Group's treasury function 1s to ensure that

we have the funding to meet foreseeable needs, to maintan
reasonable headroom for future conttngencies and to manage
mterest rate nsk. It operates only within policies approved by
the Board and undertakes no speculative trading actmty

The Board regularty monitors expected financing needs for at
least the next 12 months which are expected to be met for the
coming year from existing cash balances, loan facilihes and
operating cash flows,

The Group has constderable financial resources and a broad I
spread of business activities The Directors therefore believe |
that it 15 well placed to manage its business nsks despite the

ongoing uncertainties of the current econormic environment.

Internal borrowing

Secuth West Water's funding 1s treated for reqgulatory purposes
as effectively nng-fenced This means that funds raised by, or
for, the company are used only in the provision of water and
sewerage services and are not avalable as long-term funding
for other areas of the Group.

Going concemn

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue its operational
existence for the foreseeable future They therefore have
continued to adopt the going concem basis in prepanng
the financtal statements.

Taxaton objectives and policies

Our tax strategy, as approved by the Board, 1s to enhance
shareholder value by legally mmmising the taxes we pay

while having regard to our long-term relationship with the
tax authonties We will consider bona fide arrangements




Summansed cash flow

2010 200810
—_— . o e ) C e . ; - i . B Em
Cashwflow fromoperations . . — . . m2 _se2
Pension contnbubons (36) {16)
Net cash inflow from operations ) 376 366
Net interest paid e - . U - I
Dvdendsandtaxpad _ ~  _ _ . ) R 1. B -
Capital expenditure payments N ) {186) {184)
Acquisitions/investment in joint ventures {38) {40)
Net cash outflow o ) 3 ) _ A2y &
Sharesissued . i o } o 2 2
Equity component of convertible bond 1ssued ) - 10
Debt acquired with acquisitions ) (22) 8)
Debt indexaton/interest accruals @ {4)
Increase in net bormowings {39} {3)

* Restated for IFRIC 18

which are integral to our business and which qualify for tax
exemption or relief

The total tax charge for the year of £16 9 millon was less than
the charge which weuld have ansen from the accounting
profit before tax of £188 5 million taxed at the statutory rate
of 28% A reconcihation 1s provided in note 9 to the financial
statements

The Group made a net payment of £43 2 million of UK
corporation tax in the year (2009/10 £3 8 milkon) The
previous year included refunds received from HM Revenue
& Customs ansing from the reassessment of payments

In earier years i

The Group's total tax contnbution extends significantly
beyond the UK corporation tax charge

Total taxes amounted to £327 milhion of which £63 million was
collected on behalf of the authernties for net VAT and employee

payroll taxes

The most significant taxes mvolved together with thewr profit
impact were

* landfill tax of £158 million was accounted for by the Group
on behalf of HM Revenue & Customs Landfill tax s an
operating cost which 1s chargeable to customers and I1s
contamed within revenue In addition the Group mcurred
landfill tax of £26 million on the disposal of waste to third
parties This 1s an operating cost for the Group and reduces
profit before tax

* Value Added Tax {(VAT) of £20 million (net) was collected
by the Group and paid to the taxation authonties, VAT has
no matenal iImpact on profit before tax. The increase of
£13 milion compared with the previous year 1s due to the
increase In the rate of VAT and Vindor's increased revenue

busmess rates of £23 million were paid to locaf authortties
This 15 a direct cost to the Group and reduces profit
before tax

* employment taxes of £43 milhon include employees’ Pay As
You Earmn {PAYE} and total National Insurance Contributions
(NICs) Employer NICs of £11 milion were expensed
approximately 94% to operating costs with 6% caprahsed
to property, ptant and equipment

* Fuel Excise Duty of £12 mullion related to transport costs.
This reduced profit before tax.

The corporation tax rate for 2010/11 used to calculate the
cument year’s tax 1s 28% The forecast tax rate, as enacted
into taw on 29 March 2011, has been reduced to 26% for
2011/12 and 1s proposed to fall by a further 1% per annum
until the financial year 2014/15 when the rate will be 23%

In November 2010, as part of the PwC Building Public Trust
Awards, Pennon Group Plc won the Tax Reporting in the FTSE
250 Award The awards reward commitment of the largest
histed companies i the UK to communicating their sustamable
performance The tax award recognises the most transparent
disclosure of tax strategy, tax performance and the wider
mpact of tax

Pensions

The Group operates defined pension schemes for certain
existing employees of Pennon Group, South West Water
and Vindor The main schemes were closed to new entrants
on or before 1 Apnl 2008

At 31 March 2011 the Group's pension schemes showed
a deficit (before deferred tax} of £86 million {2009/10 £108
million) Net habiities of £64 million (after deferred tax)
represented less than 3% of the Group's total market
caprtalisation at 31 March 2011

An actuanal valuation of the mam scheme as at 31 March
2010 has now been completed South West Water's cash
contnbutions to the scheme are within Ofwat’s Final
Determination for the K5 penod

Insurance

Pennon Group manages s property and third party nsks
through msurance polictes that mamly cover property,
business mtermruption, pubiic llability, environmental pollution
and employer's hability

The Group uses three tiers of insurance to cover
operating nsks

» self-insurance - Group companes pay a moderate
deductible on most clams

* cover by the Group’s subsidiary (Perunsula Insurance
Limited) of the layer of nsk between the self-insurance
and the cover provided by extemal msurers

* cover provided by the external nsurance market, arranged
by our brokers with insurance companies which have good
credit ratings
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Directors’ report — Business review Risk review

Principal risks and uncertainties

The following risks and uncertainties have been identified
from Pennon Group’s risk management process as potentially
having a material adverse effect on its business, financial
condition, results of operations and reputation. They are
managed as described below but are not wholly within
Pennon Group’s total control and may still resuit in a material
adverse impact on the Group. Factors besides those listed
could also have a material adverse effect on the Group.

Risk and impact Commentary and miigation Change

Law and regulatory

( hanges in law, regulation or | There 1s a wide range of laws and regulations and policy decisions of government
ecisions by governmental and regulators which could have a matenally adverse effect on the results of
bodies or regulators could bperations of both South West Water and Vindor Examples nclude
ave a matenal adverse

ffect on our financial results [ 3 | compliance with EU legislation, the UK has landfill diversion, recyding and

Or operations recovery targets These, together with the impact of waste recycling regulations,
higher producer respensibility obligations and pre-treatment requrements,
coupled with nsing landfill tax, wil continue further to reduce landfil volumes,
profits and possibly {over time)} landfill asset values within Vindor (whist at the
same time beaing supportve of Vindor's recycing and renewable energy activities)

the developmert of greater competion In the water .ndustry could reduce South
West Water's revenues As part of ts nsk management and business strategic
planning processes the company evaluates developments and proposals for
compettion which could also prowde opportunties for business expansion
Legislation will be required for any further extension of compettion in the water
and sewerage senices markets The company evaluates proposals for regulatory
reforrm and contnbutes fully to consultations and other forms of dialogue wath
reguiaters and stakeholders in order to effectively communicate s views

higher standards of environrmental protection and qualty standards could
increase costs for both South West Water and Vindor Specrfically for South
West Water such costs are met through the five-year regulatory price review
mechanism but not &l changes may be funded immediately or at all Withun
Vindor, higher costs are sometmes, but not always, recovered through
contractual arangements with waste authonties

changes in the Renewable Cbligation Certrficate (ROC) pncing mechanism could
sgnificantly reduce revenues for Vindor The Government has however made

a strong commitrment to renewables which is key to mesting the UK's long-term
carbon reducton strategy and in particular to the grandfathenng of existing

Non Fossil Fuel Obhgation (NFFO) contracts

(—-® —> —>

How we manage nsk internaily
The manner n which we manage nsk s set out on page 43
Key

€ Unchanged dunng year
T Increased dunng year
d  Reduced dunng year
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Risk and impact
Law and regulatory coninued

Economic condiens

Economic condiions could
matenally affect the Group’s
revenues and profrtabiiity

Commentary and mrigation Change

* the planning regme may have the effect of restncting the development of future
waste treatment facies by Vindor Whilst Vindor has plans for further new
treatmernt facilihes it has been successful n cbtaning planning permission for e
EfW plants at some key sites over the past year Nevertheless this 1S an ongoing
matenal nsk to the future growth of Vindor and realisation of s strategy

* |1 2008 the Government announced its intertion to transfer an element of
sewers and pumping stations currently owned by private ndmduals and
businesses to sewerage undertakers Whilst legistation has not yet been
quite finalised, it 1s anticipated that the transfer will occur i the autumn
of 2011 and there will be additional costs for South West Water which
should be recoverable through the regulatory pnce review mechanism

* chmate change and resuthng mcreased regulatory standards required could
Increase costs for South West Water The company has plans ready and will
adapt the way it conducts its business to respond efiectively to the hotter, e
dner summers and wetter wanters which are anticipated

« the five-year regulatory pnce review for South West Water assumes operating
cost savings The company has a track record, and remains confident, of e
delivenng the assumed operating cost savings In the current regulatory pencd
A mgjor restructunng programme s cumrently being implemented to contnbute
towards the additional efficiencies required

Whilst the Group dees have some exposure to reduced economic actvity
and inflation/deflation, South West Water’s revenues are economicalty
regulated through the pnce review mecharnism and Vindor has a dwversified
revenue stream which includes exports to fast-growing developing
economies Examples of areas of impact are
+ In Vindor overall volumes of waste and other matenals supplied have

reduced due 1o less actvity In municipal and commercial markets in

current economic conditions  These may be expected to recover

somewhat as the economy recovers

+ the Government’s recent Spending Review has put pressure on local authormty
services, ncluding household waste recydling sites’ operabons, which s expected
{o have a short-term mpact Vindor s workang with local authorty clients to dehver
essential recycling and waste management senices N an economic manner

¢ recyclate pnces are, like any commodity, volatile and are directly impacted by
world economic condions  The effect 1s most significant on recycling volumes
of Internationally traded commodities such as paper, card, plastics and metals e
However recyclate 1s typically cheaper than virgin matenals which s the
impact on prices for good qualty recyclate and in 2010/11 recyclate revenues
per tonne ncreased back up to the peak levels expenenced befare the global
financial onsis )

* ‘Brown energy prices’ continue to be determmned by the world and UK energy
market and may go down as well as up Prces in 2010411 were around £30
per MwWh lower than acheved In 2009/10 which affected the company’s power
generation comparative performance n 2010/11

* South West Water's revenues can be reduced by higher bad debts and
customer affordabiity (n addiion to existing debt reduction strateges, which ( )
are kept under review, the company continues to implement new natves
to improve and secure cash collection, including the use of property charging
orders The accounts of major customers are kept under close review
Provison was made i the last requiatory price review for companies to make
an application for an Intenm Determination (a pnce increase) in the event of
household bad debts being significantly above the amount allowed by the
economc regulator due to worsenng econamic arcumstances in the company’s
Operating area South West Water has worked with the Governimnent on the
findings of the Waker Report and has promoted faimess for its bl payers and
actvely sought to ntroduce and promiote practcal measures to help customers
struggling to pay thewr water bills
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Principal risks and uncertainties contnued
Direciors' report - Business review Risk review

Risk and impact

Finance and funding

Access to finance and
funding costs may be
adversely affected by
perceved credit rating and”
by prolonged penods of
market volatity or iquidity
and we are subject to
hmtatons and restnctive
obhigations n respect of
our borrowing and debt
arrangements

Operating performance
Poor operating performance
or a fatlure of, or interrupticn
to, our operating systems

or the inabilty to carry

out network operations or
damage to infrastructure
may have a matenal adverse

impact on both our financial
positton and reputation

Capntal investment

The failure or increased
costs of capital projects or
acquisrtions or joint ventures
not achieving predicted
revenues or performance
could have a matenal
adverse effect on both

our financial posrbon

and reputaton

Commentary and miigation Change

The Group may be unable to rase sufficient funds to finance its actviies or such
funds may be only avallable at higher cost The Group has robust treasury policies
In place which nciude always having pre-funded surplus cash and/or committed
facities to cover at least one year's estimated cash flow and arranging for no more
than 20% of net bomowing to mature In any one year In addition in respect of
South West Water the economic regulator has a statutory duty to ensure that ¢ s
able to finance its functions i the nomal course of business  The Group has to
date obtaned funding at lower effectve average interest rates cormpared with many
other companes n its sector of actvty In addmon the Group’s debt has a long
average matunty profile of 23 years

" Poor opératmg performance for both South West Water or Vindor could resuft m

enforcement action, prosecutions, koss of permits and cvil action which coudd all e )

result n negatve publicty, loss of customer confidence due to poor performance
and, eventually, reduced demand for services and Increased fixed costs

Within South West Water a major network fallure or intermuption may be suffered or

the company may not be able to camry out crtical network operations Operational

performance could be matenally adversely affected by a falure to maintan the

health of the systermn or network which could cause South West Water to fail agreed

standards of service or specified qualty standards Specafic measures taken by

South West Water include

* aWater Resources Plan prepared every five years which i1s reviewed annually for
a range of chmate change and demand scenancs The curent Water Resources
Plan indicates that no new reservorrs are required before the planning honzon
of 2035 However investment is needed to develop the overall trunk main
infrastnucture, to expand ireatment capacity and to enhance certan pumped
storage facities

* established procedures and conirols as well as contingency plans and naident
management procedures aganst the nsk of contamnateon to water supplies and
against fallures of sewers and at waste water treatment works Insurance policies
are also mantaned in relaton to these nsks, although there can be no assurance
that all or any of the costs assocated with these nsks would be covered or that
coverage will continue to be avalable in the future

Vindor operates in a competitve marketplace where pnce and senvice are key

precursors to success Sound policies and accredited procedures are in place with

mternal and external nspections, to mantain operations and achieve performance
__ standards set

" South West Water may not carry out its caprtal programme within the pnee limits

and with the efficiencies determined by Ofwat However South West Water
does have a track record of delivenng tts caprtal programme in accordance e
with regudatory requiremenits and progress Is regularly monitored and revewed
Within Vindor there 1s a nsk of project or contract failure or overpaying for an
acquisiion However the Group has expenenced and dedicated project/contract

teams, detailed due diligence on all projects and acquisions 1s camed out by e
expenenced and qualified staff, and wherever possible back-to-back agreements

with and guarantees from supphers are entered into
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Risk and impact

Customer demand

A reduced customer base,
increased competition
affecting pnces or reduced
demand for services

could have a matenal

adverse impact on our
financial posiion

Business systems

Information technology and
busmess continuity systems
and processes may fail
which ntay cause matenal
disruption to the Group's
businesses and could have

a matenal adverse impact

on both our financial posrion
and reputation

Forward-locking statements

" Some of Vindor's IT systems require replacement, develépm"ent or upgrécﬂng; to

_ continutty systems in place

Commentary and mittgation Change

business mduding in particuar for recyclate volume, landfill gate fees and bidding
for Public Prvate Partnership contracts {(PPPs) However Vindor prowidas recycing
and waste management services which are locally delivered services from locally
managed facilites and a substartial amount of ts tumover 1s contracted over the
medium or long-term With regard to major competitive projects beng pursued
there are bamers {0 enfry due to planning permissions being difficult to obtain

and significant investment requirements

Competitve pressures In respect of South West Water are referred to n the first
nsk set out at the begnning of this section

meet the growing requirements of the business and i1 sorme areas new technology
being introduced may not operate or perform according to stated specfication
requrements Vindor has a comprehensive development prograrmime and plans

In place to address the deficiencies entified and seek to ensure business
continuty In the event of falure

Whilst there always remans the nsk of interruption, fadure or third party interverthon
which could have a matenal adverse impact on the operation of South West
Water's business, the company does have well developed IT systems and business

This Business review contains forward-locking statements regarding the financial posrtion, results of operations; cash flows;
dividends, financing plans; business strategies, operating efficiencies, capital and other expenditures, competitive positions,
growth opportunihies, plans and objectives of management, and other matters, These forward-looking statements, including,
without imrtation, those relating to the future business prospects, revenues, working capital, hquidity, caprtal needs, interest
costs and income m relation to Pennon Group and its subsidianes, wherever they occur in this Business review, are necessanly
based on assumpthions reflecting the views of Pennon Group and its subsidiary companies, as appropnate. They involve

a number of nsks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ matenally from those suggested by the forward-
lookung statements Such forward-looking statements should, therefore, be considered in the light of relevant factors, including
those set out in this ‘Group nsk review’ section
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Drectors’ report — Business review Corporate responsibility

Our commitment to corporate responsibility

At Pennon Group the nature of our two operating businesses

places corporate responsibility at the heart of our activities.

Both South West Water and Viridor have a significant role

to play in ensuring the environmental, social and economic |
wellbeing of the communities in which they operate. |

Detivenng operational excellence n the form of industry-
leading dnnking and bathing water quahty; and low leakage
figures, are key enwvironmental and social achievements for
South West Water Vindor's growing recycling and energy
recovery operations, alongside its focus on proactive
environmental management systems and responsible land
stewardship, clearly demonstrate how embracing the green
agenda has been good for business

At Group level the Board has established a range of corporate
responsibility objectives that dnve the targets of both
companies These areto

Manage Pennon Group as a sustainable and successful
business for the benefit of shareholders and other
stakeholders

Aim to ensure that all our business activities have
a positive economic, social and environmental impact
on the communities in which we operate

Engage with all our stakeholders and to foster good
relationships with them

Stnive for the highest standards of health and safety in
the workplace so as to minmmise accidents, incidents
and lost time

Develop and motvate our emiployees, treat them famly
and ensure that they are fully engaged in all aspects
of Pennon Group’s objectives

Aspire to leadershup in minimusimg enussions that
contnbute to cimate change and develop climate
change adaptation strategies

Aspire to leadership in all aspects of waste prevention
and resource efficiency
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South West Water and Vindor are responsible for including
corporate responsibility objectives and targets withmn ther
own business plans which are aligned to these Group
objectives The Corporate Responsibiity Committee has

a wide-ranging responsibility for reiewing the two main
operating businesses’ strateqes, policies, targets and
performance against these objectives and targets

Pennon Group’s corporate responsibility KPls

for 2010/11 covered

* renewable energy generation

* greenhouse gas emissions data

* recyclng volumes

* community support, sponsorship and donations
RIDDOR accident statistics

* capital investment

The Group’s performance agamnst these KPls 1s detalled
on page 29

These are the key issues that drive our approach to
sustanabilty Full details of our Social and Environmental
Policy and our Ethicaf Business Policy that underpin them may
be found at pennon-group co uk where the full 2011 Corporate
Responsibility Reports for South West Water and Vindor will
also be publshed, in July and August respectively

This summary report on corporate responsibilty covers
our main activities in the areas of environmental, social
and economic sustainability.

1 Environmental sustainability

We stnve to make a positive contnbution to environmental
sustainability by focusing on the interinked concemns

of mproving the envirenment, minimising the Group's
carbon footpnnt and increasing resource efficiency
through focusing on




Corporate responsibility KPis
Renewable energy generation
Greenhouse gas emissions data
Recycling volumes L
Community support, sponsorship and donations,

« South West Water Comml:l'n;tg Sponsor”sh:p Fund

RIDDOR accident statistics
Capital investment

Cor;m"mnzty supp;ort, :.s;;onsor_shnp and dc—:nahon&—
* Pennon Environmental Fund'
¢ Pennon Chantable Donations Committee

' Pernon Emvaronmental Fund s a subset of Vindor Credits

a. Environmental improvement

Instances of significant and successful environmental
mprovement projects dunng the year by South West Water
mclude a record 90 3% of designated bathing waters in its
region meeting the EU Guideline (or excellent) standard,

up from 84% in 2009, while 96 5% passed the mandatory
mimimum standard

The company has increased the breadth of rts ‘Upstream
Thinking' strategy following the successful completion of the
Exmoor 'Mrires’ Restoration pilot project, which was reported
on i last year's report It has enlarged s work on Exmoor,
launched the 'Mires’ project for Dartmoor and extended its
work with farmers and other landowners to promote good
catchment management All these inthatives aim to provide
long-tenm improvermnents in water quality and control water
treatment costs The Exmoor ‘Mmes’ restoration project has
received a national Golden Green Apple Award

Under its Business Management System Vindor sets clear
annual targets for continual improvement in its environmentat
performance, including targets to enhance biodiversity and
habitat creation on its landholdings The work of previous
years came to frurion with the awarding of the Wildlife Trust's
Biodversity Benchmark at three of the company’s closed
landfill sites Land management plans have been developed
at these sites to ensure that the biodiversity action plan
targets are met by protecting and enhancing the habitats
and species found there This scheme recognises that the
company's landholdings, particulardy closed landfill sites,

can have significant benefits to plants and wildlfe. More
sites have been identified to achieve the standard.

Vindor continued to invest in mitigating the potential adverse
impacts of landfill-generated leachate and gas, with an
additional £2 2 million mvested n leachate control systems
and £7 7 mullion in landfill gas control and power generation
Landfill operations and associated impacts continue to
decline as Vindor focuses on realising the value of waste
through rts recycling and energy recovery actvities

South West Water Vindor
o _ 13.79GWh — .. T52GWH
152,4161COze 1,735,880 COwe
52,400 tonnes o! dry sghds" ; . 1,717,512 tonnes
- £0 2m
- L £95m
o £79671 C S
actual number 24 actual number 62
{2,008 per 100,000 employees) {2,049 per 100,000 employees)
£125tm L £73.7m
- - . Pennon
L ) ; . . ) £72,043
£78,678

b. Climate change/greenhouse gases
Durng 2010/11 South West Water achieved a 0 7% reduction
i emissions from energy use compared with the previous year

It also generated 13 8GWh through captunng and processmg
methane gas frorm Anaerobic Digestion {AD) plants at waste
water treatment works and from hydro-electne power plants

South West Water made good progress in the development
of renewable energy systems with major overhaul and control
system replacements for its larger sewage gas combined
heat and power plants to give improved rehiability and
increased outputs

During 2010/11 it received the Certified Emissions and
Measurement and Reduchion Standard (CEMARS},
recognising the ngour of its emission reductions over the last
three years and its plans for the future

Vindor's dedicated intemal carbon management function
oversees compliance with the Carbon Reduction Commitment
Energy Efficiency Scheme {CRCEES), pursues energy
efficiency and carbon reduction intiatives and ensures
continual improvements in external carbon disclosure

Carbon management training has been provided to sentor
management throughout the company Further traiming and
active involvement opportuntties are being made avalable
to all employees over the coming year

A number of energy efficiency projects at some of the
company’s most energy-intensive sites continue  Signrficant
energy savings, with associated carbon reductions, are
expected to be realised throughout 2011/12

Towards the end of 2010 the natonwide installation of
Automated Meter Reading ‘smart meters’ commenced,
with completion expected dunng the first half of 2011
Data from these will dnve energy awareness and energy
efficiency measures.,
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Directors’ report — Business review Corporate responsibility

Our commitment to corporate responsibility contnued

For the first ime, the Carbon Saver Gold Standard was
achieved by two of Vindor's departments (and the company
15 awaiting confirmation of a third). This was most notable as
ong is at its polyrners recycling facility in Skelmersdale which
18 Vindor's most significant energy-intensive operation

Vindor 1s a major player in the renewable energy sector which
1s helping the UK to meet its landfill diversion and renewable
energy targets. Dunng 2010/11 the company increased its
electnerty generation capacity from landfill gas to 108MW

(up from 100MW the previous year and from 27MW in 2002)

In doing so 1t also prevented 86% of the methane produced by
its landfill operations, which 1s 21 times as damaging as CO,,
from entenng the atmosphere By recycling an ever-growing
proportion of the matenals and waste t manages, or by using
it in its energy recovery operations, the company prevents
further landfill gases from being generated and also releases
the value n waste for the benefit of our investors

¢. Resource productivity

South West Water's quality and environmental management
systems help ensure that wastes are minirmsed and
segregated for recycling The company works with partners
and contractors to minimuse the quantiies of waste produced
and its sites have effective waste management procedures

In place.

Alongside a range of other resource efficiency progmammes
the company delivered a further 3 1GWh energy-saving
through inrhatrves across the business such as its
‘PowerDown’ challenge
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Vindor has fully embraced the green agenda as a key dniver
for its business activities, particularly its twin focus on
recycling and energy recovery Today 46% of its profits come
through recovenng the value in waste and these actwities are
continuing to grow rapidly as a proportion of its business
This 1s because the best uses of waste produced by society
(after waste prevention and reuse) are recycling followed by
the generation of renewable energy, etther through AD or by
controlled combuston

The company'’s recycling activities saw it achieve 1 7 milhon
traded tonnes of high-quality recyclate m 2010/11, up from
Just 100,000 tonnes n 2001 This was an increase from the

1 4 million tennes traded m 2009/10, drnven by acquisitions,
new and existing recycling-led contracts and the second full
year of operation for the waste management joint venture
25-year PFI contract in Greater Manchester Vindor's Energy
from Waste {EfW) cutput was also boosted by the first
operational year of its joint venture, its Lakeside EfW plant
near Heathrow With cumrent investment projects set to go live
in the near future, and others now consented, the company
has a target of 300MW of renewable energy capacity by 2015

2. Social sustainability

Penncn Group and both our two main businesses stnve to
be good neighbours and consult fully with all stakeholders,
mcluding employees, customers, shareholders and the
communities in which we operate

South West Water's focus I1s on achieving the appropnate
balance between its customers, investors and other
stakeholders It 1s therefore particularty important that it
promotes practical ways of helping these of its customers
who are struggling to pay their water bills Dunng 2010/11 1t
successfully extended its range of Inibatives to help them do
s0 - see page 11 of the Business review




For histoncal and geographical reasons the South West Water
region contains 30% of the country’s bathing waters hut just
3% of the population Conseguently the company’s customers
have faced the highest charges for water and sewerage

The company has continued to lobby the Govemment for

this unfarmess to be addressed and I1s encouraged by the
proposals being consulted on by Defra in response to the
Walker Review It has also made significant progress dunng
the year in reducing the number of complaints it receved

and in reducing the number of times customers needed to
make contact.

South West Water values ts employees and acknowledges
the mportance of the contnbution that they make to its
business The company ran a number of inthiatives dunng the
year amed at supporting their career progress and assunng
therr safety at work. While 1t was disappointing to see a nse
in health and safety incidents dunng the year, the company
has launched a high profile new behawvioural health and
safety campaign to ensure a safe working environment

for ts employees

Vindor saw a reduction dunng the year in its employee
RIDDOR accident rates which remamn below waste industry
averages Even so, along with the rest of the Group, Vindor is
targeting further improvements with a goal of achieving zero
accidents and 1s working on several mdustry-wide intiatives
partnered by the Health and Safety Executive to help with this.

Dunng the year Vindor agai strengthened its training
function helping to focus on traning delivery and indvidual
professional development Vindor employees achieved more
than double the targeted number of National Vocational
Qualifications The company's training strategy will help

to extend rts Investor n People accreditabon throughout

the company

Both businesses get involved with, and support, local
communities in the areas in which they provide services

This support 1s provided via staff involvement, direct
assistance or sponsorship of community events and projects.

Vindor provided £9 9 million of funding dunng the year for
community and environmental projects through the Landfiil
Communirties Fund via Vindor Credits

3. Economuc sustainability

Pennon Group plans and invests to deliver long-term value
for nvestors while mimimising environmental impact. Prudent
financial control means we are also benefiting from the waste
and water industnes’ lowest costs of finance, enabling the
greatest possible proportion of revenues to be reinvested or
realised as value for our investors and other stakeholders

Such an approach enabled South West Water to deliver

in 2010/11 the industry’s leading leakage performance,
near perfect drinking water qualty and a consistent ‘stable
serviceability’ rating

It has also given Vindor the opportunity to accelerate its
growth, both organically and through acquisttion, to achieve
increased future profitability through further realising the latent
value of waste

Economic mvestment 1s key to the economic sustainabiiity
of the Group

The Group's tax objectives and policies are focused on long-
terrn econormic sustainability See page 22 for details

4, Venfication

Pennon's corporate responsibility performance for 2010/11
has been audited by Acona Partners LLP, an independent
management consultancy that specialises in the areas of
sustainability and corporate responsibiity
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Drrectors’ report Other statutory information

Principal activities and business review

The pnncipal activities of the Company and s subsidianes
('the Group’) are the provision of water and sewerage services,
recycling, waste management and renewabie energy
Information regarding the Group, includmng events and its
progress dunng the year, events since the year-end and likely
future developments is contained in the Business review set
out on pages 1 to 31 of this Directors’ report.

In addition the Business review contams a fair and balanced
review of the business of the Group, including its position and
prospects, Key Performance Indicators and a descnption

of the principal nsks and uncertainties facing the Group in
accordance wrth the requirements of the Combined Code
and Section 417 of the Companies Act 2006 In addition in
accordance with the ABI Comperate Social Responsibility
Guidelines, statements are included on any significant
environmental, social and governance (ESG) nsks and the
achons taken in mitigating these nsks within the Business
review on page 24 Further information on ESG aspects of
the Group’s business are included n the Group Corporate
responsibility report on pages 28 to 31 The pnncipal
subsidianes of the Company are isted in note 39 to the
financ:al statements on page 109

Corporate governance and Directors’ responsibilibes
statements

The Directors’ responsibiities statements and the disclosures
required by Part 6 of Schedule 7 of the Large and Medium-
sized Compantes and Groups (Accounts & Reports)
Regulations 2008 and Rule DTR 7 2 are set out in the
Company’s Corporate govemnance and intemal control report
on pages 34, 35 and 38 to 44 of this Annual Report which

are hereby included within this Directors’ report by reference

Financial results and dwidend

Group profit on ordinary activiies after taxation was

£171.6 milion The Directors recommend a final dnadend

of 17 15p per odinary share to be paid on 7 October 2011
to shareholders on the register on 12 August 2011, making
a total dvidend for the year of 24 65p, the cost of which wall
be £88 2 million, leaving a credn to reserves of £83 4 million
The Business review on pages 20 to 23 analyses the Group's
financial results n more detail and sets out other financial
information, iIncluding the Directors' opmion on asset values
on page 21

Dtrectors

Following the inclusion m the UK Corporate Governance
Code (the Code) of a proviston that ail directors of FTSE
comparues should be subject to annual election by
sharehoiders, all Directors are offenng themselves up for
re-election at this year’s Annual General Meeting The Board
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continues to beheve that each Director makes an effective
and valuable contnbution to the Board, demonstrating
continued commitment to hts or her role The Non-executive
Directors, Gerard Connell, Dinah Nichols and Martin Angle,
are all considered to be independent in accordance with the
provisions of the Code They do not have service contracts
The Chairman, Ken Harvey, does have a contract for services
which 1s terminable upon 12 months’ notice All of the
Executive Directors, Colin Drummend, David Dupont and
Chrnis Loughlin, have service contracts which are due to expire
when they reach age 60 (unexprred term for David Dupont
and Chns Loughlin 1s until 10 June 2014 and 20 August 2012
respectively) with the exception of that of Colin Drummond
who has reached age 60 His contract now continues subject
to 12 months’ notice and the other Executive Directors’
contracts may also continue after they reach age 60 Formal
resolutions for the above Directors’ re-election will be
proposed at the Annual General Meetmg The Directors’
biographies are set out on pages 36 and 37

No Director has, or has had, a matenal interest, directly or
indirectly, at any time duning the year under review in any
contract significant to the Company’s business A list of alt
the Directors dunng the year is set out in the emoluments
table on page 52 Further details relating to the Directors and
their service agreements or contracts for services are set out
on pages 49 and 51 and details of the Directors’ interests in
shares of the Company are given on pages 5310 56

Directors’ insurance and indemnrtes

The Directors have the benefit of the indemnity provisions
contamed in the Company’s Articles and the Company has
mantamed throughout the year Directors’ and Officers’ iability
insurance for the benefit of the Company, the Directors and its
Officers. The Company has entered into qualifying third party
indemnity amrangements for the benefit of all its Directors in

a form and scope which comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and which were in force throughout tha
year and remains n force

Statement as to disclosure of iInfformation to auditors

a) so far as each of the Directors in office at the date of
the signing of the report 1s aware, there I1s no relevant
audrt information of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware, and

b)each of the Directors has taken all the steps each Director
ought to have taken ndividually as a director in order to
make themseltves aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of
that inforrmation




2011 Annual General Meeting business

In addrhon to routine business, resohubions will ba proposed at the Annual General Meeting to:
* renew the existing authonties to Issue a limited number of shares and to purchase up to 10% of the issued share capital

of the Company

* seek authonty to make political denations under the Political Parties, Elections and Referendums Act 2000, as amended
(it 1s not the Group’s policy to make political donations This 1s a precautionary measure which s followed by many
companies to ensure that there 1s no inadvertent breach of the law)

* re-elect Mr K G Harvey, Mr M D Angle, Mr G D Connell, Mr C | J H Drummond, Mr D J Dupont, Mr C Loughlin and

Ms D A Nichols as Directors of the Company

¢ renew the Pennon Group All-Employee Share Ownership Plan

* renew the Pennon Group Executive Share Ownership Scheme

* seek autherty to continue to call general meetings other than an annual general meeting on not less than 14 clear days’
notice (pursuant to the EU Shareholder Rights Directive shareholder authonty 1s required to continue to call meetings

on at least 14 clear days' notice)

Financial mstruments

Details of the financial nsk management objectives and
policies of the Group and the exposure of the Group to price,
credd, iquidity and cash flow nsks are set out in the Business
review on pages 22 and 26

Employment policies and employee involvernent

The Group has a cufture of continuous tmprovement through
investment in people at all levels within the Group The Group
15 committed to pursuing equality and diversity in all its
employment activities including recrutment, training, career
development and promotion and ensunng there is no bias

or discnmunation in the treatment of people In parbicular,
applicahons for employment are welcomed from persons with
disabdries and special arangements and adjstments as
necessary are made to ensure that applicants are treated fairty
when attending for interview or for pre-employment aptitude
tests Wherever possible the opportunity 1s taken to retrain
people who become disabled dunng their employment in
order to mantan therr employment within the Group

Employees are consulted regularly about changes which
may affect them erther through their trade union appomnted
representatives or by means of the elected Staff Council
which operates in South West Water for staff employees

These forums, together with regular meetings with particular
groups of employees, are used to ensure that employees are
kept up to date with the operating and financial performance
of their employer

The Group also uses a monthly information cascade process
to provide employees with important and up to date information
about key events and to receve feedback from employees.

Further information about employment matters refating to
the Group are set out on pages 13, 19, 30 and 31 of the
Business review

The Group encourages share ownership amongst its
employees by operating an HM Revenue & Customns (HMRC)
approved Sharesave Scheme and Share Incentive Plan.

At 31 March 2011 around 35% of the Group'’s employees
participated in these plans.

Research and development

Research and development activities withm the Group
mvolving water and waste treatment processes amounted
to £0 2 milion dunng the vear (2009/10 £0 2 million)

Pennon Group donations

Bunng the year donations amounting to £78,678 (200910
£63,609) were made Further details are included on page 29 of
the Group Corporate responsibility report. No political donations
were made (2009410 Nil)

Tax status
The Cornpany 1s not a close company within the meaning

of the Income and Comoration Taxes Act 1988

Payments to supphers

lt1s the Group’s payment policy for the year ending 31 March
2012 to follow the Code of The Better Payment Practice Group
on supplier payments Information about the Code can be
obtained from the website payontime co uk The Company

will agree payment terms with ndividual suppliers in advance
and abide by such terms The raho, expressed in days,
between the amount invoiced to the Company by its suppliers
dunng 2010/11 and the amourit owed to its trade creditors at
31 March 2011, was 14 days

Purchase of own ordinary shares

The Company has authonty from shareholders to purchase up
to 10% of its own ordinary shares {as renewed at the Annual
General Meeting m 2010) which was vahd as at 31 March

2011 and remains cumrently valid Of the 5,092,574 shares

held in Treasury at 31 March 2010, 783,007 were subsequently
re-issued under the Company’s employee share schemes

for proceeds of £1 6 million

Independent auditors

PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP were appointed auditors
until the conclusion of the twenty-second Annual General
Meeting A resolution for therr re-appointment upon the
recommendation of the Audit Committee of the Board will
be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Appointed business

South West Water Limrted 1s required to publish additional
financial information relating to the ‘appointed business’

as water and sewerage undertaker in accordance with the
Instrument of Appomtment from the Secretary of State for
the Environment A copy of this inforrmation 1s available on
the webstte southwestwater co uk or upon application to the
Group Company Secretary at Peninsula House, Rydon Lane,
Exeter EX2 7THR.

Annual General Meeting

The twenty-second Annual General Meeting of the Company
will be held at the Sandy Park Conference Centre, Sandy Park
Way, Exeter, Devon EX2 7NN on 28 July 2011 gt 11 00am
Details of the resolutions are summansed above and set out
in the separate Notice of Annual General Meeting which 1s
circulated to shareholders wrth this Annual Report or provided
by electronic communication via the Company’s website
pennon-group co uk

Informaticn required by Section 311A
of the Companies Act 2006 1s also on the Company's website

By Order of the Board
AN

Ken Woodier
Group General Counsel & Company Secretary
22 June 20M
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Governance

Chairman’s introduction to governance

The Board remains committed to the highest standards of
corporate governance with the aim of continuing to enhance

its effectiveness.

Dear shareholder

| am pleased

to introduce

the Corporate
Governance Report
for 2011 on behalf
of the Board.

Ken Harvey

Chaiman,

Pennon Group Plc

The Annual Report 1s the principal
means of reporting to our shareholders
on the Board's govemnance policies.

This Report sets out how the main and
supporting pnnciples of good corporate
governance contamned in Section 1 of
the Combined Code (June 2008 version),
have been applied in practice. The Code
15 publicly available on the Financial
Reporting Counci (FRC) website
frcpublications com

Following the publication of the updated
Combined Cede (now the UK Corporate
Govermnance Code} by the FRC in June
2010 and the 1ssuance of the FRC's
Guidance on Board Effectiveness in
March 2011 we took the opportunity to
review our governance prachices and
procedures Whilst we will be reporting
formally on the updated Code in next
year's Annual Report (as required by

the updated Code), | am pleased to

say that our review has indicated that
we are well placed to comply fully with
s provisions

Role of the Board and its effectiveness
My pnmary role as Chaimman is to
provide leadership to the Board and

to provide the nght environment to
enable the Directors and the Board as a
whole to perform effectively to promote
the success of the Company for the
benefit of its shareholders. In doing

so we take account of the interests of
our customers, employees, suppliers,
communities in which we operate and
other interested stakeholders
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Although 1 firmly believe we do have
good govemnance in place and operate
effectively as a Board, there 1s always
room for mprovement. Each year

we cany out a detailed performance
evaluation of the Board and each of the
Committees as well as of the Directors
and the Group General Counsel &
Company Secretary Further details of
the review are set out later in this report.
One particular aspect | am always
mindful of is the need to ensure that the
Non-executive Directors continue to
have appropnate up to date knowledge
and understanding of both South West
Water and Vindor as they develop and
pursusa new Inrtiatives. It 1s with that in
mind that dunng the year the Board
has had a number of visits to key sites
within both South West Water and
Vindor and has met and discussed
current issues with key managers and
employees across the Group Our visits
have been to a broad range of waste
plants in Scotland, Greater Manchester
and near London (Lakeside), Household
Waste Recycling Srtes and traditional
and modem sewage treatment facilities
The Beard has also received a number
of presentations on key developments
in the businesses including remote
monitonng, sustainable energy saving
and environmental protection intiatives

As reported last year, the Board has
been considenng the options availlable
for an extemally facilitated performance
evaluation in accordance with the
updated Code’s provisions Dunng




2011/12 the Board will be undertaking
an evaluation supported by an
mdependent extemnal consultancy, with
the aim of achieving real added value for
the Directors and the Board as a whole

Shareholder engagement

The Directors and | recognise the
mportance and value of regular
communications with our shareholders
This ensures that we understand ther
needs and wishes and hopefully that
we provide them with confidence
that we have the nght govermnance
structures, processes and systems

in place to assist us in achieving our
stated objectives

A regular dialogue with the Company's
institutional shareholders 1s mamtamed
through a comprehensive investor
relations programme Dunng the year
some 60 meetings with institutional
shareholders (including with prospective
shareholders) were held and attended
by the Group Director of Finance and the
Company’s Investor Relations Manager
The Chief Executive of South West
Water, the Chuef Executive of Vindor and
| also attended when appropnate The
Group Director of Finance reports to the
Board regularly on major shareholders’
views about the Group and every six
months a presentation s receved by
the Board from the Company’s Brokers
on equity market developments and
shareholder perceptions.

| also actively encourage the
participation of shareholders at our
Annual General Meeting {(AGM) and

as usual at our 2011 AGM on 28 July

all our Directors am to be present
together with a number of directors and
executives of South West Water and
Vindor to meet with shareholders to
discuss the business of the Group

Annual re-electon of directors

it 1s Pennon Group's view, along with
many other companies and interested
parties, that the decision of the FRC in
updating the Combined Code to include
a provision for the annual re-election

of all directors was not in the interests
of companies generally and could be
detnmental to good governance Our
concerns are that it can encourage
short-termism by shareholders and
removes the protection provided i most
company's Articles of Association to
ensure that there 1s a continung number
of directors on the Board who have
in-depth expenence and understanding
of their business. It could also make

it more difficult to recrurt new board
members Even though we regard this
change as not being n the interests

of companies or therr shareholders,

we nevertheless do wish to ensure full
compliance with the updated Code
wherever possible and therefore the
Board has agreed that each Director wall
stand for re-election at the 2011 AGM
Along with many other companies we
will monitor the effect of this provision
over time

Compliance with Combmed Code

and cther requirements

| am pleased to report that throughout
the year the Company comphed with
the prowisions and applted the main
pnnciples of Section 1 of the Combmed
Code with no exceptions to report -~

My introduction to this Corporate
Govemnance Report and the following
sechions are made in compliance

with the Combined Code, FSA Listing
Rule 9 8 6 and FSA Disclosure and
Transparency Rules 7 1 and 7 2 and
cover the work of our Board and

its Committees, our intemal control
systems and procedures ncluding nsk
managernent, our corporate governance
statements relating to share capral and
control, and our Going Concern and
Directors’ Responsibilities Statements.

Ken Harvey
Chaimran

22 June 20f11

s |
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Governance

Board of Directors

Chairman

Kenneth George Harvey CBE,
BSc
Chairman

Committees
Nominaton {Charman}

Appotrited on 1 March 1997
Ken was formerly charman and
chief executive of Norweb Pie
He was chaiman of National
Gnd Holdings in 1995 and was
premously deputy charman of
London Blectnety and earfier ds
engnesnng director He has also
been charman of a number of
Iimred ard private equity funded
companias Currently heisthe
senior independent non-executve
director of National Gnd Pic

Executive Directors

Colin Irwin John Hamilton
Drummond MA, MBA, LTCL,
ccMmi

Chief Executive, Vindor

Committees
Corporate Responsibility
Executive

Appointed on 1 Apnl 1992 Pror

1o joning the Company Colin

was a dvisional chuef exacutive

of Coats Viyella, having previously
been corporate development
drecior of Renold plc, a strategy
consultant with the Beston
Consutting Group and an official

of the Bank of England Hes
charman of the Government's
Lving with Environmental Change
Business Advisory Board, of UKTI's
Ervironmental Sector Advisory
Group, anrd of the Ervironmental
Sustainability Knowledge Transfer
Network. He 1s a senior visiing
research fellow in Earth Scences
at Oxford Unversity; and a Past
Master of the Worshiphl Company
of Water Conservators
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David Jeremy Dupont MA, MBA
Group Director of Finance

Committees
Executive

Apported on 2 March 2002
Daid was formerty regulatory

and finance director of South
West Water Lirnited, having joined
Pennon Group Plc (then Scuth
West Water Pic) in 1992 as strategic
planning manager Previously

he held business planning and
development roles with Gateway
Corporation He s a member

of the CBI Envirocnmental Affairs
Committee and the CBI Scuth
West Regonal Counc

Chnstopher Loughiin BSc Hons,
MICE, CEng, MBA

Chief Executive, South

West Water

Committees
Comorate Responsibilty
Executve

Appointed on 1 August 2006 Chns
was previously chisf operating
officer with Lioyd's Register and
earfier in his career was an executve
director of Brish Nuclear Fuels

Plc and executive chaiman of
Magnax Blectne Plc He was also

a senior diplornat in the Briish
Embassy, Tokyo, working in both
the consuiting and contracting
sectors. Chns started his career

as a chartered engineer and
subsequently held a number

of senior positions with British
MNuclear Fuels He has been
charman of Water UK since

1 April 2008 and since the year-
end has been appointed a non-
executive director of the Cormwall
Local Enterpnse Partnership




Independent Non-executive Directors

Martin David Angle BSc Hons,
FCA
Non-executive Director

Commitiees

Audit

Comporate Responsbility
Normination
Remuneration (Charman)

Appointed on 1 Decamber 2008
Martin currently holds nen-
execuive directorships with Savills
plc, OAQ Severstal, Shuaa Capital
PSC and The National Exhibyikan
Centre where he s Charman. In
adddion he sits on the Adwvisory
Board of the Warwick Business
School and the Board of the FA
Foundzhon Formmerly he held senior
posttions with Terra Firma Capital
Partners and vanous of &s portfolio
companies, inchuding the executne
charmanship of Waste Recycling
Group bmited Before that he was
the group finance director of Tl
Group pic and held a number

of senior investment bankang
posiions with SG Warburg & Co
Ltd, Morgan Stanley and Dresdner
Klenwort Benson

Gerard Dominic Connell MA
Semor Independent
Non-executive Director

Committees

Audiit (Chaman)
Corporate Responsibility
Nomnaton
Remuneraticn

Appointed on 1 October 2003
Until last year Gerard was group
finance drector of Wincanton Pic
Premously he was a director of Hill
Samuel and a managing directar
of Bankers Trust having rained
onginally at Pnce Waterhouse

He has held other corporate
finance and business development
postions N the Crity and In industry
He 15 also a govermor of King's
College School, Wimbledon

Dinah Alison Nichols CB,
BA Hons
Non-executive Director

Committees

Audit

Corporate Responsibity (Chavman)
Nomination

Rarmuneration

Appointed on 12 June 2003

Dinah was formerly Director General
Environment at the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
and previously held vanous senor
appontments within Government,
Including being head of the water
directorate dunng the penod of
watter privatisation Shes alsoa
Crown Estate Counsellor, a non-
exacutive director of Shres Smaller
Comparves Fic and a director

of several chantable trusts

Company Secretary

Kenneth David Woodier, Solicitor,
CMA, DMS, CPE Law

Group General Counsel &
Company Secretary

Comrmuttees
Executrve

Apponted company secretary

to the Board n March 1888 Ken
was formerly the head of group
legal services at Pennon Group Pl
{then South West Water Pic) from
February 1990 Previously he held
senwor legal posiions withH P
Bulmer (Hotdings) Pic, Investors

in Inclustry Plc (3) and Sevem

Trent Water
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Governance

Corporate governance and internal control

The Board and its

Committees

The Board

The Directors, iIndependence

and responsibilities

The Board of Directors at the end of

the year compnsed the Chaiman,

three Executive Directors and three
Non-executive Directors All three Non-
executive Directors are considered to be
independent as none of the relationships
or circumstances set out in paragraph
A.31 of the Combined Code apply to
them They are also considered to have
the appropnate skills, expenence in their
respective disciplines and personality

to bnng independent and objective
judgement to the Board's deliberations
Therr biographies on pages 36 and 37
demonstrate a broad range of business
and financial expenence Gerard Connell
is the Senior Independent Non-executive
Director His duties include the annuatl
evaluation of the performance of the
Chairman, deputising for the Chairman
when necessary and being available

as an additional point of contact on the
Board for shareholders Gerard 15 also
chamrman of the Audit Committee and m
accordance with the Combined Code’s
pnnciples relating to audit committee
membership he has recent and relevant
financial expenence (as recently he was
group finance director of Wincanton
Plc). Martin Angle 1s also a member

of the Audit Committee and he has
relevant financial expenence as set out
n his biography on page 37 Thereisa
clear division of responsibilities between

Board

Members B Appointment date Attendance
Kenneth Harvey (Charman) March 1997 Tom
Nor-executrve Drrectors. _

Martin Angle December 2008 B 117, P )
Gerard Connell October 2003 1111

Dinah Nichols June 2003 bk
Executive Directors ) oM

Colin Drummond .Apnl 1982 1111

Dawid Dupont March 2002 1M1
Chnstopher Loughlin August 2006 16M11

the roles of Chairman and the Chief
Executives of South West Water and
Vindor as recorded in the descnptions
of the roles approved by the Board All
Drectors are subject to re-election when
they have held office for three years but
at the 2011 Annual General Meeting,
regardless of whether the Director has
held office for three years, each Director
will stand for re-election reflecting the
new provision in the updated Code

The Directors on the Board and their
attendance at the 11 scheduled
meetings of the Board dunng 201011
are shown below

All Directors are equally accountable for
the proper stewardship of the Group’s
affarrs with the Non-executive Directors
having a particular responsibility for
ensunng that strategies proposed

for the development of the business
are cntically reviewed The Non-
executive Directors alse cntically
examime the operational and financial
performance of the Group and fulfil

a key role in corporate accountability
through thewr membership of the
Commuttees of the Board In addition
the Chairman holds meetings with the
Non-executive Directors without the
Executive Directors present, to discuss
performance and strategic 1ssues

How the Board operates

In accordance with Group policies

the Board has a schedule of matters
reserved for its decision and delegates
more detalled consideration of certain
matters to Board Committees, to the
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subsidiary boards of South West Water
and Vindor, to the Executive Directors;
and to the Group General Counsel &
Company Secretary, as appropnate The
matters reserved to the Board include
the approval of financial statements,
acquisrtions and disposals, major items
of capital expenditure; authenty levels
for other expenditure, nsk management,
and approval of the strategic plan and
annual operating bucdgsts

The Board operates by receving wntten
reports circulated in advance of its
meetings from the Executive Directors
and the Group General Counsel &
Company Secretary on matters wrthin
their respective business areas in the
Group Under the guidance of the
Chaiman, all matters before the Board
are discussed openly and presentations
and advice are recerved frequently from
other senior executives within the Group
or from extemal advisers

Directors have access to the adwvice and
services of the Group General Counsel
& Company Secretary and the Board
has established a procedure whereby
Directors, in order to fulfil therr duties,
may seek independent professional
adwice at the Company’s expense

The training needs of Directors are
reviewed as part of the performance
evaluation process.

Performance evaluation

The Board has intemal procedures to
evaluate the performance of the whole
Board, each Committee, the Chairman,
each indwdual Director and the Group
General Counsel & Company Secretary
The evaluation procedure relating to

the Board and its Committees was
administered for the year by the Group
General Counsel & Company Secretary
All participants’ views were sought

on a range of questions which were
specriically designed to ensure objective
evaluation of performance Responses
were then summansed and evaluated by
the Group General Counsel & Company
Secretary for the Board and each
Committee to consider and determine
whether any changes should be made




to be more effective Overall
performance was considered to be
satisfactory but a number of views
expressed by Directors on the operation
of the Board and certan Committees
were considered with a view to

further mproving performance

and governance

The Chairman’s performance was
evaluated separately by the Non-
executive Directors, led by the Senior
Independent Non-executive Director
The Chairman’s other significant
commitments outside the Group
have not changed dunng the year
and the Board 1s satisfied that such
commitments do not prejudice the
Charman’s performance in relation
to his Group role

Dealing with conflicts of interest

The Board has In place a procedure
for the consideration and authonsation
of conflicts or possible confiicts with
the Company’s interests This 1S in
accordance with the Directors’ interests
provisions of the Companies Act

2006 and the Company’s Articles of
Association which grants to Directors
authorty to approve such conflicts
subject to appropnate condrtions

Board committees

Group policies allocate the tasks

of giving detailed consideration to
specified matters, to monitoring
executive actions and to assessing
reward, to the Board Committees as
set out In the remaining sections of this
governance report and the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 45

and 46

Gerard Connell
Audit Committee
Chaiman

The Audit Committee

Members Appointment date Attendance
Gerard Connell (Charrman) October 2003 6/6

Martin Angle December 2008 6/6

Dmah Nichols June 2003 6/6

With the significant growth of Vindor
over the last few years a particular
focus this year has been seeking

to ensure that the business has the
polictes, systems and controls in
place to manage a more complex and
regionalised business across the UK,
whilst maintaining performance and
profit growth The Commsttee was
pleased to note that an additional
non-executive director was appointed
to the Vindor board together with

two additional executive directors
(responsible respectively for corporate
responsibility and regulatory matters,
and for operations), that there are
plans in place for IT systems to be
enhanced and upgraded, and that
detailed mdependent reviews had
been camed out into the systems and
controls in place, including site self-
assessment guestionnares 1o assist
i remnforcing the consistent application
of company policy at the local level

In South West Water the emphasis has
been on continuing to systematically
review and challenge both s nsks and
the controls mitigating those nsks as
recorded In a corporate nsk register
which was further enhanced in the
year The Committee was also pleased
to note that the South West Water
board had appointed a further non-
executive director and therefore now
has two independent non-executive
directors in addmion to the non-
executive chairman

We have also recognised the need to
continue to ensure that our approach
to nsk 1s appropnate, particularly m the
current challenging economic climate
and having regard to the pressures
faced by the Group We have therefore

refreshed our nsk review process this
year and in the corming months will be
camrying out a full review of the process
with extemal assistance, beanng 1n
mind that it 1s over 10 years since

the Group introduced detailed nsk
management policies and procedures
mn accordance with the Turnbull
Recommendations

As part of the Group’s nsk review
process we have assessed the key
areas of sensitivity to the Group and
these are set out on pages 24 to 27
This year we have concentrated on
the high level key nsks to the Group
and have provided an indication of
how the level of nsk has changed
over the past year

As reported in previous Annual Reports
we contmue to monitor carefully the
effectiveness of our external auditors
as well as therr Independence, beanng
in mind that it 1s recogrnised there is

a need to use our audritors' firm for
non-audit services from time to time
We have full regard to the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethicat Standards
and note that the revisions to these
standards {announced in December
2010) required no change to our
existing procedures and safeguards
as many of the recommendations had
already been adopted as best practice

Penodically a detailed review of

the prowision of extemal auditors 1s
undertaken n accordance with best
practice The last such review was
undertaken in 2006 when the current
audrttors were appomnted following a
comprehensive competitive tender
process Inaddition the auditors’
appomntment 1s reviewed annually by
the Committee As part of this annual
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The Audit Committee continued

review the Committee considers the
tenure, qualty and fees of the auditors

Qur policy for the engagement of

the auditors’ firm for non-audrt work
mnvolves the Group Director of Finance
setting out n a report to the Committee
reasons for appointing the auditors’
firm for any matenal work and obtaming
the approval of the Committee We
carefully rewiew whether it 1s necessary
for the audrtors’ firm to cany out such
work and we will only grant approval
for thetr appointment if we are satisfied
that the auditors’ independence and
objectivity are fully safeguarded

The Company’s auditors assist in this
process by ensunng that the senior
partner responsible for the external
audit of the Group remans responsible
for such audtt for no more than five
years and that there 15 a Quality Review
Partner who is involved n planning the
audit and in the reviewing of the final
accounts of the Company including
assessing any crical matters which
may be identified in the audit, The
auditors have also confirmed to the
Committee that they have complied
with all refevant guidance issued by
the Auditing Practices Board and

have implemented appropnate
safeguards including

+ all nen-audt related services, where
necessary, being performed by
persennel independent of the audit
engagement team

= no work being undertaken that
would require the audrtors to act
In a capacity as an advocate

= no aspect of the auditing N
engagement partner’s performance
heing assessed on the level of non-
audit fees charged to the Company

= the Committee Charman meeting
with the audrtors’ Quality Review
Partner pencdically to discuss the
scope and performance of their worc.

Set out on page 77 is the level of fees
paid to the Company's auditors’ firm

for audit services, or audit-related
services and non-audit services
following the guidance proposed by
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards Guidance for Auditors It

1s recogrused that the level of non-
audtt fees payable to the Company’s
audrtors’ firm In the past year was

in excess of the audit fee pad This
was pnmanly due to fees paid to the
corporate finance arm of the audrtors’
firm in refation to the major new PPP/
PFl contract gains by Vindor We
scerutinised carefully the reasons for
the engagement of the auditors’ firm in
accordance with the process descnbed
above Of paramount importance was
the continuing independence of the
auditors which the Committee was
satisfied was maintained due to the
safeguards followed by the auditors’
firm as descnbed above We were
also satisfied that it was appropnate
to appoint the auditors’ firm to
undertake such work because

of the auditors’ firm's specialist
knowledge and the imited number

of consultants with the expertise

to undertake such engagements

The Committee also acknowledged
that the absolute level of non-audit

fees payable to the Company’s auditors
15 similar to the level of non-audit

fees incumed by a number of other
comparable companies within

the FTSE 350

Another area of particular importance
to the Committee 1s the internal audit
actvities of the Group The Group has a
long standing and effective centralised
internal audit funchon together

with separate reviews undertaken
within both Scuth West Water and
Vindor A Group Internal Audrt Plan is
approved in September each year It
takes account of the activities to be
undertaken by the external auditor and
also the Group’s annual and regular
internm nsk management reviews This
approach seeks to ensure that there1s
an ongoing programme of internal and
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external audit reviews focused on key
nsk areas throughout the Group The
Group Audit Manager reports quarterly
to the Committee on audit reviews
undertaken and therr findings.

The areas of the business of the Group
which received audit attention over
the past year included for example -
Group taxation, treasury and penstons
pmcesses and admimistration, South
West Water payment processes, credit
management and debt collechion,
payroll and related HR procedures,
leakage management and IT secunty
and network administration, and
Vindor PFl approval processes,
resource management including
recyclate frading and foreign exchange
management, WEEE recycling, power
generation sales, landfill sie practices
and procedures and IS secunty and
network administration

We have considered a range of matters
dunng the year in accordance with

our established calendar of busmess
and Terms of Reference including

in parbcular

« reviewing the accounting polcies
and reporting judgements adopted
by the Group In prepanng its financial
statements, We were satisfied that
they were appropnate to provide
a fair assessment of the financial
performance of the Group

* agreeing the external audrtors’
strategy for carmrying out the audit
dunng the past financial year

* carying out a review of the Half Year
Report with the external auditors

considenng a report from the
extemnal auditors on the review

of the financial year-end and
meeting them in the absence of
management to discuss therr remrt
and any issues ansing from the audit,
including management's treatment
of significant judgements which the
audrtors had confirmed {following
discussion with management) were
considered to be satisfactory




+ considenng an intemal control
report from the externa! audrors
which reviewed the co-ordination
of activities with the Group’s
intemal audit function

* keeping under review the
effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls, including all
matenal financial, operational
and complance controls and
nsk management systems

* monitoning and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s nternal
audrt funchon and approving the
annual internal audit plan

* reviewing the findings of the ntemnal
audt function and reviewmng
and menitonng management’s
responsiveness to such findings

+ overseeing the relationship with
the external audrtors including
ther appomtment, remuneration,
re-appointment and the monstonng
of therr ndependence and
objectivity particularty having
regard to the supply of any non-
audrt services by the audrtors’ firm
reviewing the level of audit and
non-audit fees paid

After consideration of the reports
provided by the external auditors, and
our assessment of the performance
and independence of the auditors
dunng the year in conjunction with
the Group Director of Finance, we
consider that 1t ts appropnate that
the extemal auditors be re-apponted
and will make an appropnate
recommendation to shareholders

at the Annual General Meeting

it 1s our practice as an addrtional
assurance, at the end of each meeting
of the Committee, to hold separate
meetings with the extemal auditors
and the mtemat Group Audit Manager
without management present to
discuss their respective areas of
activity dunng the previous penod and
any 1ssues ansing from their audits

Ken Harvey

Nomination
Committee Chairman
The Nomination Committee
Members Appointment date Aftendance
Kenneth Harvey (Chairman} March 1997 2/2
Gerard Connell October 2003 2/2
Martin Angle December 2008 2/2
Dinah Nichols June 2003 2/2

The Nomination Committee meets

as and when required to select and
recemmend to the Board suitable
candidates for appointment as
executive and non-executive directors
to the Board and as executive directors
to the Vindor and South West Water
boards, determine the nomination
process and review succession plans
It 1s the practice of the Commuitee,

led by the Chairman, to appoint an
external search consultancy to assist
in any Board appomtments

Dunng the year the Committee
considered the annual performance
evaluation results for the Committes,
reviewed succession planning for the
Group and considered and approved
the appointment of two new executive
drectors to the Vindor board

The Remuneration Committee
Details of the Remuneration Committee and the Directors’ remuneration report
can be found on pages 45 to 56
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Comporate governance and internal control continued

Dinah Nichols
Comporate
Responsibility
Committee Chairman

The Corporate Responsibility Committee

Members Appointment date Attendance
Dinah Nichols (Chairman) June 2003 5/5
Gerard Connel| October 2003 5/5
Martin Angle December 2008 4/5
Colin Drummond Apnl 1992 5/5
Chngtophef Loughhn i August 2006 a/5

The Comporate Responsibility
Committee'’s duties, in the context

of the requirement for companies to
conduct their busmess in a responsible
manner (including m relation to
environmental, social and govemance
(ESG) matters), are to review the
strategies, polictes, management,
inthatrves, targets and performance
of the Pennon Group of comparies

in the areas of occupational health
and safety and secunty, environment,
workplace policies, non-financial
regulatory compliance and the role

of the Group in society

Dunng the year the Committee
considered a wide range of matters
in accordance with its Terms of
Reference including

¢ the 2010/11 Corporate Respensibility
Report and the assoctated Venfier's
Report

* the South West Water and Vindor
Corporate Responsibiiity Reports

» health and safety and secunty plans
and performance

+ the Venfiers recommendatons for the
next Corporate Responsibility Report

* progress against the corporate
responsibility targets for 2010/11

« the corporate responsibility targets
for 2011/12

» the annual review of Group policies
¢ a Group plan for community support.

In reporting on corporate responsibility,
the Company has sought to comply
with the Associatton of Brtish Insurers’
Guidelines on Responsible Investment
Disclosure The Busmess review

on pages 28 to 31 contamns the
Group’s 2011 Annual Corporate
Responsibility Report
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Board committees’ terms of reference
The Temms of Reference of the Audit,
Remuneration, Nominaton and
Corporate Responsibility Committees
are available upon request to the Group
General Counsel & Company Secratary
and are also set out on the Company’s
website pennon-group co uk

Internal control

Wider aspects of intemal control

The Board 1s responsible for mamtainng
the Group's system of internal control to
safeguard shareholders’ mvestment and
the Group's assets and for reviewing s
effectiveness. The system s designed
to manage rather than elminate the nsk
of failure to achieve business objectives
and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance aganst matenal
musstaternent or loss There I1s an ongomg
process for entifyng, evaluating and
managing the significant nsks faced

by the Group that has been in place
throughout the financial year 2010/11
and up to the date of the approval

of this Annual Report and Accounts.

The Board confirms that it contirnues

to apply procedures in accordance wrth
the Combined Code and the 'Guidance
on Intemal Control’ (The Turnbuli
Guidance) whnch suggests means of
applying the internal control part of the
Code As part of these procedures the
Board has a Group Risk Management
Policy (GRMP) which provides for the
dentdficabon of key nsks in relation

to the achievement of the business
objectives of the Group, monitonng of
such nsks and annual evatuation of the
overall process, as descnbed in more
detatl below The GRMP 15 applied by
all business units within the Group m
accordance with an annual tmetable

Risk identification

A full nsk and control assessment

1s undertaken annually by the
management of each business to
identrfy financial and non-financial nsks
which are then regularty updated Each
business compiles (as part of regular
management reports) an enhanced




and focused assessment of key nsks
agamst corporate objectives The
Board at each meeting receives from
the Executive Directors details of any
new high-level nsks identified and how
they are to be managed, together with
details of any changes to existing nsks
and their management The subsidiary
boards of South West Water and Vindor
also receive at each meeting sumilar
reports in respect of their own areas of
responsibiity All Executive Directors
and senior managers are required to
certify on an annual basis that they have
effective controls in place to manage
nsks and to operate in compliance with
legtslation and Group procedures All
of these processes serve to ensure that
a cutture of effective control and nsk
management 1s embedded within the
organisation and that the Group 1s m a
posihion to react appropnately to new
nsks as they anse Details of key nsks
affectmg the Group are set out In the
Busmess review on pages 24 to 27

Internal control framework

The Group also has a well established
ntemal control framework which is
operated and which applies in relation
to the process for prepanng the
Group’s consolidated accounts

This framework compnses

» a clearly defined structure which
delegates an appropnate level
of authonty, responsibility and
accountability, including responsibility
for intemal financial control, to
management of operating units

+ a comprehensive budgeting and
reporting funchion with an annual
budget approved by the Board of
Directors, which also monitors the
financral reporting process, monthly
results and updated forecasts for the
year against budget

= documented financial control
procedures Managers of operating
units are required to confirm annually
that they have adequate financial
controls in operation and to report
all matenal areas of financtal nsk.
Compliance with procedures

1s reviewed and tested by the
Company's internal audrt function

* an investment appraisal process for
evaluating proposals for all major
capital expenditure and acquisitions,
with defined levels of approval and
a system for monitonng the progress
of capital projects

* a post-mvestment evaluation process
for major capital expenditure and
acquistions to assess the success
of the project and leam any lessons
to be applied to future projects

Internal control review

An evaluation of the effectiveness of
overalt intemmal control compliance by
the Group 1s undertaken in respect of
each financial year {(and subsequently
up to the date of this report) to assist
the Auchit Committee in considenng
the Group internal audit plan for the
forthcoming financial year and also
the Business review for the Annual
Report. The Group General Counsel &
Company Secretary infhially cames out
the evaluation with Directors and Senior
Management for consideration by the
Audrt Committee and subsequently for
final evaluation by the Beard.

In addition the Audit Committee
regularly reviews the operation and
effectiveness of the internal control
framework and annually reviews the
scope of work, authonty and resources
of the Company’s intemal audst funchon
The Committee reporis and makes
recommendations to the Board on

such reviews For 2010/11 and up to
the date of the approval of the Amnual
Report and Accounts, both the Audit
Commuittee and the Board were satisfied
with the effectiveness of the GRMP and
the ntemal control framework and thewr
operation within the Group

Further information on the internal
control review 1s set out on page 39
i relaticn to the Audit Committee

Going concemn

The Directors consider, after making
appropriate enquines, that the Company
and the Group have adequate resources

to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future For this
reascn they continue to adopt the
going concem basis in prepanng the
financial statements

Directors’ responsibilities
statements

The Directors are responsible for
prepanng the Annual Report, the
Directors’ Remuneration Report and
the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors

to prepare financial statements for

each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group

and Company financial statements i
accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union Under company
law the Drrectors must not approve the
financial staternents unless they are
satisfied that they grve a true and far
wiew of the state of affairs of the Group
and the Company and of the profit or
loss of the Group for the year

In preparing these financial statements
the Directors are required to:

* sefect suitable accounting policies
and then apply them consistently
make judgements and accounting
estimates which are reasonable
and prudent

* state whether applicable iFRSs as
adopted by the European Union have
been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explaned in
the financial statements.

The Directors confirm that they have
complied with the above requirements
n prepanng the financtal statements

The Directors are responsible for
keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company's transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy

at any time the financial position

of the Group and the Company

and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements and the Directors’
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Remuneration Report comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
the Group financial statements, article 4
of the International Accounting
Standards (IAS) Regulation They are
also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other imegulanties

Each of the Directors, whose names
and functions are isted on pages 36
and 37, confirms that, to the best

of ther knowledge

a) thefinancial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with
Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
EU, give a true and fair view of the
assets, labilities, financial position
and profit of the Group and of the
Company and

b) the Directors’ report contained
on pages 1 to 33 includes a fair
review of the development and
performance of the business and
position of the Company and the
Group, together with a descnption
of the pnncipal nsks and
uncertainties they face

The Directors are responsible

for the maintenance and integnty
of the Company’s website
pennon-group co uk Legisiation in
the United Kingdom goverming the
preparation and dissermination of
financial statements may differ from
legistation in other junsdictions

Corporate governance
statements

The following disclosures are made
pursuant to Part 6 of Schedule 7 of the
Large and Medium-sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts & Reports)
Regulatons 2008 and Rule7 23 R

of the UK Listing Authonty’s Disclosure
and Transparency Rules (DTR)

As at 31 March 2011

a) details of the Company's issued
share capttal, which consists of

b)

€)

ordinary shares of nominal value 40 7
pence each, are set out In note 32
to the financial statements on pages
99 to 101 All of the Company's
issued shares are fully paid up, rank
equally in all respects and are listed
on the Official List and traded on
the London Stock Exchange The
nghts and ohhigations attaching to
the Company’s shares, in additicn
to those conferred on their holders
by law, are set out in the Company’s
Articles of Association (“Articles™),
copies of which can be obtained
from Companies House in the UK

or by wnhing to the Group Company
Secretary at the Company's
registered office.

The holders of the Company’s
shares are entitled to receive the
Company’s reports and accounts
and in relation to general meetings
of the Company they have the nght
to attend and speak, exercise voting
nghts and appoint proxies,

there are no restnctions on the
transfer of 1ssued shares of the
Company or on the exercise of
votmg nghts attached to them,
except where the Company has
exercised its nght to suspend therr
voting nghts or to prohibit therr
transfer following the omission of
therr holder or any person interested
in them to provide the Company
wrth mfonmation requested by it

in accordance with Part 22 of the
Companies Act 2006 or where their
holder is precluded from exercising
voting nghts by the Financial
Services Authonty's Listing Rules
or the City Code on Takeovers

and Mergers,

detalls of significant direct or
mdirect holdings of securtties of
the Company are set out In the
shareholder analysis on page 115,

the Company's rules about the
appointment and replacement

of Directors are contamed in the
Articles and accord with usual
English company law provisions The
powers of directors are determined

44 Pennon Group Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2011

by UK legistation and the Articles in
force from time to time  Changes to
the Articles must be approved by the
Company’s shareholders by passing
a special resolution,

e) the Drrectors have the powerto
make purchases of the Company's
own shares in issue as set out n
the Directors’ report on page 33
‘Purchase of Own Ordinary Shares’
No such purchases have been made
dunng the year The Directors also
have the authonty to allct shares
up to an aggregate norminal value
of (i) £47,958,483 (such amount to
be reduced by any shares under (ji)
followng allotted or nghts granted
n excess of £47,958,483) or (ji)
£95,916,966 by way of nghts issue
(such amount to be reduced by any
shares allofted or nghts granted
from (i)) which were approved by
shareholders at the 2010 Annual
General Meeting {AGM) In addrticn,
shareholders approved a resolution
giving the Directors a imited authonty
to allot shares for cash other than pro
rata to existing shareholders These
resolutions reman vald until the
conclusion of this year's AGM Similar
resolutions will be proposed at this
years AGM The Directors have no
present mtention to issue ordinary
shares other than pursuant to the
Company's employee share schemes
and Scnp Dridend Alternative, and

f) there are a number of agreements
which take effect, alter or terminate
upon a change of control of the
Company following a takeover tid,
such as bank loan agreements,
Eurcbond documentation, pnvate
placement debt and employees'
share plans None of these s
considered to be significant in terms
of their potential impact on the
business of the Group as a whole

By Order of %\oard
Ken Woodier ‘%\\%snki«
Group General Counsel & Company

Secretary
22 June 2011
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Directors’ remuneration report

Dear shareholder

| am pleased to present the
remuneration report for 2011 on behalf
of the Board In accordance with our
usual practice and as required by

the Companies Act 2006 we will be
presenting thus report for your approval
at our Annual General Meeting in July

This report 1s designed to provide you
with details of

» the Remuneration Committee
* the Group's Remuneration Policy
* Directors’ remuneration

» specific remuneration disclosures
required by the Dwectors’
Remuneration Report Regulations
which are audrted

We appreciate that thera s ongoing
investor concern relating to executive
director remuneration generally and,
whilst focus has been on the financial
sector pnmanty, it is fully recognised
that there 1s a continuing need for
other sectors to reflect this concem n
theirr remuneration policies and overall
rermuneration practice This s why in
2009/10 the Committee decided that
salanes for Executive Directors should
not be mcreased despite the Group’s
busmesses being well posihened in the
economic slowdown and that last year
the increase was circa 4 5% which was
consistent with the aggregate average
salary increases generally in the Group
over the two-year penod 2009/10 and
2010411

The Remuneration Committee

Martin Angle
Remuneration

Committee Chairman

Members _Appomm_ent date i Attendance
Martin Angle (Chawrman) December 2008 77
Gerard Conneil October 2003 77
Dinah Nichols “June 2003 n

The Committee’s Terms of Reference
mclude

* adwvising the Board on the framework
of executive remuneration for
the Group

« determining the remuneration
and terms of engagement of
the Chaiman, the Executive
Directors and Senror Management
of the Group

No Director or any other attendea
participates n any discussion

on, or determination of, his or her
own remuneration

Dunng the year the Committee
received advice or services which
matenally assisted the Committee

n the consideration of remuneration
matters from Ken Harvey, Charman

of the Company, and from the following
adwsors who were appomted directly
by the Committee
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Ken Woodier, Group General
Counsel & Company Secretary,

on remuneration and share scheme
matters He also provides legal
advice and company secretanal
services to the Company

Deloitte LLF, auditing and
remuneration consultants, on
calculatng the Company’s total
shareholder return compared
with two comparator groups for
the Company’s Performance &
Co-investment Plan Deloitte also
provide financial and tax advice
to the Company

Aon Hewitt Limited (formerly Hewstt
Associates Limited}, pensions

and remuneration consultants,

on providing advice on pension
benefits. Aon Hewitt also provide
actuanal and investment advice to
the Company and to the Trustees
of the Group's pension schemes
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Directors’ remuneration report coninued

Remuneraton policy

In 2009 the Committee undertocok a review of the Company's remuneration policy and with adwvice from Towers Watson Limited
the Committee concluded that the current policy remaned appropnate This policy which will be applied in 2011412, and 1s also
currently intended to be applied in each subsequent year, Is to provide a remuneration package for Executive Directors which 1s
adequate to attract, retain and motivate good quality executives and which 1s commensurate with the remuneration packages
provided by companies of similar size and complexity The key guiding principles of this policy are to

+ design an overall package to be competitive and to take account of the markets in which the Group’s businesses operate
» support the overarching business strategy for the Group

+ adopt incentive amangements designed to reward performance and align the nterests of the Executive Directors with those
of shareholders

« reinforce the incentive element of the package by mantaning base salanes for Executive Directors at the relevant
market median

+ have a remuneration package which 1s fair and consistent with other companies in the sector and which provides incentives
for cutperformance.

The policy in respect of Non-executive Directors’ fees 1s set out on page 51 in the Non-executive Directors remuneration section

In setting executive remuneration the Committee not only takes account of employment market condiions, but seeks to
ensure that there are coherent pay and benefit structures across the Group which are consistent with the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors and Senior Management From summary reperts on workforce remuneration and terms
and conditions of employment by the Executive Directors wrth regard to therr respective busmess areas, the Commuttee has
regard to the general levels of responsibility, qualifications and expenence required throughout the Group In setting salary and
other benefits of the Executive Directors and Senior Management The Committee also ensures that the incentive structures do
not raise environmental, social or governance nsks by inadvertently motivating imesponsible behaviour A number of mdividual
performance objectives specifically relate to achieving non-financial targets (as outhned on page 47) .

The balance between maximum performance-related remuneration recetvable and direct remuneration (i & excluding pensions,
car benefit and health cover} is the same as last year with one-third direct and two-thirds performance-related. This s expected
to continue for the foreseeable future The Company also has a Shareholding Guideline which applies to Executive Directors
and Senior Management It1s structured to demonstrate therr commitment to the future success of the Group Executive
Directors are expected to build up their shareholding over a five-year penod to a value which 1s at least equivalent to their

basic annual salary

Elements of remuneraton

Fixed . Vanable (Performance-related)

Base Safary Short-term — Annual Long-term - three years

Pension - Final Satary (Defined Benefit} Annual Incentive Bonus Plan - Maximum 100%  Performance and Co-investment Plan (PCP)

or cash altermative of basic salary with 50% paid in cash and 50% - future performance over three years
n shares deferred for three years

Other - car benefit and I;eam-\—cover o Assessed Elgalnst corpora:ce financial " total shareholder return perfuon'l;énce cntena
performance and indvidual personal - 50% linked to water and waste comparator
achievements relating to a range of group and 50% hnked to relative FTSE 250
operational and compliance targets. with an underpn refating to operabonal and

economic performance
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The followmng 1s a detailed summary of the elements of remuneration set out above

®

)

Basic salary and benefits - these are set out on page 52 for each Executive Director and are not related to performance

The Committee reviews salanes annually taking account of market data avallable from independent remuneration
consuttants A pay freeze was applied in 2009/10 and last year the general Increase was circa 4 5% When reviewing

base salanes the Committes takes account of the performance of the individual Executive Directors which the Committee
assesses with the advice of Ken Harvey, Chairman of the Company Other benefits, not mentioned below, include four tmes
salary Iife assurance cover; a fully expensed car or a cash alternative, and heaith cover

Performance-related bonus — annual performance related bonuses are awarded in accordance with the Group's Annual
Incentive Bonus Plan {the Bonus Plan) and are based on the achievement by the Executive Directors of overall corporate
and indmidual cbjectives set by the Committee The maximum bonus achievable under the Bonus Plan for Executive
Directors for 2010/11 was 100% of basic salary To achieve the maximum percentage bonus aliocated in respect of the
corporate targets of eamings per share and profit before tax it 1s necessary for the Company to achieve a specified level of
supenor outperformance Half of any bonus awarded 15 in the form of Ordinary shares in the Company which must usually
be held for a penod of three years before release (Deferred Bonus Shares) Dunng this penod the Directors, in respect of
the Deferred Bonus Shares, are entitled to receve any dividends declared by the Company No additional performance
conditions applicable to the release of the Deferred Bonus Shares, apart from maintaining continuous service with the
Company, are considered appropnate by the Committee in view of the stretching performance conditions applicable to
achieve the inttial award of the Deferred Bonus Shares The Committese, in setting the performance objectives for Executive
Directors, takes account of corporate performance on environmental, social and governance (ESG) matters Objectives
set embrace appropnate ESG parameters which are important to the success of the Group and which seek to ensure that
the Group meets a number of its ESG targets as set out in the Group comoerate responsibility report on pages 28 to 31

of the Business review The Committee in setting such objectives and in determining ts remuneration policy overall
ensures that the relevant mcentives to Directors and Senior Management aligns therr interests with shareholders and

raise no ESG nsks by inadvertently motivating wresponsible behaviour

As reported last year the Bonus Plan 1s now operated i conjunction with the Company’s Executive Share Option Scheme
{ESOS) on the basis that the aggregate pre-tax value of the awands made under both the Bonus Plan and the ESOS would
be the same as they would have been if the Bonus Plan had been operated alone, as in earlier years This 1s achieved by
providing for Deferred Bonus Shares awarded to be forfeited by the Directors up to the same value as that of any gain made
in respect of options exercised by the Directors pursuant to the ESOS at the end of the three-year restncted penod Only the
HMRC approved part of the ESOS was operated in 20609/10 which enabled aptions over Ordinary shares in the Company

to be granted to Directors to the value of £30,000 at the then prevailing pnce No further options will be granted to the
Executive Directors pursuant to the Bonus Plan until the existing options either are exercised or lapse at the end of the
three-year restncted penod Details of the options are set out in the table m paragraph (d} on page 56

Set out helow 1s a summary of the performance targets determined by the Committee for each Executive Director for
2011/12 These are sumilar to the targets applied for 2010/11

Colmn Drummond - A bonus of up to 40% for outperformance of Group earmings per share agamst budget, up to 40%
calculated by reference to outperformance of the profit before tax and net debt budgets of Vindor; and up to 20% for
personal objectives relating to key business targets for Vindor

Dawvid Dupont - A bonus of up to 40% for outperformance of Group eamings per share agamnst budget, up to 40% for
outperformance against budget relating to net debt and net interest of the Group and profit before tax of South West Water
and Vindor; and up to 20% for personal objectives relating to Group financing and other Group intiatives,

SOURLLIBACK)

Chns Loughlin - A bonus of up to 40% for outperformance of Group earmings per share aganst budget, up to 20% for
personal objectives relating to implementing South West Water's new strategies and projects and meeting comphance
targets, and up to 40% calculated by reference to the average bonus eamed by the other Executive Directors of South
West Water (which relate to outperformance agamst the operating costs, profit before tax, capital expenditure and net debt
budgets of the company; the position the company achieves in the ‘Service Incentive Mechanism’ of water and sewerage
companies established by Ofwat, the achievement of a range of service standards set for the company by Ofwat, and
personal objectives relating to key nitiatives, projects and compliance targets for South West Water)

SUBAETS [eroUeuLy
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Directors' remuneration report continued

The achievements of the Executive Directors against thewr individual performance objectives are assessed by the Committee
following the financial year-end when the audited results of the Company and performance against the parameters set are
known This enables the Committee to apply largely objective critena in determining the leve! of bonus (if any) which should
be awarded, wrth the advice of the Chairman of the Company, Ken Harvey

(i) Long-term ncentive plan - A Performance and Co-mmvestment Plan (PCP) was operated by the Company dunng the year for
Executive Directors and Senior Management

The purpose of the PCP i1s to award shares to participants subject to the achievement of stretching performance conditions
measured over three years Awards under the PCP, in the form of a condrtional nght over Ordmnary shares in the Company,
were made by the Committee in July 2010 and, for Executive Directors, the award was over shares worth 100% of basic
salary In accordance with its discretion pursuant to the rules of the PCP, the Committee made the vesting of the awards also
subject to the fulfilment of a co-nvestment condition whereby Executive Directors were required to invest and hold shares

in the Company equal to 20% of the value of their award over the Restncted Penod (being a penod of three years from the
date of the award). The percentage requirement for Sentor Management was suitably scaled back The number of shares
subject to each award in the event of vesting will be increased by such number of shares as cculd have been acquired by
renvesting the dividends which would otherwise have been receved on those shares pnor to vesting or exercise

The PCP awards made in July 2010 will vest based on the Company's total shareholder retum (TSR) performance over

a thres-year performance penod against two different comparator groups as set out below This 1s the same performance
cntena that was applied to the PCP awards made i July 2009 and July 2008 TSR measures the value created for
shareholders through increases in share pnce and the payment of dvidends and was applied by the Committee because,
based upon advice received from remuneration consultants, Delortte LLP, it believes that this 1s an appropnate measure
to align the interests of the Executive Directors with those of shareholders

* up to 50% of an award will vest according to the Company’s TSR performance measured against an index made up
of the following six listed water and waste comparator companies

Northumbnan Water Group
Séché Environnement
Severn Trent

Shanks Group

Suez Environnement
United Utihtes

These are the Company’s key listed sector comparators

Water/Waste index Vesting
Above the index + 15% 50%
Equal to the index ) ) _15%
Straight-line vesting in between above positions
Below theindex 0%

¢ up to 50% of an award will vest according to the Company's ranked TSR performance against the constituents of
the FTSE 250 mdex {excluding mvestment trusts) This is the FTSE index to which the Company belonged at the tme
of the award
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FTSE 250 index Vesting

Atorabove the 75th percentlle 50%
Above 50th percentile 15%
Straght-line vesting in between the above posittons

At or below the 50th percentile } 0%

In addition to the above TSR conditions, before any award 1s capable of vesting, there 1s an ‘Underpin’ condition whereby
the Committee needs to be satisfied that the undertying operational and economic performance of the Company is at

a satisfactory level This evaluation includes consideration of ESG factors and safety performance, as well as financial
performance Whist the Committes intends cumrently to apply similar performance conditions including the ‘Underpin’

to any future PCP awards, they are reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that the condtions continue to be appropnate
and suitably stretching for future awards

For the first PCP awards made in August 2007 (following shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting in July 2007)
the same performance measures were used as set out above save that the sector comparator group included Biffa and
Kelda Group (instead of Séché and Suez) As these compantes subsequently de-listed, the Committee in respect of the 2007
award at the end of the three-year Restncted Penod in August 2010 had discretion to include them in the calculation of the
mndex up to the date of de-listing {or other earier date at its discretion) and exclude them from that date onwards or adopt an
altemative approach The Committee’s view was that there was no particular reason to exercise its discretion to make any
change to the comparator group constituents and therefore the TSR performance was considered with the two de-listed
companies being excluded m their entirety

The calcuiation of TSR performance over the three-year performance penod (being 1 Apnl 2007 to 1 Apnl 2010) for
the PCP awards made in August 2007 was undertaken by Deloitte LLP for the Commuttee. The table below summanses
the calcutation:

Comparator group Portion of award Rank Percentile rank Final Vesting leve!

’ 7 2% outperformance i
Waste/Water_Index i . 50% against |nd_ex ; o - : 31 9% R
FTSE 250 (excluding investment trusts) i 50% 6§9th out of 194 648% 354% _
Total vesting 67 3%

The Committee was satisfied that the ‘Underpin’ condiion referred to above had heen met and therefore approved
the vesting of 67 3% of the award as calculated by Delortte (together with shares equivalent to the value of dmdends
declared dunng the Restncted Penod on such shares) with the remaining 32 7% lapsing.

{iv) Other share schemes — Executive Directors are entitled to participate in the Company’s Sharesave Scheme and Share

v)

Incentive Plan Both are all-employee plans to which performance conditions do not apply

Service contracts - In accordance with Company policy, all Executive Directors have sesvice contracts subject to one
year's notice They are due to expire when Executive Directors reach therr normal retirement age of 60 unless extended
by agreement between the Director and the Company No provision 1s made for termination payments under the service
contracts In the event of tenrmination by the Company of any Executive Director’s service contract, the Board would
determine what payments (if any) should be made to the Director depending on the circumstances of the termination
The dates of the contracts are

Colm Drummond 5 March 1992
Dawvid Dupont 2 January 2003
Chns Loughlin 16 May 2006

Colin Drummond reached his nomal retirement date on 22 February 2011 but has continued in employment with the

Company in the same position as Chief Executive, Vindor, and as a Director of the Pennon Group Board His service
contract with the Company continues subject to one year's notice
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Directors’ remuneration report contnued

(vi) Provision for pensions — During the year Colin Drummond and Dawid Dupont participated in the Pennon Group Pension
Scheme and the Pennon Group Executive Pension Scheme These are funded defined benefit schernes which, dependent
on length of serwvice at normal retrement date, could armount to two-thinds of final pensionable pay, with the exception of
service to 5 Apnl 2006 where an Earmings Cap applied in these Schemes to these two Directors

Both were provided with additional pension benefits under an unapproved funded Supplementary Pension Scheme of the
Company in order to bnng their pension benefits up to a level which would have been provided under the other schemes
as If the Earnings Cap had not applied With effect from 6 Apnl 2006 the Earmings Cap no longer applied to pension
schemes as part of the simplification of taxation of pensions legislation. The Committee accordingly decided to provide
all of the Directors’ future serice pension benefits above the Eamings Cap level from the Penncn Group Executive
Pension Scheme. The Supplementary Pension Scheme was therefore closed and the accrued benefits were paid out

to ts members in Apnl 2006

The pensionable pay for Executive Directors consists of the highest basic salary in any consecutive 12-month pencd
of service within five years of retirement. Benuses are not included in pensionable pay.

Colin Drummeond (from 22 February 2011) and Chns Loughlin receive an annual payment (payable by monthly nstalments)
equivalent to 30% of each of therr annual basic salanes in lieu of the provision of pension benefits.

In detenmiming remuneration amangements for Executive Directors, the Committee gives full consideration to their
impact on the pension schemes’ funds and costs of providing indvidual pension arangements or payments in lieu
of pension provision

Total shareholder return (TSR}

The graph above shows the value, over the five-year period ending on 31 March 2011, of £100 invested in Pennon Group on

31 March 2006 compared with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE 250 Index The other poinis plotted are the values at
intervering financial year-ends This Index 1s considered appropnate as it 15 a broad equity market index of which the Company
has been a constituent over most of the penod covered

The graph above has been produced i accordance with regufations made pursuant to Section 421 of the Comparies Act 2006
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Non-executrve Directors and the Chairman

Non-executive Directors’ remuneration (exclucing that of the Chairman, Ken Harvey) consisting of fees only as set out below,
1s determined by the Board of Directors, mcluding the Chairman, but in the absence of the other Non-executive Directors It

1s usually reviewed each year to take account of market changes in Non-executive Directors’ fees In reviewing the fees, the
Board takes mnto account market mformation on Non-executive Directors’ fees. Followmng no increass in 2008/10 the fees were
reviewed last year and increased by circa 4 5% The base Non-executive Director fee in the year was £37,500 per annum The
Audit, Remuneration and Corporate Responsibiity Committee chars were paid fees of £10,000, £7,000 and £7,000 per annum
respectively and Committee members receved £4,000 each For this and subsequent years the policy expected to be apphed
in respect of Non-executive Director fees will be to set fees around the median level compared with the market, which the
Board believes 1s appropnate to attract and retan surtably expenenced Non-executive Directors

The Chairman’s remuneration i1s set by the Remuneration Committee Following no mcrease in 2009/10 the Chairman’s fee
was reviewed last year and ncreased by 4 5% by the Commuttee

The policy of the Committee to be applied to the Charman’s fee for this and n subsequent years i1s the same as that for the
Non-executive Directors as set out above. In addition to a fee the Charman receives a fully-expensed car benefit and health
cover. No other benefits or remuneration are recerved by the Chairnan.

The Non-executive Diractors (excluding the Chaimnan) have contracts for services setting out therr terms and condrions of
appointment which are subject to the Arhicles of Association of the Company and which may be extended by agreement between
the Company and the Non-executive Directors. No provision s made for any termination payment under these contracts

The Chairman has a contract for services dated 1 Apnl 2005 which 1s subject to 12 months’ notice to provide the Company with
reasonable secunty with regard to his ongoing service No provision 1s made for any termination payments under this contract

The coniracts for services of the Chairman and the Non-executive Directors reflect corporate govermance best practice and,
together with the Executive Directors’ service contracts, are available for nspecton at the Company's registered office dunng
nomal business hours

The dates of the Non-executive Directors’ contracts are

Director Date of contract Expiry date of contract

_ Martin Angle _ ) n L. _28 November 2008 _ __ 30 November 2011 -
Gerard Gonnell 30 September 2003 30 September 2012
Dinah Nichols 10 June 2003 11 June 2012

The above contracts do not contain any notice penods

The information set out below and on the remaining pages of this Remuneration Report (pages 52 to 56) has been audited
by the Group's independent audstors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Emoluments of Directors

The emoluments of individual Directors holding office dunng 2010/11 were

Director
Charman

Ken Harvey
Executive
Drrectors. )
Colin Drummond
Dawvid Dupont
Chns Loughlin

Non-executive
Directors

Martin Angle
Gerard Connell
Dinah Nichols
Total

1 Cther emoluments are car berefit and health cover

Salary/fees
£000

230

345

52
55
52
1,424

Performance
related bonus

payable?
£000

Other
emoluments’
£000

23

24

a3

Payment

in lieyu of
pension®

£000

"

103

114

Total 2011 -
Year to
31 March

2683

531

52
55
52

2121

Total 2010 -
Year to

31 March
£000

246

503

80
53
&0

Lo sez

2 in addibon to the performance-related cash bonus, Exoeutve Directors are dua to recerve a condibonal award of shares as refermed 1o in a nota to [d) *Annual Incentve

Borws Plan — Deferred Bonus Shares (long-tenm ncentve element)’ on page 55

31n ey of any pension provision by the Company, Colin Drumimond (rom 22 February 2011) and Chins Loughéin recened cash payments egunvalent to 30% of each of ther

annual basic salanes

No expense allowances chargeabls to tax or termination or compensation payments were made dunng the year
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Execubve Directors’ pensions
Defined benefit pensions accrued and payable on retirement for Executive Directors holding office dunng 2010/11 were

Increase/

{decrease) Increase/

In accrued increase/ Increase/  (decrease) mn

pension {decrease) {decrease) transfer value

durnng in accrued Accrued Transfer Transfer n transfer of Column

201011 pension pension at value at value at value (net of a(net of

{net of dunng 31 March 31 March 31 March Directors’ Directors’

inftation} 201011 2011 2011 2010  contnbutions})  contnbutions)

€000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Director ) a b € d e L g
Colin Drummond {32 (25 121 210 3,424 743 (597)
Dawid Dupont i 8 15 145 3150 2,798 320 153

The headings &) to g) above are as follows

a) increase/decrease In accrued pension dunng 2010/11 [net of nflation)

b) ncrease/decrease in accrued pension dunng 2010/11

c) accrued pension at 31 March 2011 payable at normal retirement age

dj transfer value of the accrued pension in c) as at 31 March 2011

€) transfer value of the accrued pension at the end of the previous financial year on 31 March 2010
f} increase/decrease in transfer value dunng the year (net of Directors’ contnbutions)

o) Increase/decrease n transfer value of column a) (net of Directors’ contnbutions)

The pension figure quoted above for Colin Drummond (column ¢ 1s lower than the pension figure quoted i last year's
remuneration report due to Colin having retired from the Company's pension scheme on 22 February 2011 and beginning to
draw his pension Colin elected to take a Pension Commencement Lump Sum of £386,057 with a tax payment of £420,990
being made from the pension scheme which was deducted from his accrued pension benefit. The figure shown in column c)
for Colin 1s the residual pension in payment as at 31 March 2011.

Directors’ share interests

{a) Shareholdings

The number of ordinary shares of the Company in which Directors held beneficial interests at 31 March 2011 and 31 March
2010 were

2011 2010 2011 2010
Orcinary Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary
shares shares shares shares

Director (407peach)  (407peach) Orector  {407peach) (40 7p each) )
Martin Angle - - Ken Harvey 18,209 18,209
Gerard Connell 4,000 ) 4,000 Chns Loughlin 58,534 38,876
Colin Drummond 263,225 ) 239,218 ) Dinah Nichols 4,549 i 4,549

Dawid Dupont 237,945 213,510

Since 31 March 2011 1,526 addtional Ordinary shares (40 7p each} in the Company have been acquired by Chns Loughlin
as a result of participation in the Company's Scnp Dividend Alternative and the Company’s Share Incentive Plan and

143 addrtional Ordinary shares (40 7p each) in the Company have been acquired by David Dupont as a result of dividend
reinvestment in an ISA.

There have been no other changes in the beneficial interests or the non-beneficial interests of the Directors In the Ordinary
shares of the Company between 1 Apnl 2011 and 4 June 2011
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b) Performance and Co-investment Plan {L.ong-term incentive pian)

In addition to the above beneficial Interests, the following Directors have or had a contingent interest in the number of Ordinary
shares (40 7p each) of the Company shown below, representing the maximum number of shares to which they would become

entitled under the Group’s Long-Term Incentive Plan should the relevant cntena be met in full

Value of Conditional Date of end
Condthonal shares upon Awards  of penod for
awards held Condibonal  Market price vestng held at qualfying
Director and at 1 Apnl awards upon award Vesting {before tax) 31 March conditions to
date of award 2010  made myear Inyear myear £000 2011 be fulfilled
Colin Drummond i i i
29/8/07 53858 - 557 00p _ 40,691 232 - 28/8H10
_10/7/08 i 51,764 - 63750p o= . - 51,764 ST
1/7/09 67,83 - 486 50p - - 67,831 30/6H12
2THO - 63,186 546 00p _ - - 63,186 17713
Dawvid Dupont L N i ; ) i
20/8/07 . 53859 - 55700p 40691° 232 - 28/8M10
10/7/08 51,764 - 637 50p - - 51,764 /7M1
147109 67,831 - 488 50p - S - e783t 3o/612
2/TH0 - 63,186 546 00p - - 63,186 17113
Chns Loughhin
20/807 ) 49371 - ss70p 37300 000 213 T - 28/810
10/7/08 ' 49411 - 837 50p _ - - 49411 9711
1/7/09 ) 64,748 - 486 50p - - 64,748 30/6M12
2/7H0 o - _ 83186 546 00p - - 33,186 ) 1713

* 67 3% of the 29 August 2007 award shares vested on 29 August 2010 as explaned n the section ) Long Termn Incentve Plan on page 48 of this report at a market pnce of
£5 70 per share, The total number of shares that vested niciudad addibonal shares ecravalent n value to such nurmber of shares as could have been acquired by rermesting

the cividends which would otherwise have been recesed on the vested shares dunng the Restnctad Penod of three years The balance of the award lapsed
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{c} Annual Incentive Bonus Plan - Deferred Bonus Shares {long-term incentive element)
The following Directors have a contingent interest in the number of Ordinary shares (40 7p each) of the Company shown below,
representing the total number of shares to which they would become entitted under the deferred bonus element of the Annual

Incentrve Bonus Plan {the Bonus Plan) at the end of the relevant qualifying pencd

Conditional

awards held
Director and at 1 Apni
date of award A 2010
Colin Drummond }
27/6/08 22,838
29/9/09* 16,730 _
277710 -
Dawvid Dupont
27/6/08 21,145
2v9/00" . 17880
27/210 755
27/710 ’ -
Chns Lgu_ghlm _ i } i
27/6/08 i 18,806
29/9/09" i 19,562

7m0 } o 1,261

27/710 i -

Conditional
awards made

Inyear

25,133

Market pnce
upon award
inyear

62000p
47340p
57250p

620 00p
473 40p

52450p

57250p

62000p
47340p
_52450p
572.50p _

Value of

shares upon

vesting

Vestng {before tax)
inyear £000

Conditional

Awards

held at

31 March
2001

22,838
16,730 _
27,001

21,145

17,880
756

25938

18,806

19,562
1,261
25133 _

Date of end
of penod for

qualifying
condrhion to

be fulfilled

26/6/11
28/912
26/TH3

26/6/11

28/9n2
26/2113

26/713

26/611
28/9M 2
26/213
26/7H3

* In addition to the awards made on 2¢ September 2009 the Drectors also receved options pursuant to the Company’s Executive Share Option Scheme (the ESOS), detats of
which aré set out in the table of paragraph (d) on page 56 These awards were made in conyunction with the operation of the Bonus Plan, the provisions of which have been
vaned by the Remuneration Comimittee to provide for forfesture of equivalent shares from the Bonus Plan in the event that the ESOS opbons are exercised by the Deectors
Further detais of this variahon o the Bonus Plan and to the operation of the ESOS are set out in paragraph ) ‘Performance-related borws’ on page 47

During the year the Directors received dvidends on the above shares in accordance wrth the conditions of the Bonus Plan

as follows:

Colin Drummond £15,398 , David Dupont £15,181, Chns Loughlin £10,103

Chns Loughlin also recerved Ordinary shares (40 7p each) in the Company as a resutt of participation in the Company's Scnp
Dividend Alternative and these shares are included in the figure given for the addrional Ordinary shares (40 7p each) in the

Company that Chns acquired since 31 March 2011 given on page 53
A further condtional award of shares will be made in 201112 to the value of the amount of the perforrnance-related cash bonus

shown m the Emoluments of Directors table on page 52 Paragraph (ji) ‘Performance-related bonus’ on page 47 sets out the
provisions relating to the condtional award of shares pursuant to the Bonus Plan
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued

(d) Executive Share Option Scheme
The following Directors have a contingent interest in the number of options n the Ordinary shares (40 7p each) of the Company
pursuant to the Company’s Executive Share Option Scheme shown below Further details relating to the operation of the

Scheme are set out in paragraph (i) ‘Performance-related bonus’ on page 47

Qptons
held at
Director and date 1 Aprl
of grant 2010
Colin Drummond
29/9/09 6,337
Dawid Dupont
29/9/09 6,337
Chns Loughlin
29/9/09 6,337

(e) Sharesave Scheme

Details of options to subscnbe for Ordinary shares (40 7p each) of the Company under the all-employee Sharesave

Scheme were
Options
held at
Director and 1 Apnl
date of grant 2010
Colin Brummond
&/7/09 2,351
Dawvid Dupont
a77/07 3,136
Chns Loughlin
3/7/07 3,136
{f) Share pnce

Granted
myear

Granted
In year

Exercised
In year

Exercised
In year

Exercise
pnce per
share

47340p
473 40p

473 40p

Exercise
price per
share

386 00p
522.00p

522.00p

Market
pnce

of each
share on
exercising

Market
price

of each
share on
exercIsing

Market
value of
each
share at
31 March
20m

625 00p
625 00p

625 00p

Market
value of
each
share at
31 March
201

625 00p
625 00p

625 00p

Options
held at
31 March
2011

6,337
6,337

6,337

Options
held at
31 March
2oMm

2,351
3,136

3,136

Matunty

date
28/9M2
28/912

28/9/12

Exercise
penod/
matunty

date

1912~

28/2M3

1/912-
28/213

1vo12-
28/213

The market price of the Ordinary shares (40 7p each) of the Company at 31 March 2011 was 625p (2010 522 50p) and the range
dunng the year was 482 9p to 650p (2009/10 404 00p to 549 50p)

Basts of preparation

The Remuneration Report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and The Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulahons 2008 (the Regulations) and meets the relevant requirements of
the FSA Listing Rules In accordance with the Regulations, the following sections of the Remuneration Report are subject to
audst: Emoluments of Directors, Executive Directors’ Pensions, and Directors’ Share interests (including long-tenm incentive
plan and bonus plan awards and therr vesting cntena and share options and sharesave) for which the independent auditors’
opinion thereon 1s expressed on page 57 The other sections are not subject to audtt nor are the pages referred to from withun

the audited sections

The remuneration report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

Martin Angle
Chairman of
22 June 201

Committee
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Govemnance

Independent auditors’ report

to the members of Pennon Group Plc

We have audited the financial statements of Pennon Group Plc for the year ended 31 March 2011 which compnse the Consolidated
Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group and Comparny Balance sheets, the Group and
Company Staternents of Changes in Equnty, the Group and Company Cash Flow Statements and the related notes  The financal reporting
framework that has been appled in therr preparation s applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs) as adopted
by the European Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as appled in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explaned more fully in the Directors’ Responsibiies Staternent set out on pages 43 and 44, the diractors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they gve a true and far view Our responsibiity 15 to audit and express
an opinion on the financial staterents in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Audrtors

This report, ncluding the opirons, has been prepared for and only for the Compary's members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no cther purpcse We do net, in gvng these opinions, accept of assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands t may come save where expressly agreed by
Our prior consent In witing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audt involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from matenal misstaterment, whether caused by fraud or emor This Includes an assessment of
whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's and the Company’s crcumstances and have been consistently apphied
and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made by the directors, and the overall presentation

of the financial statements In addrtion, we read all the financial and non-financial INformation in the Annual Report to sdentry matenal
Inconsistencies with the audtted financial staterments If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatement or nconsistencies we
consider the implicatons for our report

Opimon on financial staterments
In our opinicn

« the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the Group's and of the Compary's affars as at 31 March 2011
and of the Group's profit and Group's and Company’s cash flows for the year then ended
« the Group financial statements have been preperly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union

* the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union
and as applied In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and

* the fnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Comparnies Act 2008 and, as regards
the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinton on other matters prescnbed by the Comparnies Act 2006
In our opnion
= the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparies Act 2008

= the informatien given in the Directors' report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the
financial statements and

= the nformation given n the Corporate Govemance Statement set cut on pages 36 to 44 with respect to intermat control and nsk
management systems and about share capital structures 15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to repart in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you i, i our opinion
» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved
from branches not wisited by us or

» the Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audrted are not in agreement with
the accountng records and returmns or

» certan disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made or
* we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audt or
* 3 corporate govemance staterment has not been prepared by the Company

Under the Listng Rules we are required tc review

» the Directors' statement, set out on page 43, In relation to going concemn

« the parts of the Comporate Govemnance Statement relating to the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the June 2008
Combined Code specified for our review and

» cartan elements of the report to shareholders by the Boarg on Directors' remuneration
David Charles (7\/_\’\\/ L

(Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP - """

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audtors
Bnstol

22 June 2011
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Financial statermnents

Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 March 2011

2010

(Restated
2011 note 5)
Notes £m £m
Revenue 6 1,158.2 1,068 9
Operating costs
Manpower costs 7 (148.3) (137 3}
Raw matenals and consumables used (121.6) {76 3)
Other operating expenses (486.7) (453 6}
Depreciation and amortisation (141.7) (135 4}
Operating profit 6 260.9 266 3
Anance mcome 8 45.1 344
Finance costs 8 (121.8) (116 Q)
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures 4.3 11
Profit before tax 6 188.5 1858
Taxation 9 {16.9) (44 3)
Profit for the year 1716 1415
Profit atinbutable to equrity shareholders 1716 1415
Earmings per share (pence per sharg) 1
—Basic 48.4 40 4
- Dihsted 48.1 403

The notes on pages 63 to 112 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 March 2011 2010

{Restated

2014 note 5)

Notes £m £m

Prefit for the year 171.6 1415
Other comprehensive loss

Actuanal gans/flosses) on defined benefit pension schemes 29 2.4 (44 4)

Net far value losses on cash flow hedges (0.1) -

Share of other comprehensive loss from joint ventures 20 (3.0) 32)

Tax on tems taken directly to or transferred from equity 9,30 (3.3) 17 4

Other comprehensive loss for the year net of tax 35 (4.0) (30 2)

Total comprehensive iIncome for the year 167.6 1113

Total comprehensive Income attnbutable to equity shareholders 167 6 1113

The notes on pages 63 to 112 form part of these financial statements
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Financial statements

Balance sheets

At 31 March 2011

Group Company
2010
(Restated
2011 note §) 2011 2010
Netes £m £m Em £m
Assets
Non-current assels
Goodwil 15 2924 257 4 - -
Other intangible assets 16 4.4 51 - -
Property, plant and equipment 17 2,927.5 28257 0.3 02
Cther non-cument assets 19 116.0 1010 367.7 3385
Financial assets at far value through profit 2.6 - - -
Deferred tax assets 30 - - 4.2 50
Investments In subsidiary undertakings 20 - - 1,032.0 1,032 0
Investments in ot venures 20 1.5 02 - -
3,344.4 3,1894 1,404.2 1,3757
Current assets
Inventones 21 74 64 - -
Trade and other recenables 22 220.6 1947 92.7 845
Financial assets at far value through profit 0.9 - - -
Denvative financial Instruments 23 6.9 34 66 34
Current tax recoverable 26 - - 1.7 13
Cash and cash deposits 24 5555 4939 236.6 1746
791.3 608 4 337.6 263 8
Liabilities
Current habilrhes .
Borrowings 27 (99.2) {223 0} (316.9) (351 2}
Denvatve financial nstruments 23 (5.3) {36 - -
Trade and other payables 25 (258.9) (196 0) (11.1) (17 3}
Cumrent tax atyibes 26 {79.4) (83 8} - -
Provisions 31 {16.3) (23 9} - -
(459 1) (536 3) (327.2) (368 5)
Net current assets/(iabilihes) 332.2 162 1 104 (104 7)
Non-current iabilities
Bormowings 27 (2,390.1) (2,160 2) {572 9) (462 8)
Other non-current liabilibes 28 (30.4) (160 87) 87
Demvative financial Instruments 23 (16.3) (14 1) - -
Retirement benefit obligations 29 (85 8) (107 9 (6 8) 1"
Deferred tax liabihes 30 {293 8) (3122 - -
Provisions 31 (80.7) (78 2) - —
{2,897.1) (2,688 6) (588 4) (483 2)
Net assets 779.5 662 9 826.2 787 8
Shareholders’ equity
Share caprtal 32 147.0 1453 1470 1453
Share premium account 33 92 109 92 109
Capital redernption reserve 34 144.2 144 2 144 2 144 2
Retained eamings and other reserves 35 479.1 3625 5258 487 4
Total shareholders’ equity 779.5 662 9 826 2 7878

The notes on pages 63 to 112 form part of these financial statements

The financal staterry
were signed on s

K G Harvey
Chamman
Penncn Group Plc

Registered Cffice Peninsula House, Rydon Lane, Exeter,
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Statements of changes in equity

Retained
earnings and Total
Share Caprtal  other reserves equity
Share premium redesmphion [Restated {Restated
capital account reserve note 5) nota 5
Group £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2009 144 5 17 144 2 3002 6006
Profit for the year - - - 1415 1415
Cther comprehensive loss for the year - — - {30 2) (30 2)
Total comprehensive income for the year - — - 1113 1113
Transactions with equrty shareholders
Drdends pad - - - (73 4) (73 4)
Adjustment for shares issued under
the scnp dwvidend alternative 08 (0 8) - 96 96
Adjustment in respect of share-based payments - - - 29 29
Proceeds from treasury shiares re-issued - - - 19 19
Equty companent of convertible bond ssued - — - 100 100
Total transactions with equity shareholders 08 {0 8) - {49 0) {49 0)
At 31 March 2010 145 3 109 144 2 3625 662 9
Profit for the year - - - 1718 17186
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - (40 (4 0)
Total comprehensive Income for the year - - - 167 6 167 6
Transactions with equry shareholders
Dmdends pad - - - (79 8) (79 B)
Adjustment for shares issued under
the scnp dvdend alternatve 17 17 - 228 228
Adjustment in respect of share-based payments - - - 39 39
Transfer from hedging reserve to property,
plant and equipment - - - 03 03
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - - 16 16
Total iransactions with equity shareholders 17 (17) - (510) (51 0}
At 31 March 2011 147.0 92 144 2 479.1 7795
Share Capital Retaned
Share premum redempion gamings and Total
capital account reserve other reserves equity
Company £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Apni 2009 144 5 117 144 2 459 3 7587
Profit for the year - - - 816 816
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - {2 3) 23
Total comprehensive ncome for the year - - - 793 793
Transachons with equity shareholders
Drdends pad - - - (73 4) (73 4}
Adustrment for shares issued under the
scnp dwdend attermative 08 {©8) - 96 96
Adustment in respect of share-based payments - - - 07 07
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - - 19 19
Equity component of convertible bond issued - — - 100 100
Total transactions with equity shareholders 08 {0 8) - (512) (51 2)
At 31 March 2010 1453 109 144 2 487 4 787 8
Profit for the year - - - 901 90 1
Other comprehensive loss for the vear - — - 27 27
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 928 928
Transactions wrth equity shareholders
Drdends paid - - - (79 6} (79 8)
Adjustment for shares issued under the
scnp dadend alternative 17 (17) - 228 228
Adustment in respect of share-based payments - - - 08 08
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - - 16 16
Total transactions with equity shareholders 17 (1t 7) - (54 4) (54 4)
At 31 March 2011 147.0 9.2 144 2 5258 826.2

The notes on pages 63 to 112 form part of these financial statements
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Financial statements

Cash flow statements

For the year ended 31 March 2011

Group Company
2010
(Restated
2011 note 5) 2011 2010
Notes £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating actmbes
Cash generated/{outfiow) from operatons 36 376 2 3654 (44.2) {113 8}
Interest paid (718 2) 84 2) (22.0) (19 4}
Tax pad (43 2) {3 8) (0.3) {02)
Net cash generated/foutfliow) from operating actvities 254 8 277 4 (66.5) {133 4}
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest recaved 144 145 20.9 207
Dmdends recenved - - 93.1 806
Acquisticn of subsidiary undertakangs
{net of cash acquired) 38 (25.1) @3 - -
Investments in subskdiary undertakarngs - o1 - {45 Q)
L.oans advanced to omt ventures {12.5) {307 - -
Loan repaymernts receved from jont ventures 35 - - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (190.3) (197 2} (0 2) {01
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 47 35 - -
Net cash (used InY/recenved from rvesting actvties (205.3) (219 3} 113.8 56 2
Cash flows from financing actvibies
Proceeds from treasury shares re-1ssued 32 1.6 19 16 19
Convertible bond issued {net proceeds) - 1219 - 121 ¢
Depostt of restncted funds (net) (30.8) {733 - {05)
Proceeds from new bomowing 187.0 2372 1399 2389
Repayment of borrowangs {104.6) (234 9) {70.0) (215 8)
Finance lease sale and lkease back - 389 - -
Finance lease pnncipal repayments (20.5) {185 - -
Dradends pard (56.8) (63 8) (56 8) (63 8)
Net cash {used in/receved from financing actvities {24.1) 94 14.7 8286
Net increase in cash and ¢ash equivalents 254 675 62.0 54
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 24 3895 3220 173.2 167 8
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 24 414 9 3895 235.2 1732

The notes on pages 63 to 112 form part of these financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements

1. General nformation

Pennon Group Pic 1s a company registered in the United Kingdom under the Comparves Act 2006 The address of the regsstered office
1S given on page 60 Pennon Group's business s operated through two main subsidianes  South West Water Limited holds the water and
sewerage services appointments for Devon, Comwall and parts of Dorset and Sormerset Vindor Lmited's business 1S recycling, waste
management and renewable energy

2, Principal accounting policies
The pnncipal accounting policies adopted In the preparabon of these financial staterments are set out below These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented

(a) Basts of preparation

These financial staterments have been prepared on the histoncal cost accounting basis (except for fair value tems, pnncipally acquisttions
and derwvatives as described in accounting policy note (b) and (n) respectively) and in accordance with Intematonal Financial Reporting
Standards (FRS) and Intemational Financial Reporting interpretations Comrmittes (FRIC) nterpretations as adopted by the European
Urion, with those parts of the Comparies Act 2006 applicable to companies reportng under IFRS and the requirerments of the Financial
Services Authorty A summary of the pnncipal accounting policies is set out below, together with an explanation where changes have
been made to previous policies on the adopton of new accounting standards and nterpretations in the year

The going concam basis has been adopted in prepanng these financial statements as stated by the Directors on page 43

The following revised standard and new interpretation, which are mandatory for the first tme in the year beginning 1 Aprit 2010,
are relevant to the Group

IFRS 3 ‘Business combimations’ (revised)

The revised standard requires all payments to purchase a business to be recorded at far value at the acquistion dats, with some
contingent payments subsequently re-measured at far value through income All transactions costs are to be expensed The Group has
accounted for the acquisions made dunng the year In accordance with the revised standard In the year £1 1 milion of transacton costs
have been expensed that previously would have been considered part of the cost of acquistion

IFRIC 18 ‘Transfers of assets from customers’

From 1 July 2009 where an item of property, plant and equipment provided by a customer, or an equivalent payment to provide such
property, plart and equipment, gves access to the supply of goods or services then the asset exchanged generates revenue The effect
of the restaternent on the comparative figures is set out nnote 5 In the year assets with a value of £17 4 milion (2010 £2 0 milion) were
transfemed to the Group, increasing deferred iIncome included N accruals and other payables) by £14 7 million (2010 rif) and profit by
£2 7 mihon (2010 £2 0 million)

The followng rewsed standards, amended standards and interpretations, which are mandatory for the first tme in the financial year
beginning 1 Apnl 2010, are refevant to the Group but have had no matenal impact

IFRS 1 'First-tirme adoption of IFRS’ (revised}

IFRS 1 ‘Frst-ime adopton of IFRS' {amendment)

IFRS 2 'Share-based payment' (amendment)

Improverments to IFRS 2009

IAS 27 ‘Consolidated and separate financial statements’ (revised)

IAS 32 ‘Financial nstrurments  presentation’ (amendment)

1AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments recognition and measurement’ (amendment)
IFRIC 15 ‘Agreement for the construction of real estate’

IFRIC 16 ‘Hedges of a net Investment n a forexgn cperation’

IFRIC 17 ‘Distnbution of non-cash assets to owners’

At the date of approval of these financial statements the following new standards, rewised standards, amended standards ard new
interpretatons, which have nat been applied In these financial statements, were 1N Issue, but not vet effectve

IFRS 1 ‘First-tme adopiion of IFRS” {amendment) frypennflaton exemptions and fixed date for IFRS transtion)”

IFRS 1 ‘First-time adoption of IFRS’ (amendment) {imit exernption from IFRS 7 disclosures)

IFRS7 ‘Financial instrurnents  disclosure on derecogniion’ amendment) *

IFRS 9 ‘Financal instruments™

IFRS 10 ‘Consoldated financial statements'”

IFRS 11 *Joint arrangements’™

IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of nterests in other entibes'™

IFRS 13 'Farr value measurermernt™ -5'1
Improvements to IFRS 2010 g
IAS 12 ‘Income taxes’ (amendment)” S_
1AS 24 'Related party disclosures’ {revised) g
IAS 27 ‘Separate financial statements' (revised)”

IAS 28 ‘lnvestments in associates and joint ventures' (revised)” é
IFRIC 14 '‘Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement’ {amendment) &
IFRIC 18 ‘Extingushing financial iabiiies with equity Instruments’

* Denaotes not yet endorsed for use in the European Urwon
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

2. Pnncipal accounting policies contrued

(a) Basis of preparation contrued

The presentational impact of these standards and interpretations 1s baing assessed The Directors expect that the adoption of these:
stardards and interpretations will have no matenal impact on the financial statements of the Group

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting prnciples requires the use of estimates and
assumpbons which affect the reported amounts of assets and liabiities at the date of the financal statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses dunng the reporting penod  Although these estmates are based on management’s best assessment of the
amounts, actual events or actons and results may uttmately differ from those estimates

(b} Basis of consolidation
The Group financial staternents include the results of Penncn Group Plc and its subsidiary, jont venture and associate undertakings

The results of subsidiary, jort veriture and associite undertalangs are included from the date of acquission or mcorporation, and excluded
from the date of disposal The resuits of subsidianes are consolidated where the Group has the power to govern the financiat and
cperatng policies of a subsidiary The results of jont ventures and associate undertakings are accounted for on an equity basis

Intra-group trading and loan balances and transactions are efiminated on consolidation

The acquisiion method of accounting is used te account for the purchase of subsidianes  The excess of the value transferred to the seller
i retum for control of the acquired business together with the far value of any previously held equity iInterest in that business over the
Group's share of the far value of the identifiable net assets I1s recorded as goodwil

{c) Revenue recognrtion
Revenue represents the far value of consideration recewvable, excluding value added tax, trade discounts and inter company sales,
In the ordinary course of business for goods and services provided

Revenue Is recogrised once the services or goods have been pravided to the customer

Income from man water and waste water charges includes bifled amounts for estmated usage and also an estimation of the amount
of unbiled charges at the year-end based upon a defined methodology reflecting histoncal consumption and current tanffs

Income from electnerty generated from waste management landfil gas producton includes an estmation of the amount to be recerved
under renewables obligation certificates

Acecrued income from waste management contracts at the balance sheet date 1S recogrised using management’s expectation of amounts
to be subsequentty billed for services rendered to the client in accordance with the terms of the contract

Income from recycling actvities within waste managerment includes amounits based upon market pnces for recyclate products and
industry schemes for waste electncal and electronic equipment ('WEEE' notes) and packaging volurnes ('PRNS') processed

Revenue from long-term service concession arangements is recognised based on the fair valug of work performed Where an
arrargement includes more than one senace, such as construction and operation of waste management facites, revenue and profit
are recognised In propertron to a far value assessment of the total contract value splt across the service prowded

Interest income 1S recognised on a ime-apportioned basis using the effective Interest method

{d) Landfill tax
Landfil tax 1s included within both revenue and cperating costs

(e} Segmental reporting

Each of the Group's business segments provides servces which are subject 1o nsks and retumns which are different from those of the other
business segments The Group's Internal organisation and management structure and its system of intemal financial reporting 1s based
pnmarily on business segments The pancipal business segments compnse the regulated water and sewerage services undertaken by
South West Water Limited and the waste management busness of Vinder Limted Segmental revenue and results include transactions
between businesses Inter-segmental transactons are eliminated on conselidation
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2 Pnncipal accounting policies contnued

{f) Goodwlt

Goodwil ansing on consofidaton from the acquisition of subsidiary and joint venture undertalangs represents the excess of the purchase
consderation aver the far value of net assets acquired

Goodwil s recognised as an asset and reviewed for imparment at lgast annually Any impairment 1s recognised immediately in the ncome
statement and s not subsequently reversed Further details are contained in accounting policy )

When a subsidiary or joint venture undertalang 1s sold, the profit or loss on disposal 1s determined after including the attnbutable amount
of unamortised goodwill

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions before 1 April 2004 {the Group's date of transition to IFRS) has been retaned at the previous UK GAAP
amaounts, subyect to annual testing for imparment Goodwill wittten-off to reserves under UK GAAP pror to 1988 was not renstated on
transttion to IFRS and wall not te included in determining any subsequent profit or koss on disposal

{g) Other intangible assets

Other Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are capitalised at far value at the date of acquistion  Following inibiad
recognion, finte life mtangible assets are amortised on a straight-ine basis over ther estmated useful economic Iives, with the expense
taken to the income statement through operating costs

(h} Property, plant and equipment

i) Infrastructure assets (being water mains and sewers, impounding and pumped raw water storage reservoirs, dams, pipelines
and sea outfalls)

Infrastructure assets were ncluded at far value on transtion to IFRS and subsequent addiions are recorded at cost less accumutated
deprecation Expenditure to increase capacity or enhance infrastructure assets is capitaised where It can be reliably measured and it1s
probable that incremental future economic benefits will flow to the Group The cost of day-to-day senicing of infrastructure components
15 recognised in the income statement as it anses

Infrastructure assets are depreciated over therr useful economuc fives, and are pnncpally

Dams and mpounding resenrvoirs 200 years
Water mans 40 - 100 years
Sewers 40 - 100 years

Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until commissioned

i) Landfill sites

Landfill stes are included within land and buldings at cost less accumutated depreciation Cost includes acgusiion and development
expenses The cost of a landfil ste 1s depreciated to its residual value {which is inked to gas production at the site post-Closure) over
its estimated operational ife talang account of the usage of vad space

ni) Landfill restoration
Where the obiigation to restore a landfill site s an itegral part of its future economic benefits, a non-current asset within property, plant
and equipment 1s recogrised The asset recogrised is depreciated based on the usage of vaid space

/) Other assets (including properties, overground plant and equipment)
Other assets are Included at cost kess accumulated depreciation

Freehold land 18 not depreciated  Other assets are depreciated evenly to ther residual value over thewr estimated economic Ives, and
are pnncipally

Land and buildings — Freehold buldngs 30 - 60 years

Land and buildings — Leasehold buldings  Over ther estrmated economic Iives or the finance lease penod, whichever is the shorter
Operational properties 40 - 80 years

Fixed plart 20 - 40 years

Vehicles, mobile plant and computers 3-10vyears

Assets n the course of construction are not depreciated untl commussicned

The cost of assets includes directly attnbutable labour and overhead costs which are incremental to the Group Bormowing costs directly
attinbutable to the construction of a qualifying asset (an asset necessarly taking a substantial penod of time to be prepared for ts ntended
use) are capitalised as part of the asset

Asset bves and residual values are reviewed annually

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by companng sale proceeds with camying amounts These are ncluded in the
Income staterment
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Principal accounting policies contired

{1) Leased assets

Assets held under finance leases are Included as property, plant and equipment at the lower of thewr fair value at commencement or

the present value of the minmum lease payments, and are depreciated over therr estmated economic ives or the finance lease penod,
whichever 1s the shorter The comesponding hiabxlity 1s recorded as borowings  The interest element of the rental costs is charged against
profits using the actuanal method over the penod of the lease

Rental costs ansing under operating leases are charged aganst profits in the year they are incurred

() Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets with an indefinte useful Iife are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for Imparrnent, or whenever events or changes
in circumstance Indicate that the camying amount may not be recoverable

Assets subject to amortisation or depreciation are tested for mparment whenever events or changes In crcumstances indicate that the
camying amount may not be recoverable

Anmparment loss 1s recognised for the amount by which an asset's camymg armount exceeds s recoverable amount The recoverable
amount 1s the higher of an asset's far value, less costs to sell, and value in use For the purposes of assessng mpagment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units) Value in use represents the
present value of projected future cash flows expected to be denved from a cash-generating unit, discounted using a pre-tax discount
rate which reflects an assessment of the market cost of captal of the cash-generating urt

Imparrments are charged to the income statement in the year in which they anse

(k) Investment in subsidiary undertakings

Investments In subsichary undertakings are nmally recorded at cost, being the farr value of the consideration paid  Subsequently,
Investments are reviewed for iImparment on an indvdual basis annually or if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camyng
value may not be fully recoverable

() investment in joint ventures

Jant ventures are entities over which the Group exeraises jont contrad Investrments in ot ventures are accounted for using the equiy
method of accounting Any excess of the cast of acquisiion over the Group's share of the farr values of the identifiable net assets of the
Joint venture at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill and 1s Included in the cammying value of the Investment in the joint venture

The camying value of the Group's iInvestment 1s adjusted for the Group’s share of post-acquisiion profits or losses recognised inthe
Income statement and statement of comprehensive income  Losses of a joint venture in excess of the Groups interest are not recognised
unless the Group has a legal or constructive obligation to fund those lossas

{m) Cash and cash deposits

Cash and cash deposits compnse cash in hand and short-term deposits held at banks Bank overdrafts are shown within curmrent
bormowings

(n) Denvatives and other financial instruments

The Group dassifies its financial iInstruments in the following categones

i) Loans and recervables
Allloans and berowings are inbally recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred  Following inmial recogniion interest-beanng
loans and bomowings are subsequently stated at amiorised cost using the effectve Interest method

Gains and losses are recognised In the iIncome statement when the instruments are derecognised or impared Premia, discounts and
other costs and fees are recognised in the income statement through the amortisation process

Bormowings are classified as current abilites urdess the Group has an uncondiional nghtt to defer settlement of the kability for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date

The far value of the kability component of a convertible bond 1s determined using the market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond This amount is recorded as a abiity on an amortised cost basts using the effective interest method untl extinguished on conversion
or maturty of the bonds The remainder of the proceeds are aflocated to the corversion option This is recogrised in shareholders” equity
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2. Pnncipal accounting policies contrued

(n} Denvatives and other financial Instruments contnued

1) Denvative financial mstruments and hedging activities

The Group uses denvative financial instruments, prncipally interest rate swaps and foregn exchange forward contracts, to hedge nsks
associated with interest rate and exchange rate fluctuatons Denvative nstruments are inbially recognised at far value on the date the
denvative contract 1s entered into and subsequently remeasured at far value for the reported balance sheet

The Group designates certain hedging denvatives as erther
—-a hedge of a highly probable forecast transaction or change in the cash flows of a recogrised asset or liabiity (a cash fiow hedge) or
— & hedge of the exposure to change in the far value of a recogrused asset or iability (a farr value hedge)

The gain or loss on remeasurement 1s taken to the iIncome statement except for cash flow hedges which meet the condrions for hedge
accounting, when the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument wiich 1s determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognised
directty in equity, and the ineffectve portion i the mcome staternent The gains or losses deferred n equity In this way are subsequently
recogrused in the Income statement In the same penod In which the hedged underlying transaction or firm commitment is recognised in
the ncome staternent

In arder to qualdy for hedge accounting the Group 1s required to document In advance the relatonship between the tem being hedged
and the hedging instrument  The Group 1s alse required to document and demonstrate an assessment of the relationship between the
hedged tem and the hedging instrument which shows that the hedge will be highly effective on an ongong basis This effectiveness
testing 1s reperformed at the end of each reporting penod to ensure that the hedge remains highly effectve

The full farr value of a hedging denvative ts classified as a non-cument asset or kability when the remaining matunty of the hedged tem
1s more than one year, and as a current asset or hability when the rermarnng matunty of the hedged rtem 15 less than one year

Denvative financial instruments which do not qualdy for hedge accounting are classified as a curent asset or liabikty with any change
In far value recogrised immediately i the income statement

1ii) Financial assets at fair value through profit

Financial assets at far value through profit reflect the far value movement of the hedged nsk on a hedged item which has been designated
In a far value hedging relatonship The far values of these financial assats are witally recognised on the date the hedging relationship is
entered into and subsequently remeasured at each subsequent balance sheet date The gain or loss on remeasurement for the penod 1
recogrised in the ncome statement

w) Trade recevables

Trade recavables do not carry any interest receivable and are recognised intially at farr value and subsequently at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for mparrment A provision for mparment of trade recervables s established when there is
objectve evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due in accordance with the onginal terms of the recenvables

v) Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest-beanng and are recogrised wibially at far value and subsequently measured at amorised cost using
the effective nterest method

(o) Taxation including deferred tax
The tax charge for the year 1s calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax s provided in full using the halbity rmethod on tempaorary diferences between the tax basis of assets and liabiibes and thesr
camying amounts In the financial statements A deferred tax asset 1s only recognised to the extent it 1s probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be avaiable in the future for i to be utilised

{p) Provisions

Provisions are made where there 1s a present legal or constructive cblgation as a result of a past event and it 1s probable that there wil

be an outflow of economic benefits to settle this cbigation and a reliable estimate of this amount can be made Where the effect of the
trme value of money s matenal the cument amount of a provision s the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
obligations The urwinding of the discount to present value s Included as a financial tem within finance costs

The Group's policies on provisions for specilic areas are

i} Landfill restoration costs

Provisions for the cost of restonng landfill stes are made when the obligation anses Where the obligation recogrised as a provision gives
access to future economic benefits, an asset in property, plart and equipment 1s recogrused Provisions are otherwise charged against
profits based on the usage of vard space

i) Environmental control and aftercare costs

Emaronmental controt and aftercare costs are ncuned dunng the operabional fife of each landfill site and for a considerable penod
thereafter Provsion for aft such costs 1s made over the operational Ife of the site and charged to the iIncome statement on the basis
of the usage of void space at the site

ni) Restructunng costs
Prowisions for restructunng costs are recognised when a detatled formal plan for the restructunng has been cormmunicated to
affected partes
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Pnneipal accounting policies continued
(q) Share capital and treasury shares
Ordinazy shares are classified as equity

Where the Company purchases the Company's equity share capital (freasury shares) the consideration pad, including any directly
attributable costs, s deducted from equity until the shares are cancelled or re-issued Where such shares are subsequently re-issued
any consideration recenved, net of any directly atinbutable transacton costs, 1s ncluded in equity

The Group balance shest ncludes the shares held by the Pennon Employee Share Trust which have not vested at the balance sheet date
These are shown as a deduction from shareholders’ equity until such time as they vest

{r} Dvidend distnbutions

Dradend distnbutions are recognised as a lability in the financial statements in the penod in which the dvdends ars approved by the
Cornparty’s shareholders Intenm dvidends are recognised when paid, final dvidends when approved by shareholders at the Annual
CGeneral Meeting

(s} Employee benefits
i) Retirement benefit obkgations
The Group operates defined benefit and defined contnbution pension schemes

Defined benefit pension schemes

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured using tud price Defined benefit pension scheme fabilibes are measured by
independent actuanes who adwse on the selection of Directors’ best estmates The projected unit credt method 1s employed and labiltes
discourtted at the cument rate of returm on high qualtty corporate bonds of equivalent term to the liabilities The Increase in liabilites of the
Group's defined benefit pension schemes expected 10 anse from employee service In the year 18 charged against operating profit

The expected retum on scheme assets and the Increase dunng the year n the present value of scherme liabilities are ncluded in other
finance ncome or costs

Changes in benefits granted by the employer are recognised mmediately n income, in past serice cost

Actuanal gains and losses ansing from expenence tems and changes In actuanal assumptions are charged or credited to equity n the
statement of comprehensive Income

Defined contnbution scheme
Costs of the defined contnbution pension scheme are charged to the income statement in the penod n which they anse

1i) Share-based payment
The Group operates a number of equity-settled share-based payment plans for employees The farr value of the employee services
required in exchange for the grant i1s recognised as an expense over the vesting penod of the grant

Far values are calculated using an appropnate pncing model Non market-based vesting condiions are adusted for in assumptions
as to the number of shares which are expected to vest

{t} Pre-contract and development costs

Pre-contract and development costs are expensed as incummed, except where 1t is probabis that the contract will be awarded or the
development completed, n which case they are recognised as an asset which 1s amortised to the income statement over the life of
the contract

(u) Fair values
The far valus of the interest rate swaps 1S based on the market prce of comparable nstruments at the balance sheet date f they are
publicly traded

The far values of short-term deposits, loans and overdrafts with a matunty of iess than one year are assumed to approximate to ther
book values In the case of mon-current bank loans and other loans the far value of financial kabifitles for disclosure purposes is estmated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate available to the Group for similar financial nstruments

{v) Service concession arrangements

Where the prowision of waste management services 1s performed through a confract wath a public sector entity wiich controls a significant
residual interest N asset infrastructure at the end of the contract, then consideration s treated as contract recenvables, split between the
consiruction of assets, cperation of the senace and the provision of finance, which 1s recognised as interest recevable

(w) Transfers of assets from customers

Where an tem of property, plant and equipment that must be used to connect customers to the network ts recerved from a customer, or
where cash 18 receved from a customer for the acquisition or constructon of such an temn, that asset s recorded and measured on nibal
recognition at its far value The credit created by the recogrton of the asset 1s recogrused in the income statement  The penod over which
the credit 1s recognised depends upon the nature of the service provided, as determined by the agreement with the customer Where the
service provided 1s solely a connecton to the network, the credit 1s recogrised at the paint of connecton If the agreement does not specify
a penod, revenue i recogrised over a penod no longer than the economic fe of the transferred asset used to provide the ongoing service

() Foreign exchange

Transactons denomnated in forexgn cumencies are transiated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and
liabities denominated in a foreign curency are translated at the closing balance sheet rate The resuting gain or loss 15 recognised in the
income statement
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3 Financial nsk management

(a} Financial nsk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a vanety of financial nsks market nsk (interest rate nsk), lquedity nsk, credit nsk and foreign currency
nsk. The Group’s treasury function seeks to ensure that sufficient funding 1s available to mest foresesable needs, mantans reasonable
headroom for contingencies and manages inflabion and interest rate nsk

The pnncipal financial nsks faced by the Group relate to interest rate and counterparty credit nsk

These nsks and treasury operations are managed by the Group Director of Finance n accordance with policies established by the
Board Major transactions are mdvdually approved by the Board Treasury activtres are reported to the Board and are subject to review
by intemal audit

Financial nstruments are used to raise finance, manage nsk and optmise the use of surplus funds The Group does not engage
In speculative actvity

i) Market nsk

The Group has a pobcy of mantaning at least 50% of interest beanng lakbxities at fixed rates The Group uses a combination of fixed rate
and index-linked borrowings and fixed rate interest swaps as cash flow hedges of future vanable nterest payments to achieve this policy
At the year end 53% of Group net borowings were at fixed rates (including 50% of South West Water's borrowings fixed for the penod
to March 2015) and 18% index-linked after the impact of financial dervatves The notonal prncipal armounts of the interest rate swaps
are used to detenmine setlement under those swaps and are not therafore an exposure for the Group These instruments are analysed
In note 27

The interest rate for ndex-lirnked debt 18 based upon an RPE measure which 1s also used in deterrmining the amourt of income from
customers in South West Water

The Group has no significant interest-beanng assets upon which the net return fluctuates from market nsk Depostt interest recevable 1s
expected to fluctuate in line with interest payable on floating rate borrowings  Consequently the Group's income and operating cash flows
are langely iIndependant of changes in market interest rates

For 2011 if interest rates on net bormrowings had been on average 0 5% higher/lower with all other vanables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have decreasad/increased by £0 6 miion (2010 £1 1 million)

For 2011 if RPI on ndex-lnked bormowings had been on average 0 5% higherAower with all other vanables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have decreased/increased by £1 2 millon (2010 £1 2 mifion)

1} Liquidity nsk

The Group actively maintains a mixture of long-term and short-term committed faciites which are designed to ensure the Group has
sgnificant avalable funds for operatons and planned expansions equivalent to at least one year's forecast requirements at all tmes
Details of undrawn committed faciities and short-term facilites are provided in note 27

Refinancing nsk 1s managed under a Group policy that permits no more than 20% of Group net bomowings to mature in any financial year

The Group and South West Water have entered into covenants with lenders Whilst terms vary, these typically prowvide for limits on geanng
(enmanly based on South West Water Limited’s Regutatory Capital Value and Vindor bmited's EBITDA) and interest cover
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Financial statements

Nates to the financial statements continued

3. Financial nsk management contriued
(a) Financial risk factors contnued

1i) Liquidity nsk contnued

Contractual undiscounted cash flows were

Due wathen Due betwaen Dug between Cver
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Group
31 March 2011
Non-denvative financial iabilthes
Bomowings excluding finance lease labiltes 726 266 6 3148 1,095 6 1,749 6
Interest payments on borrowings 354 352 65 4 5693 705 3
Finance lease liabites 474 570 2173 2,2431 2,564 8
Dernvative financial habilthes
Denvative contracts — net payments/{receipts) 81 49 (19 79 190
31 March 2010
Non-denvative financial habihihes
Borrowings excluding finance lease liabilibes 197 3 317 4252 0496 1,603 8
Interest payments on borrowings 271 229 430 3482 441 2
Finance lease labidrties 469 470 1937 23229 26105
Derivative financral habilihes
Denvative contracts — net payments 143 83 129 - 355
Company
31 March 2011
Non-denvative financial habilites
Bormowings 334 2451 2300 231 8 740 3
Interest payments on borowings 192 1756 107 120 59 4
31 March 2010
Non-denvative financial liabilibes
Bomowings 706 1086 3518 99 8 5329
Interest payments on borrowings 193 14 5 139 - 477
ni) Credst nsk

Credt and counterparty nsk anses from cash and cash deposits, denvative financial Instruments and deposits with bank and financial
nstitutions, as well as exposure to customers, including cutstanding recevables Further information on the credit nsk relating to trade

recervables 1s given in nate 22

Counterparty nsk anses from the mvestrment of surplus funds and from the use of denvative financial nstuments  The Board has agreed
a polcy for managing such nsk which 1s controfled through credit mis, counterparty approvals, and ngorous monitonng procedures The
Group has no other significant concentration of credit nsk The Group's surplus funds are managed by the Group's treasury funchon and
are usually placed in short-term fixed interest deposits or the overnight money markets Deposit counterpartes must meet a credit ratng
threshold set by the Board of P1 (Moody's) or A1 (Standard and Poor’s)
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3. Financial nsk management continued

(a) Financial nsk factors cortnued

v) Foreign currency nsk

Foreign cumrency nsk occurs at transactonal and translation fevel from bormowings and transactions in foreign currencies These nsks are
managed through cross-currency interest rate swaps and forward contracts which prowide certainty over foregn currency nsk.

{b) Caprtal nsk management
The Group's obyectives when managing caprtal are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concem In order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to mnmise the cost of capital

In order to maintain or acjust the caprtal structure the Group seeks to mantan a baance of returns to shareholders through dmwdends
and an appropnate capital structure of debt and equity for each business segment and the Group

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the geanng raie This ratio s calculated as net bomowings dvided by total captal Net
borrowngs are analysed n note 37 and cakeulated as total bomowings less cash and cash deposits  Total capital is calculated as total
shareholders’ equity plus net borrowings

The geanng ratios at the balance shest date were
2010

{Restated

2011 ncte 5)

- £m £m

Net bormowings (note 37) 1,933.8 1,8953

Total shareholders’ equity 779.5 6629

Total caprtal 2,713.3 2,558 2
Geanng ratio 71 3% 74 1%

South West Water Limited 1s also monrtored on the basis of the ratio of its net borrowings to Regulatory Capdal Vialue Ofwat’s optimum
range for geanng 1s 55% - 65%

2011 2010
£m £m
Regulatory Caprtal Value 2,7035 25550
Net bomowings 1,542 8 1,547 2
Net borrowings/Regulatory Capital Value 57.1% 60 6% |

The Group has entered into covenants with lenders, whilst terms vary, these typically provide for kmits on geanng and interest cover
The Group has been in compliance with its covenants dunng the year

{¢) Determination of fair values
The Group uses the following hierarchy for detemrining the far velue of financial nstruments by valuation technique

* quoted pnces (Unadusted) In active markets for Identical assets or liabities Jevel 1)

* nputs other than quoted prees Includfed within leved 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, eher directly {that 1s, as pnces)
or indirectly (that is, denved from pnces) (evel 2}

= inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on cbservable market data (that is, unobservable iInputs) (evel 3)
The Group's financial Instruments are valued using level 2 measures as analysed in note 23

The far value of financal mstruments not traded In an active market (for example over-the-counter denvatives) 1s determined by using
valuation techniques A vanety of methods and assumphons are used based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet
date Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for simiar iInstruments are used for long-term debt Other techriques, such as estimated
discounted cash flows, are used to determine far value for the remaining financal nstruments  The farr value of interest rate swaps 13
calculated as the present vatue of the estmated future cash flows

The camyng values less mparment provision of trade recenvables and payables are assumed to approxmate to ther far values The far
value of financial labifues 1s esimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the cument markat mterest rate avallable to the
Group for similar financial nstruments
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Notes to the financial statements continued

4. Cntical accounting jJudgements and estimates
The Group'’s prncipal accounting polices are set out nnote 2 Management 1s required to exerase sigrificant jJudgerment and make use
of estimates and assumphons in the application of these polices

Areas which management belleves require the most criical accounting judgements are

Undertying eamings per share

Undertying earmings per share Is presented to provide a more useful companson of business trends and performance  The term underyng
1S not a defined term under IFRS, and may not be comparable with similarly-tiled profit measurements reported by other companies

A reconciiation between underying and the statutory measure 1s mcluded in the Directors’ report on page 20 and the analysis of eamings
per share (note 11}

Environmental and landfill restoration prowvisions

Restoration and aftercare provisions are recognised in the financial statements at the net present value of the estimated future expenditure
required to settle the Group's restoration and aftercare oblgations A discount s applied to recognise the tme value of money andis
unwound over the life of the provision This & included In the income statement as a financal tem within finance costs As at 31 March
2011 the Group's enmaronmental and landfill restoration provisions were £94 1 millon note 31)

Where a provision gves access to future economic benefits, an asset s recognised and depreciated in accordance with the Group's
depreciation policy

Retirement benefit obligations
The Group operates definred benefit pension schemes for which actuanal valuations are camed out as determined by the trustees
at intervals of not more than three years

The pension cost under 1AS 19 1s assessed In accordance with Directors' best estmates using the adwvice of an independent

qualfied actuary and assumptions in the katest actuanal valuation The assurnptions are based on information supplied to the actuary,
supplemented by discussions between the actuary and management The pnncipal assumptions used to measure schemes' kabiltes,
sensiivities to changes in those assumphons and future funding obligations are set out In note 29 of the financial statements

Cash-generating units

For the purposes of assessing iImpairment of goodwill, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately idertrfiable
cash flows (cash-generating units) The waste management segment Is considered to be a single cash-generating unit as it 1s an
integrated business The prncipal assumptions used to assess Impament are set N note 15 of the financial statements

Taxation

The Group corporation tax provision of £79 4 million reflects the management's judgement of the amount of tax payable for fiscal years
with open tax computations where liabiliies remam to be agreed with HM Revenue & Customs Management penadically evaluates tems
detailed In tax retums where the tax treatment 15 subyect to nterpretation The Group establishes provisions on a full bass for ndividual tax
termns where, in the judgement of management, the tax postion 1s uncertan

Areas which management beleves require the maost critical accourtting estimations are

Service concession arrangements

Consideration from pubfic sector entiies for the operation of waste management service concessions Is freated as contract recevables,
spit between profit on the construction of assets, operation of the service and provision of finance recognised as interest recenvable
Management's allocation between these three elements 1s assessed according to prevailing external market condiions according to
the type of service provided

Site development costs

The development of waste managernent facilities for additonal lancifil capacity and new projects {such as Enengy from Waste plants)
are subject to cbtainng planning permissions  Development costs are capialised using management's assessment of the likelhood
of a successful outcome for each proect To the extent that plannng permission is Net receved any capitalised development costs
would be expensed

Landfill costs

The estimation of landfil reserves is of partcular mportance in assessing landfll costs, since the cost of a landfill ste 1s depreciated over its
estmated operational life taking into account the usage of void space and gas producton at the site post-closure The estimates of landfil
reserves are regutarly revewed and updated dunng the financal year for usage and other events (for exarnple site extensions) Estimates
are also subject to physical revew by external advisors

A number of factors mpact on the depreciation of landfll reserves including the avalable landfil space, future capital expenditure and
operating costs The assumptons are revsed as these factors change

The estimate of gas production at landfl stes post-closure reduces the depreciation of landfil reserves An assessment s undertaken
for indivdual sites of the histonc profile of gas production dunng landfiling actvty and the projected generation post-closure according
to the type of waste contained in the landfill and expected profile of gas production over tme
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4. Criical accounting judgements and estimates conbnued

Carrying value of property, plant and equipment

The Group's accouniting policy for property, plant and equipment assets s set out in note 2 The camying valus of property, plant and
eguipment as at 31 March 2011 was £2,927 5 millon In the year ended 31 March 2011 additions totalled £199 0 milion and the
depreciation charge was £142 3 milion Estmated usefid economic Ives of property, plant and equipment are based on management's
judgement and expenence When management identifies that actual useful ives differ matenally from the estmates used to calcutate
depreciation, that charge 1s adjusted prospectively Due to the significance of captal investment to the Group, vanations between actual
and estmated useful ives could impact operating results both posttvely and negatwvely Asset Ives and resxiual values are reviewed
annually and histoncally changes to remaining estimates of useful ives have not been matenal

Defined benefit pension schemes
Directors’ best estmates are based upon an assessment, with advice from the schemes' actuares, of key financial and demographic
assumptions

The rate used to discount schemes' labilies reflects the market rate for long-term corporate bonds, adjusted for the projected duration
of habilttes Inflation 1s based upon the market rate observed at 31 March by reference to long-term index-inked bonds

Mortality assumptions are set upon actuanal advce n accordance with published statistcs using a ‘medium cohort’ basis adjusted for
scheme-specific expenence, together with an allowance for future longevity Improvements

A schedule showing the impact upon the schemes' iabilities of changes in the assumptions made 1s ncluded in note 29 to these
financial statements

Revenue recognition
The Group recognises revenue at the tme of delivery of serices Payments recenved in advance of seraces delivered are recorded
as aliakbity

South West Water raises bills and recognises revenue in accordance with its entitlernent to recenve revenue in e with the limits established
by the Penodic Review price-setting process For water and waste water customers with water meters, revenue recogrised 1s dependent
upon the volume suppled including an estimate of the sales value of units suppled between the date of the last meter reading and the
financial year-end Estrmated usage 1s based on histonc data, judgement and assumptons, actual results could differ from these estmates
which would result in operating revenue being adusted in the penod in which the revision of the estimates 1s determined

Prowvision for doubtful debts
At each balance sheet date each subsidiary evaluates the collectability of trade recenvables and records prowsions for doubtful debts
based on expenence including compansens of the relative age of accounts and consideration of actual wite-off history

The actual level of debt collected may differ from the estmated levels of recovery and could Impact future operating results positively
or negatively As at 31 March 2011 the Group's cumment trade recetvables were £195 1 milion, aganst which £58 2 milion was provided

for mparment
Impairment of ntangible assets

The Group records all assets and llabiities acquired in business acquistions, Ncluding goodwil, at far value Intangible assets which have
an indefinte usefd Ife, pnncipally goodwill, are assessed at least annually for Impairment

The intial goodwill recorded and subsequent impament analysis require management to make estimations of future cash flows, terminal
values and an assessment of the long-term pre-tax discount rate to be applied to those cash flows which reflects an assessment of the
cost of capital of the cash-generating unit
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements contnued

5. Pnor year adjustments

Accounting policy for transfers of assets from customers

The application of IFRIC 18 ‘Transfers of assets from custormers’, effective from 1 July 2009, has required a restatement of amounts for
the prior year Where an itern of property, plart and equipment 1s receved frorm a customer or where cash is recenved from a customer
for the acquisition or constructon of such an tem the asset 1s recorded and measured on initial recognition at far value Transactions
with customers in the Group's water and sewerage business fall within the scope of IFRIC 18

As a resultt of the above change in accourting policy and restaterments of the far values associated wath the finalisation of accounting
for pnor year acqusiions, comparative figures have been restated

Yoar ended 31 March 2010

Prevously Application Restated now

reported of IFRIC 18 reported
£m £€m £m
Income statement
Cther operating expenses {455 6) 20 (453 6)
Profit for the vear 1395 20 1415
31 March 2010
plication Restated now
reported Acquisitions of IFRIC 18 reported
£m £m £m Em
Balance sheet
Non-current assets
Goodwll 254 4 30 - 257 4
Property, plant and equipment 28227 10 20 28257
Current assets :
Trade and other recenvables 194 9 02 - 1947
Current habilites
Trade and other payables (195 8) 02 - {196 O)
Current tax {83 B) 02 - (83 8)
Prowvisions (21 5) (2 4) - (239
Non-current habilties
Defermed tax 311 2) (10 - (312 2)
Shareholders’ equrty
Retained earmings
Brought forward 3211 - - 3211
Profit for the year 1385 - 20 1415
Camed forward 3756 - 20 3776
Cash flow statement
Cash generated from operations
Profit for the year 1385 - 20 1415
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipmert {195 2} - (2 0) (197 2)

Acquisition restatements are set out by indmdual acquesition innote 38
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6. Operating segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with intermal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision-Maker, which
has been identfied as the Pennon Group Plc Board

The water and sewerage business compnses the regulated water and sewerage services undertaken by South West Water Lirmited

The waste managemeant business 1s the waste treatment, recycling and renewable energy services provided by Vindor mited  Segment
assets include goodwl and other Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, nventones, trade and other recenvables and cash and
cash deposits Segment iabilites compnse operating labiltes and exclude taxaton The other segment liabifites include the Company’s
financing of business acquistions and Group taxation iabites Capital expenditure compnses addiions to property, plant and equepment,
ncluding additions resutting from acquisitons through business combinattons

2010
(Restated
2011 note 5§)
£m £m
Revenue
Water and sewerage 448 8 4442
Waste managernent 712.0 6265
Other 9.5 85
Less intra-segment trading” {11.1) (103
1,158 2 1,068 9
Segment result
Operating profit before depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)
Water and sewerage 286.8 2871
Waste management 116.5 1148
Other {0.7) 02
402.6 4017
Operating profit
Water and sewerage 1898 1935
Waste management 71.6 728
Other {0.5) -
2609 266 3
Profit before tax
Water and sewerage 1289 1295
Waste management 62.9 551
Other (3 3} 12
188 5 1858

Intra-segrment trading between and to other segments by the water and sewerage and waste management segments 15 under normal commercial
terms and conditions that wolld also bs avalzble to unmlated third parties Intra-segrment revenue of the other segment is at cost
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

6. Operating segments contnued
Water and wasta
sewerage management Group
{Restatad (Restated [Restated
note 5) nate 5) Other Eminabons note 5)
£m £m £m £m £m
Balance sheet
31 March 2011
Assets (exciuding Investments In oint ventures) 2,845.5 1,075.2 1,002.8 (789.3) 4,134.2
Investments in ot verdures - 1.5 - - 15
Total assets 2,8455 1,076.7 1,002 8 {789.3) 41357
Liabihes (2,036.1) {810 0} {1,299 4} 789.3 {3,356.2)
Net assets/(liabilries) 809 4 266.7 (296.6) - 7795
31 March 2010
Assets (excluding investments i joint ventures) 2,753 2 10226 901 1 (789 3) 3,887 6
Irvestments In joint ventures - 02 - - 02
Total assets 2,753 2 1,022 8 9011 (789 3) 3,887 8
Liabihes (1,985 8) (781 0) (1,247 4) 789 3 {3,224 9)
Net assets/{(habilies) 767 4 241 8 {346 3) — 662 9

Segment labilites of the water and sewerage and waste management segments compnse operating llabilites The other segment habilities
nclude the Company's financing of busiress acquisitons tefore 1999 and Group taxation fiabilies

Water and
sawerage Group
(Restated Waste (Restated
note 5) management Other rote §)
Notes £m £m £m £m
Other information
31 March 2011
Amortisation of other ntangible assets 16 - 07 - 0.7
Caprtal expenditure (including acquistions) 1251 988 0.2 2241
Depreciation 97.0 442 02 141.0
Fnance income 8 22,6 214 1.1 451
Finance costs 8 83.5 343 40 121.8
31 March 2010
Amorhsation of other Intangible assets 16 - 03 - 03
Capital expenditure (including acquistions) 1453 559 03 2015
Depreciation 936 417 @2 1351
Finance income 8 181 122 41 344
Finance costs 8 B2 2 310 28 116 0
Geographical segments

Separate disciosure by geographical segrment 1S not shown since the operations of the Group are substantially located in the
United Kingdom

76 Pennon Group Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2011




7. Qperating costs

2011 2010
Notes £m £m
Manpower costs 13 1483 137 3
Raw matenals and consumables 121 6 763
Cther operating expenses include
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment {23) (36)
Operating lease rentals payable
- Plant and machinery 74 77
- Property 61 63
Research and development expenditure 0.2 02
Trade recevables impawrment 22 84 79
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
- Owned assets 106.4 988
— Under finance leases 346 363
Amortisation of other intangible assets 16 07 03
Fees payable to the Group’s audrtors in the year were
2011 2010
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the statutory audit of the Group 400 407
Other services pursuant to legisiation
Regutatory reportng 30 27
Intenm review 30 30
Other audt services - 47 46
- 107 103
Total fees for statutory audit and audt related services 507 510
Tax services 150 199
Corporate finance transactons 983 1,346
Other seraces 170 31
1,308 1,576
Total fees 1,815 2,086
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors in respect of Pennon Group pension schemes
Audit 26 24

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the statutory audt of the Group include fees payable for the statutory audit of the Company
of £47,000 (2010 £47,000) and fees payable for the audtt of the Company subsidianes of £353,000 (2010 £360,000}

Expenses reimbursed to the auditors in relation to the audt of the Group were £35,000 (2010 £38,000}
Corporate finance senices In 2011 included fees of circa £0 & million relabing to corporate finance advice on the Runcom Phase 1| EAW

project wiich has now commenced construction

Corporate finance services In 2010 included fees of circa £1 2 miflion relating to the conclusion of the Financial Close of the Greater

Manchester PF1 contract

A descnption of the work of the Audit Committee 1s set out in its report on pages 39 o 41 which includes an exptanation of how auditor
objectmty and independence are safeguarded when non-audit services are provided by the auddors’ firn
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements coniinued

8. Net finance costs

2011 2010
Notes £m £m
Finance income
Interest recewvable 6.1 61
Interest recavable on shareholder iocans (o yont ventures 6.7 31
Interest recenvable on senace concession arangements 2.9 27
Expected retumn on defined benefit pension schemes' assets 29 29.4 225
45.1 34 4
2011 2040
Notes £m £m
Finance costs
Bank borrowings and overdirafts {35.5) {4186
interest elerment of finance lease rentals {30.6) {45 7)
Other finance costs (3 9) (2 2)
Interest cost on retirement benefit cbigations . 29 {27 8) (24 8)
Unwinding of discounts in provisions 3 (4 0) (3 8)
(121.8) {118 1)
Net gains on denvative mstruments
On denvatives deemed held for trading - 21
(121.8) (116 0
Net finance costs (76.7) (81 6)
9 Taxaton
2011 2010
Notas Em £m
Analysis of charge In year
UK corporation tax 38.6 430
L]
Deferred tax - other 34 13
Deferred tax ansing on change of rate of corporation tax {25 1) -
Total deferred tax 30 {21 7) 13
Tax charge for year 16.9 44 3

UK corporation tax is calculated at 28% {2010 28%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year

The deferred tax credit for the year ended 31 March 2011 18 due to a non-recurnng credit of £25 1 milion ansing from a 2% reduction i
the rate of corporation tax that was substantvely enacted in law by 29 March 2011

The tax for the year differs from the theoretical amount which would anse using the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK {(28%) from

2010

(Restated

2011 note 5)

£m £m

Profit before tax 188.5 1858

Profit before tax muthplied by the standard rate of UK corporation tax of 28% (2010 28%) 528 520
Effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 17 08

Other (11} (35

Change in rate of corporation tax (25.1) -

Adjustments to tax charge In respect of prior years (11.4) (50

Tax charge for year 16.9 44 3

Credit adjustments to tax charge in respect of pnor years include amounts released from the prior year curment tax habilty where
areassessment of a number of tax tems ndicates that a tax deduction 1s now certan

The average applicable tax rate for the year was 9% (2010 24%)

In addrtion to the amount debited to the income statement, a defermed tax charge relating to actuanal gans on defined benefit pension
schemes of €2 9 mulion (2010 credit of £12 4 millon} and a deferred tax charge relating to kosses on cash flow hedges of £0 4 midion
(2010 credt of €5 0 millon), have been charged directly to equty A deferred tax crecht relating to share-based payments of £0 5 million
(2010 £0 2 millon) has been taken directly to equity
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10 Profit of parent company

2011 2030
£m £m
Profit attnbutable to equity shareholders dealt with in the accounts of the parent company 901 816

As permitted by Section 408 of the Comparies Act 2006 no income statement or staternent of comprehensive Income 1S presented for
the Company

11. Earmings per share
Basic eamings per share are calculated by dwiding the earnings atinbutable to ordirary shareholders by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding dunng the year, excluding those held in the employee share trust (note 35), which are treated as cancelled

For diuted eamings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in ssue 1s adjusted to include all diutive potential ordinary
shares The Group has two types of diutve potential ordinary shares — those share options granted to emplovees whers the exercise pnce
15 less than the average market pnce of the Gompany's ordinary shares dunng the year; and the contingently issuabile shares under the
Group's Performance and Co-investment Plan and the deferred shares element of the Annual Incentive Bonus Plan, to the extent that the
performance crtena for vesting of the awards are expected to be met The corvertible bonds issued in August 2009 did not have a dilutve
effect on eamings per share dunng the year

The weighted average number of shares and eamings used In the calculations were

2011 2010
Number of shares (millions)
For basic eamings per share - 354.6 3560
Effect of diutive potential ordinary shares from share options 2.0 15
For diluted eamings per share 356 6 3515

Underlying basic and diluted eamings per share

Undertying eamings per share are presented to provide a more useful companson on business trends and performance  The term
underiying is not a defined term under IFRS and may not be comparable with a similarly titted profit measure reported by other companies
Underying eamings have been calculated

2011 2010 {Restated note 5)
Earnings Earmings
Profit per share Profit per share
after tax Basic Diluted after tax Basic Diluted
£m P p £m p p
Statutory samings per share 171.6 48.4 48.1 1415 40 4 403
Deferred tax (creditycharge (21.7) {(6.1) (61) 13 04 04
Undertying eamings per share 1499 42.3 (42.0) 142 8 40 8 407
12. Dvidends
2011 2010
£m £m
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year
Intenm dvidend paid for the year ended 31 March 2010 6 95p (2009 6 75p) per share 245 236
Final dmvdend paud for the year ended 31 March 2010 15 60p (2009 14 25p) per share 55.1 49 8
796 734
Proposed dividends
Proposed mntenm dmadend for the year ended 31 March 2011 7 50p (2010 6 95p) per share 26.8 245
Proposed final drvdend for the vear ended 31 March 2011 17 15p (2010 15 60p) per share 61.4 551
88.2 79 6

The proposed ntenm and final divdends have not been included as liabilities in these financial statements

The proposed intenm dmvdend for 2011 was pad on 1 April 2011 and the proposed final dwidend 1s subyect to approval by shareholders
at the Annual General Mesting
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13 Employment costs

2011 2010
£m £m
Wages and salanes 1227 117 4
Socal secunty costs 11.4 106
Pension costs 205 159
Share-based payrments 34 28
Total employment costs 158 0 146 7
Charged
Manpower costs 148.3 1373
Capital schemes 97 94
Total employment costs 158 0 146 7

Details of Directors” emoluments are set out in note 14 There are no personnel, other than Directors, who as key miariagement exercise

authorty and responsibifity for planning, directing and contraling the actities of the Group

2011 2010
Employees (average number)
The average monthly number of employees {ncluding Executive Directors) was
Water and sewerage 1,186 1,191
Waste management 3,012 2,853
Other 44 43
Group totals 4,252 4,087
The total number of employees at 31 March 2011 was 4,354 (2010 4,089)
14, Directors’ emoluments
2011 2010
£m £m
Executve Directors
Salary 1,035 975
Performance-related bonus pad or payable 490 458
Share-based payments 984 847
Other emoluments 70 65
Payment in lieu of pension provision 114 95
Non-executive Directors 412 399
3,105 2,839

The cost of share-based payment represents the armount charged to the income statemert, as described in note 32
The aggregate gans on vesting of Directors’ share-based awards amounted to a total of £677,000 (2010 £378,000)
Total gans made by Directors on the exertise of share opoions were mil (2010 £3,000}

Total emoluments include £1,418,000 (2010 £1,301,000} payable to Directors for senices as directors of subsidiary undertakings

At 31 March 2011 retirerment benefits were accrung to one Director under defined benefit pension schemes (2010 two) The accrued

pensicn entitfernent at 31 March 2011 under defined benefit schemes of the highest paid Director was nd (2070 £146,000

No pensicn contributions were payable to defined contnbution schemes but two Directors receved payments in lieu of pension provision

(2010 one)

More detalled information concerming Directors’ emoluments (ncluding pensions and the ighest paid Director} and share interests

15 shown n the Directors’ Rermuneration Report on pages 45 to 56
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15. Goodwill

{Restated
naota 5}
£m
Cost

At 1 Aprl 2009 2365
Recognised on acquistion of subsidianes 215
Disposals {0 6)
At 31 March 2010 257 4
Recogrised on acquistion of subsidianes (note 38) 350
At 31 March 2011 292 4

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2010 257 4
At 31 March 2011 2924

Goodwill acquired In a business combination 1s allocated at acquistion to the cash-generating unit (CGL) expected to benefit from that
business combination Al of the camymg amount of goodwill is allocated to the waste management segment which 1s considered to be

asingle CGU, as ttis an integrated business

Goodwill 1s reviewed annually or when other events or changes in crcurnstance ndicate that the camyng amount rmay not be fully

recoverable

The recoverable amount of the waste management segment 1S determined from value In use calculations These estimates and

assumptions are based on long-tenm market trends, market data, anticipated regulatary developments and management expenence
and expectatons Discount rates, cash flows and pnce ncreases are the key assumptions used in our plans Cash flow projections are
based on approved budgets and plans for the next five years based on growth rates and margins achieved histoncally and expectations
for market development Beyond this penod fong-term growth rates for the waste sector are based on UK Gross Domestic Product The

cash flows have been discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 11 7% (2010 12 5%} which reflects the overall business nsks associated

with the waste management segment actviies
16 Other intangible assets

Customer
contracts Patents Total
£m £m £m

Acquired intangtble assets
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2009 125 02 127
At 31 March 2010 125 02 127
At 31 March 2011 125 02 127
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2009 73 - 73
Charge for year 03 - 03
At 31 March 2010 76 - 76
Charge for year 07 - 07
At 31 March 2011 83 — 83
Camyng amourt
At 31 March 2010 49 02 51
At 31 March 2011 42 02 4.4

Customer contracts are amorhsed over the useful econormic Ife of each contract which at acquisiion ranged between two and 15 years

The average remaining life s three years

Patents are amortised over ther estimated useful econormic Ives which at acquistion was 13 years The average emaining ife 1

seven years

The camyng values of other ntangible assets are reviewed annually or when events or changes in crcumstance madicate that the camying

armounts may not be fully recoverable
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17 Property, plant and equipment

Fixed and mobla
Land and Infrastructure plant, vehicles
buildings assets and computers Total
(Restated {Restated Operzational {Restated Landfd Construction (Restated
nota 5) note 5) properties note 5) restoration N Prograss note 5)
£m £m £m £m £&m £m £m
Group
Caost
At 1 Apni 2009 3861 13459 5977 1,197 7 461 147 6 37211
Ansing on acquisitions 95 - - 137 - - 232
Addhons 207 380 08 333 - 99 4 192 2
Other (note 31) - - - - 26 - 26
Grants and contnbutions - (O 4) - - - - (C 4)
Disposals - 7 {02} (19 8 - - (20 7)
Transfers/reclasstficatons 19 363 81 97 5 - (143 8) -
At 31 March 2010 418 2 1,4191 806 4 13224 487 1032 39180
ANsing on acquIstions 104 - - 117 - - 221
Additions 155 178 03 292 - 1362 1990
Assets adopted at far value - 124 06 17 - - 147
Other (note 31} - - - - 47 - 47
Grants and centributions - {12 - - - - (12
Disposals (12 {18 {4 4) {59 3) - - {66 7}
Transfers/reclassifications 09 218 113 66 3 - (92 9) 72
At 31 March 2011 443 8 1,467 9 6142 13720 534 1465 4,097 8
Accumuated depreciation
At 1 Aprll 2009 156 7 734 1631 5795 126 - 9753
Charge for year 158 205 109 869 24 - 136 5
Disposals - 07 {0 2} {18 6) - - {19 5)
At 31 March 2010 1725 932 1638 647 8 150 - 1,082 3
Charge for year 183 215 108 a0 9 28 - 142 3
Disposals - (18 4 4} (58 1) - - {64 3}
At 31 March 2011 188 8 1129 1702 680 6 178 - 11703
Net book value
At 1 Apnl 2009 229 4 12725 444 6 6182 335 147 6 2,7458
At 31 March 2010 2457 1,325 9 442 6 6746 337 103 2 28257
At 31 March 2011 255.0 1,355 0 444.0 6914 35.6 146.5 2.927.5

Of the total depreciation charge of £142 3 milion (2010 £136 5 milion}, £1 3 mulion (2010 £1 4 milion} has been charged to capital
projects and £141 0 millon (2010 £135 1 milion} against profits

Asset Iives and residual values are reviewed annually
Asset transfers/reclassfications include assets transferred from other non-current assets of £7 2 mifion (2010 nil)
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17. Property, plant and equipment contnued
Assets held under finance leases included above were

Fixed and
mebile plant
Land and Infrastructure Cperational vehicles and Landfill Construchon
huildings asssts properiies computers restoration In progress Totel
£m m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 31 March 2010 - 3550 459 9 3228 - 81 1,145 8
At 31 March 2011 — 3570 465 0 3123 - 05 1,134 8
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 March 2010 - 2086 814 165 3 - - 267 3
At 31 March 2011 - 260 892 1759 - - 291 1
Net book amount
At 31 March 2010 - 334 4 3785 16576 - 81 8785
At 31 March 2011 - 331.0 375.8 136.4 - 0.5 8437
Fixed and
mobile plant,
vehicles and
computers
£m
Company
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2009 03
Addrions 01
At 31 March 2010 04
Addrttons 02
Disposals 02
At 31 March 2011 04
Accumulated deprecation
At 1 Aprl 2009 01
Charge for year 01
At 31 March 2010 02
Charge for year 01
Disposals 02
At 31 March 2011 01
Net book value
At 1 Apnl 2009 02
At 31 March 2010 02
At 31 March 2011 03

Asset ives and residual values are reviewed annually
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18. Financial instruments by category

The accounting polces for finanaa Instrurments have been applied to the line items

Far value Amortised cost
Trade
recevablas
and tracte
Derrvatives Demvatves Damvatives payables
used for far  used for cash deemed held Loans and (Restated
value hedgng flow hedging for trading recewables note 5} Total
Notes £m £m £m fm £m £m
Group
31 March 2011
Financial assets
Trade recewvables 22 - - - - 1369 136 9
Denvative financial
nstruments 23 - 69 - - - 69
Cash and cash deposiis 24 - - — 5555 — 555 5
Total - 69 - 5555 136 9 699 3
Financial habiities '
Bormowings 27 - - - {2,485 3 - (2,489 3)
Denvative financial
nstruments 23 (35 (181) - - - (21 6}
Trade payables 25 - - - - 92 7) 92 7)
Total 35 (181) - (2,489 3} 92 7) {2,603 B}
31 March 2010
Financial assets
Tracle recenvables 22 - - - - 1237 1237
Denvatrve financial
Instruments 23 - 34 - - - 34
Cash and cash deposits 24 - - - 493 9 - 4939
Total - 34 — 4939 1237 6209
Financial habites
Bomowings 27 - - - {2,389 2) - (2,389 2)
Denvative financial
nstruments 23 - (17 8) 01 - - (17 7)
Trade payables 25 - - - - {82 3) (82 3)
Total - (17 6) 0N {2,389 2) {82 3) (2,489 2)
Company
31 March 2011
Financial assets
Denvative financial
nstruments 23 - 66 - - - 66
Cash and cash deposts 24 - - - 236 6 - 2366
Total - 66 2366 243 2
Financial habilties
Bomowings 27 - - - (8890 - (889 0}
Trade payables 25 - - - - 1) (O 1)
Total - - — (889 ) {0 1) (889 1}
31 March 2010
Financial assets
Denvative financial
nstruments 23 - 34 - - - 34
Cash and cash deposits 24 - - - 1746 - 174 6
Total - 34 - 1746 - 1780
Financial liabiliies
Bomowings 27 - - - (814 Q) - (814 0)
rade payables 25 - - - - {0 2) 02
Total - - - (814 0} {02) (814 2)
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19 Other non-current assets

Non-curment recevables
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £€m £m £m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertalangs - - 3668 3375
Amounts owed by related parties (note 43) 56 6 459 - -
Other recervables 59.4 551 09 10
116.0 1010 367.7 3385
Non-current recevables were due
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £€m
Between 1 and 2 years 200 166 90.6 838
Between 2 and 5 years 59 62 2771 2547
Over 5 years 801 782 - -
116 0 1010 3677 3385
The far values of ron-current recenvables were
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m
Amounts owed by subsidiary urdertakings - - 3728 3369
Amounts owed by related parties 1267 909 - -
Other recevables 594 551 1.0 10
186 1 1460 3738 3379

The far value of armourts owed by related parties 1s based on cash flows using a rate based on the bormowings rate of 2 5% (2010 2 5%)
The discount rate 1s equal to London Interbank Offered Rate plus an allowance 1o reflect an appropnate credit margin
The effective interest rate on amounts owed by related parties was 14 0% 2010 11 3%)
Other recenvables and prepayments nclude site development and pre-coniract costs of £17 6 millon 2010£15 6 milbon)
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Notes to the financial statements contnued

20. Investments

Subsicdiary undertakings
£m
Company
A1 April 2009 944 8
Addrtions 87 2
Al 31 March 2010 1,032 0
At 31 March 2011 1,032.0
Joint ventures
Sharas
£m
Group
At 1 Apnl 2009 22
Addons 01
Share of profit 11
Share of other comprehensive loss 32
At 31 March 2010 02
Share of profit 43
Share of other comprehensive loss (3 0)
At 31 March 2011 1.5
Detals of the Group's pnncipal subsidiary and jort venture undertakings are set out in note 39
The Group's share of the results, assets and labiktes in s jont ventures, which are equity accounted in these financial statements, s
Assets Lsabilities Ircome Other
comprehensive
Non-currem Current Hon-current Current Revenues Profit INECIME
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
2011
Lakeside Energy from i
Waste Hokdings Limted 82.0 g5 (87.8) (2.2) 216 3.6 (2.3}
Vinder Laing {Greater
Manchester) Limited 151 176 8 (146 1) (45.8) 617 0.7 {0.7}
2010
Lakeside Energy from
Waste Holdings Umited 842 26 (86 3) 03 14 4 10 3 1)
Vindor Laing (Greater
Manchester) Limited 16 0 810 (90 0} 70 44 0 01 {0 1)
21 Inventones
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m gm
Raw matenals and consurnables - 7.4 64 - -
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22, Trade and other receivables - current

Group Company

2010

(Restated
2011 note 5) 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m
Trade recevables 1951 1743 - -
Less prowsion for impaurnent of recevables (58.2) {50 6} - -
Net trade recenvables 136.9 1237 - -
Amounts owed by related parties {note 43) 8.8 - - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 91.7 842
Other recevables 8.5 81 0.8 03
Prepayments and accrued ncome ©66.4 62 9 0.2 -
2206 164 7 92.7 845

The Drrectors consider that the camying amounts of trade and other recevables approximate to therr far value

There 1s no concentration of credtt nsk In trade recevables  The Group has a large number of customers whe are dispersed and there 1s
no sigrificant loss on trade recevailes expected that has not been provided for The Group has created IAS 38 portfolio provisions, but
cannot practicably identfy which recevables specifically are the ones imparred It 1s Group policy to consider a recevable in a portfolio to
which an mparment has been allocated on a collective bass as rot being impaired for the purposes of IFRS 7 disclosures unti the loss
can be speciiically identified with the recevable

The ageing of frade recevables which are past due but not specrfically imparred was

2011 2010
£m £m

Group
Past due 1~ 30 days 361 274
Past due 31 — 120 days 11.9 103
More than 120 days 84 5 717

The Group's two principal operating businesses specifically review separate categones of debt to dentrfy an appropnate provision for
impaiment Sauth West Water Limited has a duty under legislation: to continue to provide domestic customers with services regardless

of payment
The movement i the allowance for impairment in respect of trade recevables was

2011 2010

£m £m

At 1 Apni 506 43 1
Provision for recenvables impaiment } 8.4 79
Recewvables witten-off dunng the year as uncollectible (8.3) 69
Cumulative amounts previously excluded from debt 7.3 65
Ansing on acquisitions 0.2 -
At 31 March 58.2 506

Other recevables and prepayments nclude ste development and pre-contract costs of rit (2010 £4 O mllion)
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements contnued

23. Denvative financial mstruments

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m
Denvatives used for cash flow hedging
Current assets 6.9 34 66 34
Current liabiities (4.4) (35 - -
Non-cumrent liabiiites (13.7) {14 1} - -
Denvatives used for fair value hedging
Current liabiliies 09) - - -
Non-current liabilibes (2 8) - - -
Denvatives deemed held for trading
Current kahilibes - {1 - -

The far value of hedging denvatives Is spiit between curment and non-current assets or iabilies based on the matunty of the cash flows
The meffectve porton recognised in the income staterment ansing from cash flow hedges was il (2010 rf)

Interest rate swaps and fixed rate borrowings are used to manage the mix of fixed and floatng rates to ensure at least 50% of Group net
borrowings are at fixed rate At 31 March 2011 53% of Group net bomowings were at fixed rate (2010 65%)

At 31 March 2011 the Group had interest rate swaps to swap from floating to fixed rate and hedge financial iabilibes with a notional value
of £605 0 millon and a weighted average matunty of 4 0 years {2010 £775 0 millon, with 4 4 years) The weighted average irmerest rate of
the swaps for ther nominal amount was 3 2% (2010 4 0%)

At 31 March 2011 the Compary had cross-cumency interest rate swaps to swap from floating to fixed rate and hedge financial liabiites,
relating to a bamowing in the year of 70 milion Australian Dollars, with a weighted average maturty of 2 0 years (2010 70 milkon Australian
Dollars, with 3 O years) The weighted average interest rate of the swaps was 3 7% (2010 3 7%)

Denvatves held for trading related 1o nterest rate swaps at 31 March 2010 which no longer qualfied for hedge accounting
The amounts above are the farr value of swaps based on the market value of equivalent iInstruments at the balance sheet date

Valuation hierarchy
The amounts of financial instruments camed at far value by valuaton method were

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m
Assets
Denvatves used for cash flow hedging 69 34 66 34
Total assets 69 34 66 34
Liabilhes
Dernvatives used for cash flow hedging 18.1 176 - -
Dervatives used for far value hedging a5 - - -
Denvatves deemed held for trading - 01 - _
Total labihes 216 177 - -

The amounts above are the farr value of financial Instruments using level 2 - Inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, ether directly
{that 18, as prces) or ndirectly (that 1, denved from pnces)

88 Pennon Group Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2011




24, Cash and cash deposits

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £€m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 159 92 39.3 118
Short-term bank depostts 1218 2328 958 1514
Other deposits 417.8 2519 101.5 114
Total cash and cash deposts (note 37) 555.5 493 9 236 6 1746

Group short-tern deposits have an average matunty of one day

Group other deposits have an average matunty of 68 days

Group ather depostts include restncted funds of £80 2 rmillion 2010 £33 5 million) to settle lorg-tenm lease abihes (note 27)
and £40 0 milbory (2010 £56 3 million} relating to letters of credit

For the purposes of the cash flow statement cash and cash equvalents compnse

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
£m Em £m £m
Cash and cash deposits as above 555.5 493 9 236 6 1746
Bank overdrafis (nole 27} (18 1) {127 - -
537.4 481 2 236.6 1746

Less deposits with a matunty of three months or more
{restncted funds) (122.5) ©917) (1 4) (14
414 9 3895 2352 173 2

25. Trade and other payables - current
Group Company
2010
{Restatad

2011 nota 5} 2011 2010
£m £m £m Em
Trade payables 92.7 823 0.1 02
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 6.4 76
Amounts owed to joint venture (note 43) 85 50 - 50
Other tax and social secunty 530 493 0.3 o2
Accruals and other payables 104 7 594 4.3 43
258.9 196 0 11.1 173

The Directors consider that the camyng amount of trade and other payables approxmates to therr far value

Included in accruals and other payables are amounts prowded by the Group in relation to daims recenved, which are considered by the
Directors and the management of the Group to be the best estmate of the amounts that might be finally settled

26. Current tax habilrhes/{recoverable)

Group Company
2010
(Restated
2011 note 5 2011 2010
fm £m £m £m
UK corporation tax 79.4 838 (1.7) {13}
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Notes to the financial statements contnued

27. Bomowings

Group Comparty
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m
Current

Bank overdrafts 18.1 127 - -
Short-term loans 353 1700 349 700
European Investrment Bank 21.1 141 - -
Amounts owed 1o subsidiary undertakings - - 2812 281 2
745 1968 3161 3512
Oblgatons under finance leases 247 322 - -
Total current bomowings (note 37) 992 2280 3161 3512

Non-current
Bank and other loans 8334 568 9 457.9 3502
Convertible bond 1150 1126 1150 1126
European Investment Bank 252.5 2736 - -
1,200 9 9551 572.9 462 8
Obligations under finance leases 1,189.2 1,205 1 - -
Total non-current bomowngs (note 37) 2,390.1 2,160 2 572.9 462 8
Total borrovwngs 2,489 3 2,389 2 889.0 8140

Bank overdrafts at the balance sheet date anse from the trmng of the payment of unpresented cheques

The Company 1ssued £125 miflion 4 625% convertible bonds in August 2009 The bonds mature five years from the issue date at ther
nominal value ¢f £125 million or can be converted into shares, at the holders’ option, at the matunty date &t the conversion pnce of 597 81
pence per ordinary share

The values of the liakiity component and the equity corversion component was determmined at issuance of the bond The value of the

equity conversion component was determined to be £10 milion, using the Black-Scholes valuaton model, and has been recognised
in shareholders’ equity In retained eamings {ncte 35)

The far values of non-cument bormowings were

2011 2010
Book value Fair value Book va!EL:: Fair value
Group
Bank and other lcans 833.4 784.7 5689 5333
Convertible bond 115.0 1618 1126 127 6
European Investment Bank 252.5 21956 2736 2355
1,200.9 1,166 0 9551 896 4
Oblgations under finance leases 1,189 2 962.7 1,205 1 967 7
2,390.1 2,128.7 2,160 2 1,864 1
Company
Bank and other loans 457.9 4407 3502 3435
Convertible bond 1150 1618 1126 127 6

572.9 802.5 462 8 4711

Where market values are not avallable, far values of borrowings have been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at
prevafing interest rates
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27 Borrowings continued
‘The matunty of non-cument bomowings was

Group Comparny
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £
Between 1 and 2 years 2918 550 243.9 100
Between 2 and 5 years 418.7 5162 229.1 3529
Over 5 years 1,679.6 1,588 0 99.9 99 9
2,380 1 21602 572.9 462 8
The wesghted average matunty of non-curment bormowings was 22 years (2010 22 years)
Finance lease labilties — minimum lease payments
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m
Within one year 47.9 47 g - -
In the second to fifth years inclusve 272.0 2426 - -
After five years 22392 2,3232 - -
2,559.1 26137 - -
Less future finance charges {1,345.2) {1,376 4) - -
1,213.9 1,237 3 - -
France lease labiities — present value of minimum lease payments Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m
Within one year 47.9 479 - -
In the second to fifth vears inchusive 245.5 2184 - -
After five years 1,010.4 1,038 4 - -
1,303.8 1,304 7 - -

Included above are accrued finance charges ansing on obkgations under finance leases totaling £130 8 mifon (2010 £135 3 milion),

of which €6 4 millkon (2010 £11 8 millon) 15 repayable within one year

Within obligations under finance leases, South West Water Lmited has utiised finance lease faciites of £180 0 million for certain water
and sewerage business property, plant and equipment which are secured by bank letters of credit issued by United Kingdom financial
nstitutions  These letters of credt, covenng the full pencd of the finance leases, are renewable between the financial Insttutions and South

West Water Liruted at five-yearly intervals, the next being March 2016

Dunng 2007 the penod for repayment of these leases was extended with an agreement to deposit with the lessor group amounts equal
to the difference between the onginal and revised payments due The accumulated deposits, £32 4 million at 31 March 2011 {2010
£24 1 milion} are being held to settle the lease liabidity over the pencd from the end of the onginal lease tenm The deposits are subject

to a registered charge given as secunty to the lessor for the balance outstanding

Dunng 2010 the penod for repayment of certain exsting leases was extended with an agreement 1o depost with the lessor group amounts

equal to the difference between the ongnal and revised payments due The accurmulated deposts, £47 8 milion at 31 March 2011 (2010
£9 4 milon) are being held to settle the lease Eabiity at the end of the lease tenm, subject to nghts to release by negctiation with the lessor
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Notes to the financial statements continued

27 Borrowings continued

The effective Interest rates at the balance sheet date and the expesure to interest rate changes and the reprcing dates were

6 months
Effectrve rate or less 6-12 months 1-5 years Over S years Total
% £m £m £m £m £m
Group
31 March 2011
Bank overdrafts 15 181 - - - 181
European Investment Bank 12 2736 - - - 2736
Bark and other loans 3¢ 469 2 2287 1536 1322 983 7
Finance leases 19 5585 447 5 1169 910 1,213 9
1,319 4 676 2 2705 2232 2,489 3
Effect of swaps 32 (793 8) — 593 8 2000 -
5256 676 2 8643 4232 2,489 3
31 March 2010
Bank overdrafts 15 127 - - - 127
European Investment Bank 10 2877 - - - 2877
Bank and other loans 39 3817 2187 2510 - 851 4
Finance leases 29 246 4 7009 1989 912 1,237 4
928 5 9196 4499 912 2,389 2
Effect of swaps 40 (813 8) 2550 5088 500 -
1147 1,174 6 9587 1412 2,380 2
Company
31 March 2011
Bank and other lbans 32 454 2 - 153 6 - 607 8
Effect of swaps 37 (38 8) - 388 - -
4154 - 192 4 - 607 8
31 March 2010
Bank and other lbans 23 2817 - 2510 - 5327
Efiect of swaps 37 (38 8) - 388 - -
242 9 - 2899 - 5327
Undrawn committed bomowing facines at the balance sheet date
Group Company
2011 2030 2011 2010
£m Em £m £m
Floatng rate
Expinng within one year 50.0 250 - 250
BExqunng after one year 160.0 1750 90 0 650
210.0 2000 90.0 900

In addiion the Group has, at 31 March 2011, bank facilites of 100 0 miion US Dollars (2010 nif available to the Company and also
has undrawn uncommitted short-term bank faciites of £60 0 milion (2010 £60 0 miion) avarlable to the Company or South West

Water Umited
28. Other non-current liabilities
Group Company
2011 2010 20114 2010
£m £m £Em £m
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 8.7 87
Cther payables 30.4 160 - -
30.4 160 8.7 87
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29. Retirement benefit obligations
The Group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes and also a defined contribution section within the man scheme

The assets of the Group's pension schemes are held in separate trustee admimistered funds The trustees of the funds are required to act
in the best interest of the funds’ beneficanes The appontment of schemes' trustees 1s determined by the schemes’ trust documentation
The Group has a policy for the main fund that one-half of all trustees, other than the Chairman, are nominated by members of the
schermes, mcluding pensioners

Defined contribution schemes
Pension costs for defined contribution schemes were £2 8 milton (2010 £2 4 million)
Defined beneft schemes
© Assumptions

The prncipal actuanal assumphbons at 31 March were

201 2010

% %

Expected retum on scheme assets 7.3 73
Rate of ncrease n pensiorable pay 3.9 41
Rate of increase for current and future pensions 34 36
Rate used to discount schemes’ habilites 5.5 55
Inflation 3.4 36

Mortality
Assumptions regarding future mortalty expenence are set based on actuanal advice in accordance with published statistics and
expenence The mortalty assumpton uses a scheme-specific ‘'medium cohort’ basis with an alowance for future longesty improvernent

The average Ife expectancy in years of a member having retired at age 62 on the balance sheet date 1s projected at

2011 2010
Male 24.9 220
Female 26.9 254

The average iife expectancy in years of a future pensioner retinng at age 62, 20 years after the balance sheet dats, s projected at

2011 2010

Male 25.7 234

Fermale 282 266
The sensitvities regarding the prncipal assumptions used to measure the schemes’ liabilities are

Impact an

Change in schemes'

assumption liabiities

Rate of ncrease in pensionable pay +/-05% +/-13%

Rate of Increase in current and future pensions +/-05% +/-61%

Rate used to discount schermes' labiihies +-05% +/- 8 6%

Inflation +-05% +/-7 8%

Life expectancy +/— 1 year +/-31%
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29. Retirement benefit obligations contnued
The amounts recognised n the moome staternent were

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m
Current service cost {15.0) (105) (10} ©8)
Past service cost (2.7) (L] - -
Total included in employment costs {17.7) (11 6) (1.0} {0 8}
Expected returm on pension schemes’ assets 29.4 225 2.7 22
Interest cost on retirement benefit obligations (27.8) (24 8) (2.7} 2 6)
Total ncluded wathin net finance costs 1.6 23) - {0 4)
Total charge {16.1) (13 9) (1.0} {12)
The actual return on schemes' assets was a profit of £34 7 million (2010 profit of £88 2 million}
The amounts recogrised in the statement of comprehensive income were
Group Company
2011 2010 2041 2030
£m £m £m £m
Actuanal gans/{esses) recognised In the year 2.4 {44 4) a3 43
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet wera
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m
Farr value of schemes' assets 454.2 402 4 307 373
Presertt value of defined benefit cbligations (540 0} (510 3) (37 5) (49 Q)
Net liabiity recognised in the balance sheet (85 8) (107 9) (6 8) {11 7)
The schemes’ assets and the expected long-term rates of retum at the year-end were
2011 2010
Expected Expected
return Value Fund retum Valug Furnd
% £m % % £m %
Equries 8.5 262.0 58 85 2445 61
Property 82 18.6 4 g0 233 6
Bonds 48 1334 29 50 1258 31
Other 4.4 402 9 45 88 2
454 2 100 402 4 100

Other assets pnncipally represent cash cortributions recenved from the Group towards the year-end which are invested dunng the

subseguent financial year
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29. Retirement benefit obligations contnued
The Company's share of the schemes’ assets at the balance sheet date were

2011 2010

£m £m

Equrties 17.6 229
Property 1.3 23
Bonds 9.0 118
QOther 2.8 03
30.7 373

The expected retum on schemes’ assets 1S detenmined by considenng the long-term returns and the balance between nsk and reward
on the vanous categones of investment assets held Expected retumns on equity and property investments reflect long-term rates of returm
expenenced In the respective markets Expected yelds on fixed interest nvestrments are based on gross redemption yields as at the
balance sheet date

In conunction with its nvestment adwsers, the trustees have structured the schemes’ Investments with the obyective of balancing

investrment retums and levels of nsk The asset allocation for the main scheme has three principal elements

+ holding of bonds which 1s expected to be less volatile than most other asset classes and reflects the schemes’ labilibes

* a properton of equities, with fund managers having freedom in making Investment decisions 10 maxamise retums

* nvestment of a relatvely small proportion of the schemes' assets (Circa 10%) in dtematve asset classes which gve the potential
for dversification (curently property)

The liabibes of the defined benefit schemes are measured by using the projected unit credit method which s an accrued benefits
valuation method n which the scheme liabiibes make allowance for proected eamings

Movements in the net liabiity were
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m &m
At 1 April (107 9) (66 0) (11.7) {73)
Income statement (161) {138} (1.0) 12
Staterment of comprehensve income 24 (44 4) 33 4 3)
Employer contnbutions 35.8 164 2.6 11
At 31 March (85 8) {107 9) (6.8} (11 7)
Movements in the far value of schemes' assets were
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m

At 1 April 402.4 276 4 37.3 296
Expected retum on schemes’ assets 294 225 27 22
Actuanal gans/losses) 53 657 (10.4) 63
Acquistion - 382 - -
Members' contnbutons 10 10 - -
Benefits pad {19.7) (17 8 {1.5) 19
Employer contnbutions 358 164 26 11
At 31 March 454 2 402 4 307 373
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

29. Retirement benefit obligations contnued
Maovements in the present value of schemes’ defined benefit obiigations were

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apil (510.3} (342 4) (49 0} (36 9)
Service cost (177} (116} (1.0) {08
Interest cost (27 8) 24 8 (2.7 {2 6)
Actuanal fossesygans (29 (110 1) 137 (10 B)
Acqustion - (38 2) - -
Members' contnbutions {1.0) (10) - -
Benefits pad 197 i7 8 15 19
At 31 March {540 0) (510 3} (37.5) (49 0
The future cash flows ansing from the payment of the defined benefits are expected to be settled pnmariy n the pencd between 15 and
40 years from the balance sheet date
The five-year history of expenence adjustments Is
201 2010 2009 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m £m
Group
Farr value of schemes’ assets 454.2 402 4 2764 3315 347 6
Present value of defined benefit cbligations (540 0) (510 3) (342 4) (357 8) {388 8)
Net liabilty recognised {85 8) (107 9) (66 O) (26 3} (41 2)
Expenence gans/josses) on schemes’ assets
Amaount {Em) 53 657 (101 6) 44 7} 15
Percentage of schemes’ assets 1.2% 16 3% (36 7)% (13 5)% 04%
Expenence gans/osses) on defined benefit obiigations
Amount (£m) 08 23 348 498 (27
Percentage of defined benefit obligations 01% 0 4% 10 2% 13 9% 0 7)%

The cumulative actuanal losses recognised in the Group statement of comprehensive ncome at 31 March 2011 were £105 8 milion

(2010 losses of £108 2 millon)

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m £m

Company
Far value of schemes' assets 307 373 296 339 270
Present value of defined benefit obligations (37.5) (49 Q) (38 9 (36 8) (30 4)
Net fishility recognised {6 8} (117 7 3) (29 (3 4)
Expenence {osses)/gains on schemes' assets
Amount (€m} {10.4) 63 9 6) 40 01
Percentage of schemes’ assets (33 9)% 16 9% (32 4% 11 8% -
Expenence gans/flosses) on defined benefit obligations
Amournit (£my) 140 04 16 (53 {04
Percentage of defined benefit obligatons 37 3% Q8% 4 3% (14 4)% {1 3}%

The curmnulative actuanal losses recogrised in the Company statement of comprehensive meome at 31 March 2011 were £7 2 million

{2010 losses of £10 5 milion)

In 2011 the Group has completed the tnennial actuanal valuabon of its defined benefit schemes as at 1 Apal 2011 which resutted in similar
future service and reduced defict recovery contributions The Group has made deficit recovery contnbutions of £21 miflion dunng the year
(2010 £13 mullor) The Group monitors funding levels on an annual basis and expects to pay total cortnbutions of £24 million dunng the

year ended 31 March 2012

98 Pennon Group Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2011




30 Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided in full on temporary differences under the labiity method using a tax rate of 26% (2010 28%)

Maoverments on defermed tax were
Group Company

2010

(Restated
2011 note 5) 2011 2010
£€m £m £m £m
Liabiies/(assets) at 1 Apnl 3ta2 328 4 {50} {2 6}
(Crediteclycharged to the income staternent 217) 13 {0 2) (15}
Charged/(credited) to equity 28 (17 6) 10 ©9)
Ansing on acguistions 05 01 - -
Labities/{assets) at 31 March 2038 3122 {4 2) (5 0}

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of all temporary differences gving nse to deferred tax assets because 1t 1s probable

that these assets will be recovered

All deferred tax assets and liabiities withn the same junsdiction are offset

The deferred tax balance has been recuced by a credit of £22 6 milien to recognise the changes in the rate of corporation tax enacted
on 27 Juty 2010 and 29 March 2011 to reduce the rate from 1 Apnl 2011 from 28% to 26% If the published Govemnment proposals to
reduce the rate of corporation tax by a further by 1% for each financial year until 2014/15 had been enacted at the balance sheet date

the total impact would have been a further reduction of cirea £34 mullion
The movements in deferred tax assets and kabilities were

Group
Deferred tax habilties

Accelerated tax depreciaticn

Owried assets Other Total
(Restated Leased (Restated {Restated
nota 5) assets note 5) note 5)
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2009 3165 163 221 3549
Charged/{credited)} to the income statement 51 o7 (19) 39
Ansing on acquisrions 21 - 21 42
At 31 March 2010 3237 170 223 3630
Crediited to the ncome statement (18 2} {06 (2 9) (21 7)
Ansing on acquistions 05 - - 05
At 31 March 2011 306.0 16.4 194 341.8
Deferred tax assets
Retirernent Cther Total
- bensfit [Restated (Restated
Prowsions obhgations note §) note 5)
£m £€m £m £m
At 1 April 2009 (51} (185) {29 (26 5)
(Credited)/charged to the Income statement (18} 07 {15) (26)
Credited to equrty - (12 4 52 (17 6)
Ansing on acquisiion (4 - 27) (4 1)
At 31 March 2010 (8 3) {302 (12 3) {50 B8}
(Credited)/charged to the ncome statement ©2) 51 (4 9} -
Charged/{credited) to equity - 29 {0 1) 28
At 31 March 2011 (8 5) (22 2 (17.3) (48 0)
Net deferred tax lability
At 31 March 2010 3122
At 31 March 2011 293.8
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30. Deferred tax contrued

Company
Defemred tax assets
Retrerment
beneft
obkgations Cther Total
£m £m £m
At 1 Apri 2000 (2 0 {08) (2 6)
Credited to the ncome statement - (15) {13
(Creditedy/charged to equity (12) 03 {0 9}
At 31 March 2010 (32 (18 (50}
Charged/icredited} to the income statement 04 06) {02}
Charged to equity 10 - 10
At 31 March 2011 {18 (24) {4.2)
Deferred tax credited to equity dunng the year was
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m
Actuanal {gains)losses on defined benefit schemes (2.9) 124 (1.0} 12
Net far value (gansilosses on cash flow hedges (0.4) 50 (0.1) {0 3}
Deferred tax on other comprehensive loss {33) 174 (1.1 09
Share-based payments (note 35) 05 0z 0.1 -
(2.8) 176 (1.0} 09
31. Provisions
Environmental
and landfil
restoration
Restated Other
ncta 5) Rastructunng provisions Total
£m £m £m £m
Group
At 1 Apnl 2010 98 8 31 02 102 1
Charged to the iIncome statement 46 40 - 86
Landfil restoration 47 - - 47
Utilsed duning year {14 0) 44 - (18 4)
At 31 March 2011 94 1 27 0.2 87.0

The amount charged to the income statement includes £4 0 million (2010 £3 8 milion) charged to finance costs as the unwinding
of discounts In provisions

The addion to landfil restoraton provision of £4 7 rillion recogrused In the year has been matched with an addition to property, plant
and equipment

The analysis of provisions between cumrent and non-cument is

2010

{Restated

201 note 5)

€m £m

Curmrent 163 239
Non-Curent 807 782
97.0 102 1

Environmental and landfil restoration provisions are expected to be substantially utifised over the penod from 2012 to beyorxd 2062 The
provisions have been estabiished assurming current waste management technology based upon estimated costs at future pnces which
have been discounted to present value

The restructunng provision related pancipally to severance costs and will be utitsed within one year
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32. Share caprtal

2011 2010
£m £m
Authonsed
429,975,270 ordinary shares of 40 7p each 1750 1750
Allotted, called-up and fuily paid
MNurmber of shares
Treasury Ordinary
shares shares £m
At 1 Apnl 2009
Ordinary shares of 40 7p each 5,724,131 349,440,143 1445
Shares issued under the scnp dvidend altemative - 1,986,553 08
For consideration of £1 9 million, shares re-issued under the Company’s
Sharesave Scheme (631,557) 631,557 —
At 31 March 2010 ordinary shares of 40 7p each 5,092,574 352,058,253 1453
Shares issued under the scnp dvdend altermative - 4,129,038 17
Shares re+ssued under the Company’s
Perfarmance and Co-nvestment Plan (328,240) 328,240 -
For corsideration of £1 6 milkon, shares re+ssued under the Company’s
Sharesave Scheme (454,767) 454,767 —
At 31 March 2011 ordinary shares of 40.7p each 4,309,567 356,970,298 147.0

Shares held as treasury shares may be sold or re-issued for any of the Cormpany's share schemes, or cancelled

Employee share schemes
The Group operates a number of equity-settied share plans for the benefit of employees Details of each plan are

i} Sharesave Scheme

An al-employee savings refated plan 1s operated that enables employees, ncluding Executive Directors, to invest up to a maxsmum of
£250 per month for three or five years These savings can then be used to buy ordinary shares, at a pnce set at a 20% discourt to the
market value at the start of the savings pernod, at the third, fitth or seventh year anniversary of the option being granted Options expire
sx months following the exercise date and, except for certain specific crcumstances such as redundancy, lapse if the employee leaves
the Group before the option exeraise penod commences

Qutstanding options to subscnbe for ordinary shares of 40 7p each under the Company's share option schemes are
Thousarks of shares In respect

Date granted Penod when ~ ©f which options outstanding
and subscnption options nomally at 31 March

prce fully paid exercisable 2011 2010

8 July 2003 177p 2006 - 2010 - 59
B July 2004 200p 2007 — 2011 70 70
5 July 2005 270p 2008 - 2012 33 244
4 July 2006 358p 2009 - 2013 160 165
3 July 2007 522p 2010 - 2014 101 307
8 July 2008 517p 2011 - 2015 275 306
6 July 2009 386p 2012 - 2016 1,242 1,321
28 June 2010 431p 2013 — 2017 683 -
2,564 2,472
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32. Share caprtal continued
i) Sharesave Scheme conitinued
The number and weghted average exercise pnce of Sharesave options are

2011 2010
Number of Weighted Wesghted
ordinary average Number of average exerctse
shares exercise price  ordinary shares  price per share
{thousands) per share (p) {thousands) P}
At 1 Apnl 2,472 396 2,143 389
Granted 699 431 1,351 386
Forferted (119) 429 (371) 493
Exercised (455} 361 (632) 295
Expiredt {33} ~ 450 - (19) 370
At 31 March 2,564 409 2472 396

The weighted average pnce of the Company’s shares at the date of exertise of Sharesave options dunng the year was 478p {2010 468p)
The options outstanding at 31 March 2011 had a weighted average exercise pnce of 409p (2010 396p) and a weighted average remaning

contractual Ife of 2 4 years (2010 3 0 years)

The aggregate far value of Sharesave options granted dunng the year was £0 8 million (2010 £1 5 rmilion), deterrmined using the Black-
Scholes valuation model The significant inputs into the valuation model at the date of issue of the options were

2011 2010
Weighted average share pnce 539p 482p
Weghted average exercise pnce 431p 386p
Expected volatity 29.0% 29 0%
Expected lfe 4.1 years 3 8vyears
Risk-free rate 1.4% 2 5%
Expected dvidend yield 4.5% 47%

Expected volatity was determined by calculating the histoncal volatility of the Group's share pnce over the previous two years
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32. Share capital coninued
i) Performance and Co-investment Plan

Executve Directors and senior management receive a conditional award of ordinary shares in the Company and are also required to hold a
substantial personal shareholding in the Company The eventual number of shares, f any, which vest 1s dependent upon the achievement
of condrons of the plan over the restncted penod, beng not less than thres years

The number and pnce of shares in the Performance and Co-investrnent Plan are

2011 2010
Weighted Waighted
Number of average Number of average
ordinary  exercise price ordinary exercise pnce
shares per share shares per shara
(thousands) (p} {thousands) {p)
At 1 Aprl 1,465 554 £86 598
Granted 530 546 579 486
Vested (328) 557 - -
Lapsed {108) 557 - -
At 31 March 1,559 950 1,465 554

The awards outstanding at 31 March 2011 had a wesghted exercise pnce of 550p (2010 554p} and a weighted average remaning

contractual Ife of 1 3 years (2010 1 4 years)

The aggregate far value of awards granted dunng the year was £2 1 million (2010 £1 9 million) determined using a Marte-Carlo smutation

model The significant Inputs into the valuation model at the date of the share awards were

2011 2010
Wesghted average share pnce 546p 486p
Expected volatity 29.0% 29 0%
Risk-free rate 1.4% 25%

Expected volatity was determined by calculating the histoncal volatility of the Group's share pnee over the previous two years

i} Annual Incentive Bonus Plan — Deferred Shares

Awards under the plan to Executive Directors and senior management involve the release of ordinary shares in the Company to
participants  There is no performance conditon since vesting is conditional upon continuous service with the Group for a penod of three
years from the award The number and weighted average price of shares in the Annual Incentive Bonus Plan are

201 2010
We:ighted Wesghted
Number of average Number of average
ordinary  exercise price ordinary OXOrcse prce
shares per share shares per share
(thousands) {p) (thousands) @)
At 1 Apni 291 547 358 575
Granted 175 572 146 475
Vested @) 529 £213) 545
At 31 March 459 557 291 547

The awards outstanding at 31 March 2011 had a weighted average exercise pnce of 557p (2010 547p) and a weighted average remaning
contractual Iife of 1 5 vears (2010 1 8 years) The Company's share prce at the date of the awards ranged from 473p to 620p

The aggregate far value of awards granted dunng the year was £1 0 millon (2010 £0 7 milion}, determined from market value No option
pncing methodology ts applied since dmdends declared on the shares are recevable by the parhicipants in the scheme

Further detalls of the plans and options granted to Directors, included above, are shown in the Drectors' Remuneration Report
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33 Share prermum account

£m
At 1 Apnl 2009 17
Adustrment for shares issued under the Scnp Dvdend Altemative {0 8}
At 31 March 2010 109
Adustment for shares issued under the Scnp Dvdend Altermative (17)
At 31 March 2011 9.2

34. Capntal redemption reserve

The capttal redemption reserve represents the redermnption of B shares and cancellaton of Deferred shares ansing from a caprtal retum

to shareholders undertaken dunng 2006

£m
At 1 April 2009 144 2
At 31 March 2010 144 2
At 31 March 2011 144.2
35. Retained eamings and other reserves
Retained
earnings Total
Hedging (Restated [Restated
Own shares reserve note 5) note 5)
£m £m £m £m
Group
At 1 Apnl 2009 S0} (79 3211 3002
Profit for year - - 1415 1415
Other comprehensive income/lloss) for the year - 50 {35 2) (30 2)
Dmdends paid relating to 2009 - - (73 4) (73 4)
Adustrment for shares issued under the Scnp Dvidend Altermnative - - 96 96
Credt to equity in respect of share-based payments - - 27 27
Charge in respect of share options vesting 08 - (©8) -
Deferred tax In respect of share-based payments - - o2 02
Equity component of convertible bond issued - - 100 100
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - 19 19
At 31 March 2010 {2 2) (129 3776 362 5
Profit for year - - 1716 1716
Cther comprehensive loss for the year - {04 {36) 40
Dmiderxds pad refatng to 2010 - - {79 6) (79 6)
Adustrment for shares issued under the Scnp Dmdend Alternative - - 228 228
Credt to equity In respect of share-based payments - - 34 34
Transfer from hedging reserve to property, plant and equipment - 03 - 03
Deferred tax in respect of share-based payments - - C5 05
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued — - 16 i6
At 31 March 2011 (2.2) (13.0) 494.3 479 1

The own shares reserve represents the cost of ordinary shares in Pennon Group Pic 1ssued to or purchased in the market and held by
the Pennon Employee Share Trust to satisfy awards under the Group’s Annual Incentive Bonus Plan

The market value of the 588,000 ordinary shares (2010 596,000 ordinary shares) held by the trust at 31 March 2011 was £3 7 milion

(2010 £3 1 rmulhon)
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35. Retained eamings and other reserves contnued

Hedging Retamned
reserve earnngs Total
£m £m £m
Company
At 1 Apnl 2009 (14 4607 459 3
Profit for the year - 816 816
Cther comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year 11 B4 23
Dwidends pad relatng to 2009 - (734 73 4)
Adjustment for shares issued under the Scnp Dvidend Aftemative - 96 96
Crediit to equity in respect of share-based payments - o7 07
Equity component of corvertible bond issued - 100 100
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - 19 19
At 31 March 2010 {03 4877 487 4
Profit for the year - 90 1 901
Other comprehensive Income for the year 03 24 27
Dmdends pad relating to 2010 - {79 8) (79 6)
Adjustment for shares 1ssued under the Scnp Dvdend Altermative - 228 228
Credtt to equrty in respect of share-based payments - 07 07
Defesred tax n respect of share-based payments - 01 01
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - 16 186
At 31 March 2011 - 5258 5258
36. Cash flow from operating activibes
Reconciiation of profit for the year to cash generated from operations
Cash generated from operatons
Group Cornpany
2010
{Restated
2011 note 5 2014 2010
£m £m £m £m
Contnuing operations
Profit for the year 1716 1415 90.1 816
Adjustments for
Share-based payments 3.4 28 07 07
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 23) (3 6} - -
Depreciation charge 141.0 135 1 0.1 01
Amortisation of ntangible assets 0.7 03 - -
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures 4 3) an - -
Finance income (45.1) (34 4 (23 6) (22 9)
Finance costs 1218 1160 26.6 218
Ddends recenvable - - (93.1) (80 6)
Taxation charge/{credrt) 169 44 3 (0.4) {02
Changes mn working capital (excluding the effect of acquistion of
subsidianes)
(ncrease)l/decrease iIn inventones (0.6) 03 - -
increase In trade and other recenables (25.5) (32 4) (37.4) (123 7)
Increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables 303 93 (5.8) 97
Decrease i retirement benefit obligations from contnbutions (18.1} 4 8) {1.4) 03)
Decrease In provisions (13 6} {7 9) - -
Cash generated/{outflow) from operations 376.2 3654 (44 2) {113 8)
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37 Net borrowings

Group Comparny
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m
Cash and cash deposits 555.5 4939 236.6 1746
Borrowings ~ current
Bank overdrafts (18.1) (1zn - -
Other curent bormowings (56.4) (184 1) (349 (700)
Finance lease obligations (24.7) 32 2) - -
Amaounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - (281.2) {281 2)
Total cument bormowings (99.2) (228 0) (316 1) {351 2)
Borrowings - non-current
Bank and other loans (948.4) (681 5) (572.9) (462 8)
COther non-current bomowings (252.5) (273 6) - -
Finance lease obligatons {1,189 2) {1,205 1) - -
Total non-current bormowings {2,390 1) {2,160 2} (572 9) (462 8)
Total net borowings {1,933 8) {1,895 3} (652.4) {639 4)

Bank overdrafts at the balance sheet date anse from the timing of the payment of unpresented cheques

38. Acquisthons

On 24 June 2010 the entire Issued share caprtal of Oakley Waste Management Limited (renamed Vindor Waste {Corty) Limited) and
Basecall Limited was purchased by Vindor Waste Management Lirnited for a cash consideration of £4 2 milion These comparies
were acquired from Reconomy (Acquisiion) Limited and alse own Albene Recycing Umited {(renamed Vinder Waste (Earts Barton)
bimted and Anglia Recycling Limited (renamed Vindor Waste (East Anglia) imited The acqusition has been accounted for using the
acquisiion method

This acquisition contnbuted revenues of £27 1 milion and a loss before tax of £0 1 mulion for the penod from 24 June 2010 to 31 March
2011 If the acquisiion had occurred on 1 Apnl 2010 Group revenues for the year would have been £1,164 8 milion and profit for the year
would have been £172 5 milkon These amounits have been caleulated after applying the Group's accounting pohcies and adiusting the
resutts to refiect the farr value adjustments

The residual excess over the net assets acquired has been recognised as goodwill The prowisional goodwil is attnbuted to the profitabiity
of the acquired business

Farr valug
£m
Property, plant and equipment 95
Inventones 01
Recewvables 77
Payables {108
Taxahon - cument 01
Cash and cash deposits 08
Loans 17 3)
Leases 02
Net habilities acquired (10 1)
Goodwill 14 3
Total consideration 42
Satsfied by:
Cash 42
Net cash outflow ansing on acquisition
Cash consideration 42
Cash and cash deposits acquired {0 8)
34
Directly attibutable costs included in other operating expenses 05
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38. Acquisttions conirusd

On 4 Novernber 2010 the entire issued share capital of Pearsons Group Holdings Limited was purchased by Vindor Waste Managerment
Lrrwted for & cash consideration of £12 7 mifion Pearsons (Thetford) Limited (renamed Vindor Waste (Thetford} Limited) is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Pearsons Group Holdings Limited The acguisiion has been accounted for using the acquistion method

This acquisition contnbuted revenues of £3 O milion and a loss before tax of £1 1 milion for the penod from 4 November 2010 to 31 March
2011 if the acquisiion had occurred on 1 April 2010 Group revenues for the year would have been £1,164 2 million and profit for the year
would have been £172 0 millon These amounts have been calculated after apphing the Group’s accounting policies and adusting the

results to reflect the provisional far value adustments

The residual excess over the net assets acquired has been recognised as goodwill The provisional goodwil s atinbuted to the profitabiity

of the acquired business
Farr value
£m
Property, plant and equipment 112
Irvertones 02
Recewvables 14
Payables 83
Taxation — deferred (0 4)
Cash and cash deposts 05
Loans (32
Leases {10)
Net assets acquired 04
Goodwill 123
Total consideration 127
Satisfied by
Cash 127
Net cash outflow ansing on acquistbion
Cash consideration 127
Cash and cash deposits acquired {0 5)
122
Directly atinbutable costs included in other operating expenses 03
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38. Acquisthons contrued

On 20 December 2010 the entire issued share capial of Adapt Recycling Limited {renamed Vindor Waste (Adapt) Lirmited) was purchased
by Vindor Waste Management Limred for a cash consideration of £0 7 mulion The acquistion has been accounted for using the
acquistion methed

Vindor Waste (Adapt) imited confributed revenues of £0 7 milion and a loss before tax of £0 1 million for the penod from 20 December
2010 to 31 March 2011 the acquistton had occurred on 1 April 2010 Group revenues for the year would have been €1,161 4 millon
and profit for the year would have been £172 0 milion These amounts have been calculated after apphying the Group's accounting
policies and adjusting the resutts to reflect the provisional fair value adjustments

The residual excess over the net assets acquired has been recognised as goodwil The provisional goodwil 1s attnbuted to the profitaiility
of the acquired business

Far value

£m
Property, plant and equipment 04
invertones 01
Recavables 03
Payables (0 5)
Taxation — cument {0 1)
Net assets acquired 02
Goodwil 05
Total consideration 07
Satisfied by
Cash 07
Net cash outflow ansing on acquisition
Cash consideration 07
Directly atinbutable costs included in other operating expenses 01
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38. Acquisthions contnued

On 14 January 2011 the entire issued share capital of Swinnerton Environmental Lmited {renamed Vindor Waste (Bury) Limited)) was
purchased by Vindor Waste Management Limited for a cash consideration of £1 9 miion The acquistion has been accounted for using

the acquistion method

Vindor Waste {Bury) Liruted contnbuted revenues of £0 5 mullion and a loss before tax of £0 5 million for the penod from 14 January 2011
to 31 March 201 If the acquisition had occumed on 1 Apnl 2010 Group revenues for the year would have been £1,161 2 million and profit
for the year would have been £171 7 milion These amounis have been calculated after applying the Group’s accounting pokcies and

adjusting the results to reflect the provisional farr value adustments

The residual excess over the net assets acquired has been recogrused as goodwill The provisional gooadwil 1s atinbuted to the profitability

of the acquired business

Far value

£m

Property, plant and equipment 03
Recervables 03
Payables @2
Leases Q1
Net assets acquired 03
Goodwil 16
Total consideration 19
Satsfied by:
Cash 19
Net cash outflow ansing on acquisrton
Cash consideration 19
Directly attnbutable costs included in other operating expenses g1
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38. Acquisthions contrued

Cn 4 February 2011 the entre issued share capital of Martock Waste Paper Company Limited (rerarmed Vindor (Martock) Lirrited) was
purchased by Vindor Waste Management Limited for a cash consideration of £7 3milion The acqurstion has been accounted for using
the acauistion method

Vindor (Martock) Lirmited contnbuted revenues of £1 7 million and a loss before tax of £0 3 mullion for the penod from 4 February 2011 to
31 March 2011 If the acqusition had occurred on 1 Apnl 2010 Group revenues for the year would have been £1,163 5 milion and profit
for the year would have been £172 O milion These amounts have been calculated after appiying the Group's accounting policies and
adjusting the results to reflect the provisional farr value adjustments

The residual excess over the net assets acquired has been recognised as goodwill The provisional goodwill 1s atinbuted to the profitabiiity
of the acquired busiress

Far value

£m
Property, plart and equipment 07
Recevables 09
Payables {06
Taxation - current o
Taxation - deferred 01
Leases 02
Cash and cash deposts 04
Net assets acquired 10
Goodwil 63
Total consideration 73
Satisfied by:
Cash 73
Net cash outflow ansing on acquistbon
Cash conideration 73
Cash and cash deposits acquired {© 4}

69
Birectly attnbutable costs inciuded in other operating expenses 01
Restatements

At 31 March 2010 the accounting for the acquisttion of London Recycling Limited (renamed Vindor London Recyciing bimited) was
provisional Compietion of the accounting for the acquistion has resufted in an increase to goodwill of £1 1 millon, an Increase in property,
plant and equipment of £0 4 mifion, an ncrease in trade and other recenvables of £ 1 million, a decrease in trade and other payables

of £0 1 milkon, an increase in cument tax labilies of £O 2 milion, an increase in provisons of £0 8 rmilkon and an increase n defered tax
liabdites of £0 7 milion Comparative figures at 31 March 2010 have been restated accordingly

At 31 March 2010 the accourting for the acquistion of Intercontinental Recycing Limited {renamed Vindor Polyrner Recycling Lirnstedd)
was provisional Completion of the accounting for the acquisiion has resulted in an increase to goodwill of £3 3 milion, a decrease in
property, plant and equipment of £0 8 mifion, a decrease in trade and other recevables of £0 3 million, an ncrease n trade and other
payables of £0 3 million, an increase in provisions of £1 6 miflion and an increase In defened tax labilities of 20 3 milion Comparative
figures at 31 March 2010 have been restated accordingly

In addmon the acquistion accounting for Greater Manchester Waste Limited (now renarned Vindor Waste (Greater Manchester Limrted)
has been reanalysed at 31 March 2010 decreasing goodwill by £1 4 milion and increasing property, plant and equipment by £1 4 milion
Comparatve figures at 31 March 2010 have been restated accordingly
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39. Principal subsidiary, joint venture and associate undertakings at 31 March 2011

Country of incorporation,
registration and
prncipal operatons
Water and sewerage
South West Water Lmited” England
South West Water Fnance Plc England
Waste management
Vinder Limrted* England
Vindor Waste bimited England
Vindor Waste Exeter Limited England
Vindor Waste Suffolk Limited England
Vindor Waste (West Sussex) Limited England
Vindor Waste Management Limnited England
Vindor ErmaroScot Limited Scotland
Pearsons Group Holdings Limited England
Vindor Waste (Thetford) Lirmited England
Vindoer Resource Management Limited England
Vinder Waste Kent Limited England
Vindor (Martock) Limited England
Vindor Oxfordshire Limited England
Handside Lirmted England
Vindor EMW (Runcom) Limited England
Vindor Waste (Landfill Restoration) Limrted Engtand
Vindor Waste (Somerset) Limited England
Vindor Waste (Tharmes) Limtted Engtand
Vindor Waste (Greater Manchester) umited England
Vindor Parkwood Holdings Limited Bntish Virgin Islandst
Vindor Polymer Recychng Limited England
Other
Peninsula Insurance Limited* Guernsey
“  Inchcates the shares amg held directly by Pennon Group P, the Company
t Operations are camed out n England
The subsidiary undertalangs are wholly-owned and all shares In Issue are ordinary shares  All compantes above are consolidated in the
Group financial statements
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39. Pnncipal subsidiary, joint venture and associate undertakings at 31 March 2011 contnued

Jomt ventures and associate

All jont ventures, the assoaate and the subsidiary undertakings of Lakeside Energy frorn Waste Holdings Lerited, Vindor Laing (Greater
Manchester) Holdings Limited and INEQS Runcom (TPS) Holdings Limited are ncomporated and registered n England which 18 also ther
country of operation

Share capial in issue Percentage held Actrty
Lakeside Energy from Waste 1,000,000 A ordinary
Holdings Limited shares -
1,000,000 B ordinary
shares 100%
Lakeside Energy from Waste Limted Waste management

Shares in Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limited are held by Vindor Waste Management Limited

Vindor Lang (Greater Manchester)
Holdings Limited 2 ordinary shares 50%

Vindor Lang {Greater Manchester)
Lirruted Waste management

Shares in Vindor Lang (Greater Manchester) Holdings Limited are held by Vindor Waste Management Limited

INECS Runicom (TPS) Holdings Larmited 1,000 A ordinary shares 20%
186,750 B1 ordinary shares 50%
62,250 B2 ordinary shares -

INEOS Runcom (TPS) mited Waste management

Shares In INEOS Runcorn (TPS) Holdings Limited are held by Vindor Waste Management Limited

40. Operating lease commrtments

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m

The future aggregate minmum lease payments under non-canceliable

operating leases are

Withen one year 8.7 74 - -
Later than one year and less than five years 231 238 - -
After five years 82.3 881 - -
1141 1203 - -

The Group leases vanous offices, depots and workshops under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases have vanous
terms, escalation clauses and renewal nghts Property leases are negotiated for an average term of 25 years and rentals are reviewed
on average at five-yearly intervals

The Group also leases plant and machinery under non-cancellable operating lease agreements
41, Contingent liabilttes

Group Camparny

2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m

Guarantees
Borrowing facifties of subsidiary undertakings - - 371.8 3638
Contractors’ clams on capital schemes 0.3 30 - -
Performance bonds 107.8 1048 107.8 104 8
Other 6.9 6% 6.9 69
115.0 1147 486.5 4755

Guarantees in respect of performance bonds are entered nto in the normal course of business No fiabiity 1s expected to anse n respect
of the guarantees

Vindor Waste Management Limited has gven a commitment to supply 200,000 tonnes of waste per annum (or pay miarket pnce based
compensation) to the energy from waste plant of the joint venture in Lekeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limted The Directors consider
that the conwnitted waste volume will be available in the ordinary course of business

Other contingent labilities relate to a possible obligation to pay further consideration in respect of a prevously acquied business when the
outcorne of planning applicatons s known
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42. Capital commtments

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £ £m £m
Contracted but not prowded 218.3 104 1 - -
Share of commiment contracted but not provided by jont ventures - 135 2 - -
218.3 239 3 - -
43. Related party transactions
Dunng the year, Group companies entered nto the followng transactions with related parties who are not members of the Group
2011 2010
£m Em
Sales of goods and services
Lakeside Energy from Waste Limited - 02
Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Limited 82.0 490
Purchase of goods and services
Lakeside Energy from Waste Limited 9.4 38
Year end balances
2011 2010
£m Em
Receivables due from related parbes
Vindor Lang (Greater Manchester) Lirmited (loan balance) 32.0 207
Lakeside Energy from Waste Limited (loan batance) 13.6 195
INEOS Runcom (TPS) Limited (loan balance) 11.0 57
56.6 459
Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Limited (trading balance} 8.8 -
Payables due to related parties
Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Limited {trading balance} 7.0 —
Lakeside Energy for Waste Limited {trading balance} 15 50

The £56 6 million (2010 £45 9 mulion) recevable relates to loans to related parties included within recervables and due for repayment

in nsiaiments between 2012 and 2033 Interest s charged at an average of 14 0% (2010 11 3%)
The £7 0 miflion payzable relates to consortiumn relief due to Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Limited

Company
The following transactions with subsidiary undertakings occurred inthe year

2011 2010

£m £m

Sales of goods and services (management fees) 7.8 71
Purchase of goods and services (support services) 0.5 05
Interest recenvable foans) 18.9 19 4
Interest payable (short-tenm funding) - C1
Drdends recened 93.1 806

Sales of goods and services to subsidiary undertalangs are at cost Purchases of goods and seraces from subsichary undertakangs are
under normal commeraial terms and conditions which would also be avalable to unrelated third parties
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Financial statemenis

Notes to the financial statements continued

43 Related party transactions contnued
Year end balances

2011 2010
£m £m

Recewvables due from subsidiary undertalungs
Loans 457 4 4206
Trading balances 1.1 09

Interest on £104 8 milion of the kans has been charged at a fixed rate of 5 0% and on £120 5 milon at a fixed rate of 6 0%
(2010 £104 3 milion, 6 0%}

Interest on the balance of the loans is charged at 12 month LUBOR +1 5% The loans are due for repayment in nstalments over the penod
2012 t0 2015 Dunng the year there were no further provisions (2010 ni) n respect of loans to subsidianes not expected to be repad

2011 2010
£m £m
Payables due to subsidiary undertakings
Loans 281.2 2812
Trading balances 15.1 163
Payables due to joint venture
Trading balances - 50

The toans from subsdiary undertalangs are unsecured and interest-free without any terms for repayment
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Financial statements

Five-year financial summary

2010
Restated
2011 nota 5) 2009 2008 2007t
£m £m £m £m £m
Income statement
Reverue 1,159 2 1,068 9 958 2 8794 748 3
Operating profit 2609 266 3 2508 2377 2000
Net finance costs (76.7) (81 6) (92 2) (856} {69 2)
Share of profit In joint ventures 4.3 i1 08 02 03
Profit before tax 188.5 1858 159 4 1523 1311
Taxation {16.9) (44 3) (63 6) (16 4) (37 2)
Profit for the year 1716 1415 898 1359 939
Dwdends proposed 88.2 796 734 691 B85 6
Underying eamings per share (basic)
From continuing operations
Eamings per share 48 4p 40 4p 258p 38 9p 26 5p
Defemed tax (6.1)p Q4p 111p (2 6)p 3 8p
Undertying earnings per share 42 3p 40 8p 36 9p 36 3p 30 3p
Declared dmvdends per share 24.65p 22 55p 21 00p 1981p 18 55p
2010
(Restated
2011 note 5) 2009 2008° 2007
£m £m £rn £m
Capital expendrture
Acquisitions 251 93 34 890 370
Property, plant and egupment 199.0 192 2 231 8 207 7 2451
Balance sheet
Non-current assets 3,344.4 3,189 4 30363 29310 27286
Net cument assets/{liabities) 332.2 1621 405 1997 (56 7)
Non-current habilites (2,897.1) (2,688 6) (2,476 2) (2,485 2) (2,044 7)
Net assets 779.5 662 9 €00 B 645 5 627 2
Number of employees (average for year)
Water and sewerage business 1,196 1,191 1,227 1,276 1,301
Waste management 3,012 2,853 2,154 2,059 1,686
Other businesses 44 43 41 42 38
4,252 4,087 3,422 3,377 3,025

* Pnorto the applicabon of IFRIC 18 Transfer of assets from customers’
T Pror to the application of IFRIC 12 "Senvice concession arangements’
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Financial statements

Shareholder information

Financial calendar

Fnancal year-end 31 March
Twenty-second Annual General Meeting 28 July 2011
Ex-dmdend date for 2011 Final dmdend 10 August 2011
Record date for 2011 Final dividend 12 August 2011”
2011 Final dvdend payable 7 October 2011
201112 Half yearly financial report announcement November 2011
2012 intenm dvdend payable Apnl 2012
2012 Prelrminary results anncuncement May 2012
Twenty-thrd Annual General Meeting July 2012
2012 Final ddend payable October 2012

" The above dates are subject to cbtaning shareholder approval at the 2011 Annual General Meeting to the payment of a final dwdend for the year

ended 31 March 2011
Scnp Dvidend Altemative

Subject to obtaning shareholder approval at the 2011 Anrual General Meeting to the payment of a final dwdend for the year ended

31 March 2011, the tmetable for offenng the Scnp Dvdend Altemative will be as follows

10 August 2011 Ordinary shares quoted ex dvidend
12 August 2011 Record date for final dwvdend
26 August 2011 Posting of Scnp dwdend offer
19 September 2011 Final date for receipt of Forms of Becton/Mandate
6 October 2011 Posting of dvdend cheques and share certificates
7 October 2011 Final dvidend paymernt date
7 October 2011 First day of dealing in the new ordinary shares
Shareholders’ analysis at 31 March 2011
Percentage Percentage
Number of of total of ordinary
Range shareholders sharsholders shares
1-100 2,469 1031 002
101-1,000 9,528 3978 139
1,001-5,000 10,158 42 41 604
5,001-50,000 1,459 609 445
50,001-100,000 9z 039 186
100,001-HIGHEST 245 102 86 24
23,951 100 00 100 00
Indnaduals 19,966 83 36 832
Compantes 227 085 261
Trust companies {pension funds etc) 14 008 002
Banks and nominees 3,744 15 63 89 05
23,951 100 00 100 00

Pennon Group Pic 1s listed on the London Stock Exchange and meets the requirements of a Prermuum Listing This s a listing that meets
the more stnngent UK 'super-equivalent standards’ compared with a ‘standard iisting” which meets EU minmurn standards
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Substantal shareholdings
At 13 June 2011 interests in the 1ssued share capital had been notified pursuant to the Financial Service Authonty's Disclosure and
Transparency Rules

Invesco Lid 11 98%
Amenpnse Financial Inc 9 86%
Pictet Asset Management SA 715%
AXA SA and its Group Companies 5 56%
Prudental Pic 5 33%
Legal & General Group Pic 376%

Further sharsholder inforrmaton rmay be found at pennon-group co uk

Shareholder services

Share dealing service

The telephone share dealing service offered by Stocktrade enables shareholders to buy and sell shares in the Company on a low-cost
basis and to make regular Investments in the Company Telephone Stocktrade on 0845 601 0995 and quote LOW CO107 Commussion
15 0 5% {subject to a mmmum charge of £17 50) to £10,000, then 0 2% thereafter -

Registrar
The Company's registrar, Caprita Registrars, can be contacted as follows

Capita Registrars

Pennon Group Share Register
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent

BR3 47U

Telephone 0871 664 9234 (calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras) Lines are open 8 30am-5 30pm Monday-Fnday
Overseas telephone +44 800 141 2051
Email pennon@caprtaregistrars com

Share grft service

Through Sharegrt, an independent chanty share donation scheme, shareholders who only have a small nurnber of shares with a value that
makes it uneconomical to sell them, can donate such shares to chanty Donabons ¢an be made by completon of a smple share transfer
form which 1s avalable from the Company's registrars, Caprta Registrars

Indindual Savings Accounts
By holding their shares in the Comparny n an Indmdual Savings Account (SA), shareholders may gan tax advantages

Scnp Dvidend Altemative

The Company cperates a Scnp Dvdend Alternative The Scnp Dvidend Altermative prowides shareholders with an opportunity to invest
the whole of, or part of, the cash dmdend they receive on their Pennon Group Plc shares to buy further shares in the Company without
ncumng stamp duty or deating expenses Subject to obtaning shareholder approval at the 2011 Annual General Meeting to the payment
of a final dvdend for the year ended 31 March 2011, full detals of the Scnp Dmdend Altermative, Including how to join, will be sent out to
shareholders on 26 August 2011 The full timetable for offenng the Scnp Dividend Alternatve 1s given on page 114

Online portfolic service
The online portfolio service provided by Caprta Regstrars gives shareholders access to more information on ther investrnents  Detalls
of the portiolio service are avalable onine at capitashareportal com

Electronic communications
The Company has passed a resolution which allows it to communicate with s shareholders by means of s website

Shareholders curmently receming a prnted copy of the Annual Report who now wish to sign up to recenve al future shareholder
communications electronically, can do so by registenng with Capita Registrars’ share portal Go to caprtashareportal com to regrster, select
‘Account Regstration’ and then follow the on-screen instructions by nputting your sumarne, your Investor Code (which can be found on
your Form of Proxy} and your postcode as well as entenng an e-mail address and selecting a password
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Financial statements

Shareholder information continued

Electronic Proxy voting

Shareholders also have the opportunty to register the appointment of a proxy for any general meeting of the Company once notice

of the meeting has been gven and may do so via capitashareportal com Shareholders who register an “e-mal’ preference wall not receve
a paper proxy form Instead they will receive an e-mai alert advising them of general meetings of the Company, with links to the Notices
of Meetings and annual and half yearly acoounts

The Pennon wehsite

Pennon's website pennon-group co uk provides news and detalls of the Company’s actviies plus finks to its business websites The
Investor Information section contains up-to-date information for shareholders Including comprehensive share pnce Infarmation, financial
resuits, dividend payment dates and amounts, and Stock Exchange announcements There is also a comprehensive share services
section on the website which includes nformation on buyng, sefing and transfermng shares, and on the action to be undertaken by
shareholders In the event of a change in personal circumstances, for example, a change of address

Waming to shareholders — Boller Room Scams

A nurmber of comparnies, Including Pennon Group Pic, continue to be aware that ther shareholders have recewved unsolicted phone

calls or comespondence concerning Investment matters which imply a connection to the company concemed These are typically from
overseas based 'brokers’ who target UK shareholders offenng to buy therr shares or to sell them what can tum out to be worthless or high
nsk shares n US or UK investrments They can be very persistent and extremely persuasive and a 2006 survay by the Financial Services
Authonty {(FSA) has reported that the average amount lost by nvestors i1s around £20,000 It s not just the novice investor who has been
duped m this way, many of the victims had been successfully nvesting for several years

Sharehclders are advised to be wary of any unsolicted adwvice, offers to buy shares at a discount or offers of free reports nto the Company
If you are contacted in this manner, please make sure you obtain the comect name of the person and organisation and where they are
based You should also check that they are properly authonsed by the FSA before getting involved and should call the organisation back
using their details in the FSA register to verfy their authonsation — you can check enline fsa gov uk/registerhome do If you deal with an
unauthonsed fim, you would not be eligible to receve any payment under the Financial Services Compensation Scheme The FSA can

be contacted by completing an online form at fsa gov uk/pages/Doing/Reguiated aw/Alerts/overseas shiml

Detalls of any share dealing facities that the Comparty endorses will be included in Company mailings

Pennon Group Plc
Registered Office Peninsuta House, Rydon Lane, Exeter, Devon £X2 7THR
Registered in England No 2366640
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